RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to
participate in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on
the school website www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act.

Regular Meeting: August 9, 2016

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
[ Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order:
Roll Call: Tammy Cleland, Carolyn Duffy, Betsy Hall, Ginny Hautau, Norman Lorenz, Tim
Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Eresa Puch
Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

B. Student Presentations- None

C. Agenda Review

D. Public Comment:
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15
minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public
comment. The Board does not respond or take action on public comments.

E. Approval: Minutes from 06/28/16 RMCS BOD Meeting

F. Communications:
1. Executive Director’s Report
2. Finance Report
3. Facilities Report
4. Foundation/Fundraising Report
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G. Board Business:
1. Discussion and Action: Facilities - Long-term Vision, Facilities Committee Member
Establishment
2. Discussion and Action: Policy/Compliance Committee Member Establishment
3. Discussion and Action: Positive Resolution Committee Member Establishment
4. Discussion and Action: Review/Approve 2016-17 At-Will Employees
5. Discussion and Action: Special Education Policies / SELPA Contract
6. Discussion: Questions for Board Training on Sept 6, 6:30pm
7. Discussion: ucp
8. Discussion: Union School Proposal
9. Discussion: LCAP Update
10. Discussion: HR/Hiring Process
11. Discussion: Establish Performance Goals for E.D./Superintendent
H. Adjourn
Future Meeting Date(s):
September 13, 2016 - 6:30pm October 11, 2016 - 6:30pm
November 8, 2016 - 6:30pm December 13, 2016 - 6:30pm
January 21, 2017- Retreat 9:00a-4:00p February 14, 2017 - 6:30pm
March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm
May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often
and your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our
meetings, the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda.

However, due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These
presentations are limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes.
Exceptions to these time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to
respond to your concerns or you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that

item. Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.

[For office use only: Posted On-site: Initial /Date Posted Website: Initial /Date ]



RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL
Procedure for Policy Adoption

The successful operation of River Montessori Charter School (RMCS)
requires that the actions of the Board and administrative staff be known and
understood by students, employees; and members of the community. These
groups as well as individuals should also have an opportunity to affect
RMCS action.

The process for adoption and publication of policies in the school includes
the following elements:

L.

I1.

[II.

Raising a Policy Issue

Any person within the school community, including teachers,
administrative staff, other’staff members, students, parents and
interested community members, may raise a potential policy issue. At
the school level, the individual that raises the policy issue shall
communicate that policy issue to the Executive Director, or designee,
on a form approved by the Board of Directors for that purpose [Form
to be developed? - or should this read, “in writing”]. The Executive
Director, or designee, shall communicate the policy issue to the Chair
of the Policy Committee of the Board of Directors (“Policy
Committee”) within one week of receiving the policy issue.

Any member of the board of directors may raise a potential policy
issue by communicating that policy issue to the Chair of the Policy
Committee using a form approved by the Board of Directors for that
purpose. If a policy issue is raised during a regular or special meeting
of the Board of Directors, the Policy Committee shall record it using
the form approved by the Board of Directors.

The Policy Committee may raise a policy issue itself and record it on
the form approved by the Board of Directors for that purpose.

Investigating a Policy Issue

Once the Policy Committee receives notification of a policy issue, the
Policy Committee shall determine the appropriate means to investigate
the policy issue(s). The Policy Committee may, in its discretion,
investigate the matter itself or delegate the investigation to an
appropriate person or group of persons.

Investigating a Policy Issue

Once the Policy Committee receives notification of a policy issue, the
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IV.

VI.

VII.

Policy Committee shall determine the appropriate means to investigate
the policy issues. The Policy Committee may, in its discretion,
investigate the matter itself or delegate the investigation to an
appropriate person of a group of persons.

Policy Drafting

Once the Policy Committee has investigated the policy issue, the
Policy Committee shall convene’a meeting to discuss whether to draft
the policy and decide any outstanding issues relating to drafting the
policy. The Policy Committee shall then undertake to draft the policy
itself, or delegate the drafting tojan appropriate person or group of
persons. '

Adoption, Revision and Repeal of Policies

Policies shall ordinarily be submitted by the Policy Committee to the
Board at a‘regular or special school board meeting and shall be
adopted, revised/or' repealed by a majority vote.

The adoption, revision or repeal of policy shall be made in an open and
public manner at a regular or special charter school board meeting.

Communication and Public Involvement in Policy Adoption

An opportunity for interested parties to be heard before adoption,
revision or repeal of policy shall be made.

Retention and organization of adopted policies, rules, regulations and
procedures shall be made in a policy binder maintained by the
Secretary of the Board with the assistance of school staff.

Publication and availability of all policies, currently in effect within
the school, shall be made available to any interested person during the
regular business hours of the school. To ensure a basic level
awareness and institutional understanding, a copy of the policy binder
shall be provided to all new members of the Board who shall be
personally briefed on key aspects of the policies by a member of the
school’s staff.

Review and/or Revision of Existing Policies

No later than September 30 of any school year, the Policy Committee
shall complete a review of all of the existing policies of the school.
Upon completion of the review, the Policy Committee shall notify the
Board of Directors at its next regular meeting of the policies that
require revision. The Policy Committee shall follow the procedures
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required for policy creation in the revision of existing policies. The
Policy Committee may receive assistance of individuals or groups of
individuals, as it deems necessary, in reviewing the existing policies of
the school to determine whether a policy requires revision.

Adopted:

Amended:
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Board Approval

Approve No

Last Name

Barnett
Carolan
Carrillo
Conde Frendo
Condon-Lorenz
Duenos
Ewing
Flynn
Furch
Gilardi
Gonzales
Hartman
Hickmott
Leonard
Mannion
Matli
Miyano
Nawy
Peake
Pieper
Powers
Repetto

Rochman-Mclntire

Rodriguez
Samuelson
Strazberg

RMCS EMPLOYEE LIST 2016-17

First Name

Vincent
Julie
Susie
Paola
Maddy
Vinessa
Alison (Ali)
Beth
Sara R.
Gina
Adriana
Lisa
Nicole
Michelle
Kelly Griffith
Mary
Emily
Roma
Deanna
Alicia
Grace
Leanne
Lorna
Maria
Haley
Marcy

For Board Approval

Position

River Crew

Admin/Comm Manager

Guide

Finance/Admin Associate
Classroom Assistant

River Crew

Classroom Assistant

Guide

Guide

Front Office Coordinator/Admin Associate
Classroom Assistant

Guide

River Crew

Business Manager

Executive Director/Superintendent
Classroom Assistant/Instruct. Spprt
Guide

River Crew

Guide

Classroom Assistant

Guide

Classroom Assistant

Education Specialist Teacher/Coordination of Std Support Svs
Classroom Assistant

Classroom Assistant
Speech-Language Pathologist



NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN
SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES

Master Contract

2016-2017




Master Contract

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,
NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES

LEA

Contract Year 2016-2017

Nonpublic School
Nonpublic Agency

Type of Contract:

Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved
throughout the term of this contract.

Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement
(ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.

Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The
sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year’s rates for
90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:

When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes
specified above shall amend Section 4 — Term of Master Contract.
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2016-2017 CONTRACT NUMBER:

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY:

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER:

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER
CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract is entered into on July 1, 2016, between ,
hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the
SELPA and

(nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or
“CONTRACTOR” for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students
with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361
and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB 490
(Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that
this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided
to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless
and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or
related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “ISA”) and a Nonpublic Services student Enrollment form as
specified in the LEA Procedures. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall
acknowledge CONTRACTOR’s obligation to provide all services specified in the student’s
Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as “IEP”). The ISA shall be executed within
ninety (90) days of a student’s enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each
student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available
access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including
invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to
as “OAH”) order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for
a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for
the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting
is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the
IEP is signed by the student’s parent.

CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred
to as “CDE”) as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency. All nonpublic school and nonpublic
agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE
Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the
professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, certification and/or credential. A current
copy of CONTRACTOR’s nonpublic school/agency certification or a waiver of such certification
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issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or
before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and
void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the
effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as
stated on CDE certification. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated in Section
24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR
that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide,
respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related
services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400
et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI),
CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority
by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited
to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements
relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs
of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State,
CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both
California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes
in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4)
major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result
in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master
Contract by the LEA.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all
applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations.
CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking
into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion
of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges
and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies
and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss,
damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of
CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to, the
provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional
needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student
discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of
the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation
of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section
56366.4(a).

TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 (Title 5 California
Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the
LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties
acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2017.
In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30", an interim contract may be made available
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as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California
Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the
contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR
is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or
independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized
representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of
ownership or change of authorized representative.

INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR
TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated
herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written
or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written
amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master
Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance,
insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as
applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract
will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an
authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract
rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not
be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract’s effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails
to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety day period, all payments shall cease until
such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by
CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this
Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the
terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and
LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide
special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with
the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be
effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in
effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue
to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between
CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program provided under this Master
Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP. At any
time during the term of this Master Contract, a student’s parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may
request a review of a student’s IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services
specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California
Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(¢e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to
provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the
LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR
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shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result
of lack of provision of services while student was served by the nonpublic school or agency.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with
the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of state and federal law unless
the parent agrees otherwise or an interim alternative educational placement is deemed lawful and
appropriate by LEA or OAH. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning
changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the
Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where
the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of
California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

DEFINITIONS
The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

a. The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the
California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.

b. The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be
responsible for nonpublic school/agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA
representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the
contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract.

C. The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special
education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board
of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing,
which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are
required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(j).

d. The term “qualified” means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document
equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special
education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state
certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the
area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those
requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and
200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations
Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established
in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California
Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a
graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading
to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by
state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (y)).

e The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within
the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant
licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services
or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental
health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available
through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the
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appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards
established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license
as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(r).

f. “Parent” means a biological or adoptive parent, unless the biological or adoptive parent
does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child, a guardian
generally authorized to act as the child’s parent or authorized to make educational decisions
for the child, an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a
grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is
legally responsible for the child’s welfare, a surrogate parent, a foster parent if the authority
of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child’s behalf has
been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations
300.30(b)(1) or (2). Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of
government or the nonpublic school or agency under contract with the LEA for the provision
of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education
Code section 56028).

g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified.

h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed
those in comparable LEA programs.

i. The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California
Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which
instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise
stipulated in an IEP or ISA.

J- It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Agreement” and is referred to
as such in this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by
hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the
signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated
on signature page of this Master Contract.

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and
regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for
at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master
Contract, “records” shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California
Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as
set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of
teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to
record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to
record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior
intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone
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logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such
records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying
credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers,
dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time
sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services
subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s
compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications by-laws; lists
of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general
journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents;
documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank
statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Positive attendance is required.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and
prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and
positions of CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records.
CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student’s record which lists all persons,
agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be
maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title,
agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving
information from the student’s record. Such log needs to record access to the student’s records
by: (a) the student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the
student’s parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational
interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain
copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this
paragraph, “employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR” do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR
shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents’ requests for copies of
student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in
the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to
LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA
and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within
five (5) business days.

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason,
the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR'’s successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall
notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue
in the County where the LEA is located.

MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and
statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking
such maodification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days’ notice of any such
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changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of
the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

TERMINATION

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause
shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the
parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting.
To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice (California
Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to
LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract.
ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6.
CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall
give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect,
during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed
and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover
any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in
connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either
party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

PART I
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property
damage, with limits as follows:

$2,000,000 per occurrence

$ 500,000 fire damage

$ 5,000 medical expenses

$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury

$3,000,000 general aggregate

$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual
molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for
sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a
supplemental policy providing such coverage.

B. Business Auto Liability Insurance for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired
automobiles with a $1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or
to/from students’ homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA,
CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

C. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and
amount covering CONTRACTOR's full liability under the California Workers’
Compensation Insurance and Safety Act and in accordance with applicable state
and federal laws.

Part A — Statutory Limits



Part B - $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 Employers Liability

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage,
including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is
afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by
endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

$1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon
request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such
coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice
provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name
the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured’s premiums on all insurance
policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in
CONTRACTOR'’s obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be declared to and
approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the
CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the
LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its
officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigation.

G. For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR'’s insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and
employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with
it.

H. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or
agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting
the certificate on the certificate.

CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any compensation for any special education and/or related
services provided to any pupil for any period during which CONTRACTOR failed to fully comply with
this Section 15.

PART Il - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A
RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”)

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a residential treatment center
(NPS/RTC), the following insurance policies are required:

A. Commercial General Liability coverage of $3,000,000 per Occurrence and
$6,000,000 in General Aggregate. The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and
the Board of Education as named additional insured and shall provide specifically that
any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall
be deemed excess and the RTC’s insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions
in the RTC’s policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above
$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California
Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations
pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers’
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Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with
limits of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.

C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit
per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides
student bus services, the required coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit
per Occurrence.

D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all
employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies,
equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be $250,000 per
occurrence, with no self-insured retention.

E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum
limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.

F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded
elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by
endorsement, with minimum limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000
general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this
section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board
Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA
Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent
that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act
or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors
or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities).

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board
Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“‘CONTRACTOR
Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent
that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act
or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone
employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR
Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the
self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective
duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Master
Contract.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent
relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under
this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or
make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent,

9



18.

19.

master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties,
or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for
the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of
CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any
and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses,
costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education
and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can
provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If
LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR
within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR'’s original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not
subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to
the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts
for the provision of special education and/or related services (including without limitation
transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and
maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor’s insurance shall
comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original
endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The
endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.
The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received
and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General
Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education
as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this
Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the LEA contract number, name of the
school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school
or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as
contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master
Contract.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of
its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its
Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may
constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including,
but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and
attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate. Pursuant to California Education
code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs
shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney or advocate is employed
or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or
otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with
CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special
education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided
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by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall
apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared
(i.e. before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s school/agency) or whether an
assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services
provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the
appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as “IEE”) and
its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides
ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested.
Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the
LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if
CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a Nonpublic Agency, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized
representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in
relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall
be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three
hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to
any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school
year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a
private pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request
parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process
proceedings.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, race or
ethnicity, religion, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or disability or any
other classification protected by federal or state law, in employment or operation of its programs.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.

FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition
Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR
shall provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition
services) within the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency consistent with the student’s IEP and as
specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it
cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student’s IEP. If student
services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify
LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students,
as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to
parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA
(including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a
condition of the student’s enroliment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide
low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the
student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be
returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or
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when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that
facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health
and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student’s parent(s) for services and/or
activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a)
written notification to the student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or
activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed
by the student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities.
CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of
financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate
public education shall not interfere with the student’s receipt of special education and/or related
services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree
otherwise in writing.

GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of
certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section
56366 et seq., and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an
environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR’s general program of instruction
shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA’s standards
regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses
mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c)
be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d)
provide the services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a)
State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards (“CCSS”) for curriculum
and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide
standards — aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used
by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation
courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career
preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal
law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological
counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide
to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR
leading toward graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall
not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA’s
graduation requirements, including, but not limited to, Section Education Codes 60851.5 and
Section 60851.6 related to the suspension of the California High School Exit Exam (CAHSEE).

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s
general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors
and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the
student’s IEP and ISA. The nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall
develop a written treatment plan that specifies the nature of their nonpublic agency service for each
student within thirty (30) days of enroliment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-
based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or
provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by
a CONTRACTOR that is a licensed children’s institution, all services not provided in the school
setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services,
provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to
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authorize emergency services as requested. Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI)
CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present
during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately
notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall
provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date
of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a
trained Behavior Intervention Manager or trained equivalent on staff. Itis understood that Behavior
Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional
program.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor
subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree
otherwise in writing.

INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, the total number of instructional minutes per school
day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes
per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified
in the student’s ISA developed in accordance with the student’s IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the
student’s IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and
pass time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code. prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of
annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless
otherwise specified in the student’s IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, the total number of
minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student’s ISA
developed in accordance with the student’s IEP.

CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not
exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree
otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size
may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary
during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a nonpublic school is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct
instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of
Education Certification of that school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure
appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school
and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be
increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall
be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a nonpublic agency.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs

between the ages of three (3) and five (5) years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate
instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.
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CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a
school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed days, plus up to
extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA’s
extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on
the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA)
for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend
the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master
Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the students’ IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site.
A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by
his/her IEP Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school
year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team
convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days
must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during
extended school year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for
CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be
provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by
the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic school service. Any instructional
days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the
CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day,
Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day,
President’s Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR
may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays
observed by LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-
developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to
observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall
provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA
student’s IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student’s ISA, CONTRACTOR shall
provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student’s school of
attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for
services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless
CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in
attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to
be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on
weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in
writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic agency service provided by CONTRACTOR.
Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial
responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing
information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and all sections
of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all
nonpublic school and agencies shall utilize the Special Education Information System (SEIS) or
comparable system approved by the LEA and SELPA for all IEP development and progress
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reporting. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the
CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow
adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data
including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may
approve use of CONTRACTOR’S provided forms at their discretion.

LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive
Environment (“LRE”) options and/or dual enroliment options if available and appropriate, for
students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers
to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team
meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP
team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for
placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school
setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended
activities to support the transition.

STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, per implementation of Senate Bill 484,
CONTRACTOR shall administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of
Student Performance and Progress (“CAASP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (‘DRDP”),
achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram,
and the California English Language Development Test (‘CELDT”), as appropriate to the student,
and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education
Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with
CONTRACTOR hy the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with
that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S
gualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all
coding requirements as required by LEA.

MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy
and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school
graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of
students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services,
and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of
mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 56521.1 and
56521.2. LEA students who exhibit serious behavioral challenges must receive timely and
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appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal
law and it's implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team
determines that a student’s behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP
team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other
strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20
of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of
developing a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to
address the student’s behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and
behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section
56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. Evidence of such
training shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within six (6) days of
any new hire. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis
intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies.
Training includes certification with an approved SELPA crisis intervention program.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a
substitute for a BIP, and instead may only be used to control behavior that is unpredictable and
spontaneous. For an emergency intervention to be used, the behavior must pose a clear and
present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others. Before
emergency interventions may be applied, the behavior must be of the kind that cannot be
immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique
used to contain the behavior. Emergency intervention shall not be employed longer than necessary
to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must
seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is
defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present
danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student,
self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been
used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or
may not have been used. Emergencies require a behavior emergency report form be completed
and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR
shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student does not BIP or
Positive Behavior Intervention Plan (“PBIP”), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the
behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral
assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall
review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral
interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP
meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent
to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:
(1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited
to, electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise
unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention
that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom
facilities. (4) An intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the
individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive
emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that
simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone
containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained
personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility
otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes
adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or
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32.

more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or
that of others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive
behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent
with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal
regulations.

(Added by Stats. 2013, Ch. 48, Sec. 43. Effective July 1, 2013.)

STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent
with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for
disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA
and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include,
but not be limited to: the student’'s name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the
disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy
of the student’'s behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report.
CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting
no later than the tenth (10" day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA
representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress
of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the
requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student
continue to be best met at the nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are
necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California
Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code
section 56345 (b) (4).)

If LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school
for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities
provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each
activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities
provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular
education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any
representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract,
CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom
ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the
parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student’s IEP, subject to all
procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of,
the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at
a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR
shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon
request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP
meeting is part of CONTRACTOR’S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under
this Master Contract unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the LEA.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA
for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA’s discretion. The SELPA shall provide
training for any NPS and NPA to assure access to THE APPROVED SYSTEM. The NPS and/or
NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on THE APPROVED SYSTEM and shall protect
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34.

35.

36.

the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS, the NPS/NPA
shall discontinue use of THE APPROVED SYSTEM for that student.

Changes in any student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional
setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the
student’s IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of
placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of
consideration of a change in the student’s placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last
agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an interim alternative
educational placement is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH.

SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. A pupil in foster care shall
be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually
notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has desighated as the educational liaison for foster
children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a nonpublic school by the LEA any time after the
completion of the pupil’s second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil
in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless
provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including
mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the
investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of
California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency.
Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to
provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all
documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR’s program and/or the
implementation of a particular student’s IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan (“IFSP”).

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent
complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students
with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint
Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2)
Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a);
(3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student
Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in
compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”). CONTRACTOR
shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis,
CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At
a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A
copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR’s place of
business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student’s parent(s).
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38.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation
used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets,
observation notes, data sheets, pre/post-tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to
determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior
intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of
service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business
days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other assessment of the student one month prior to
the student’s annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student’s
present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and
regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall
provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of
the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain
supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available
to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all assessment costs regarding the updating of goals and
objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments
shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR
perform such additional assessment. Any assessment costs may be added to the ISA and/or
approved separately by the LEA at the LEA’s sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA.
For Nonpublic Agency services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title
5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA.
Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program
design consistent with professional standards for each professional’s license, certification, or
credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student’s parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress
reports, report cards, and/or any assessments, interviews, or meetings. It is understood that all
billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that
copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil’s record and
shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close
of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12)
inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student’s school of residence for
evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures.
CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom
transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of
residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the student’s change of residence as specified in
LEA Procedures. Upon enroliment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation
to notify CONTRACTOR of the student’s change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and
provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student’s
change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this
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40.
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provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the student’s change
of residence.

WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5)
business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services,
including student’s change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and
student’s discharge against professional advice from a Nonpublic Schools/Residential Treatment
Center (“NPS/RTC”). CONTRACTOR shall assist LEA to verify and clear potential dropouts three
(3) times per year, as required by the 2001 Elementary and Secondary Education Act (No Child
Left Behind; NCLB), as documentation of graduation rate is one of the indicators of Adequate
Yearly Progress (“AYP”).

PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including,
but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student
living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits
and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent’s
reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC.
CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits
from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall
facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as
appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through
the LEA.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student’s home as specified in the IEP shall assure that
at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make
decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent
shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and
signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of
caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot
also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

For services provided in a pupil’'s home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that
the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All
problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided to
the LEA.

SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

If CONTRACTOR provides services on LEA public school campuses, CONTRACTOR shall comply
with Penal Code Section 627.1 et. seq., and LEA procedures regarding visitors to school campuses
specified by LEA policy and in the LEA procedures, and the procedures of the campus being visited.
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for purchase and provision of the supplies and assessment
tools necessary to implement the provision of services on LEA public school campuses.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed along

with all procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood
that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the educational program
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42.

and all nonpublic agency service providers shall work collaboratively with the classroom teacher,
who shall remain in charge of the instructional program.

Itis understood, that all employees, subcontractors and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school
or agency shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing services. All practices
shall be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of
conduct for each profession. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the
provision of the contract.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall
ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority
to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult
caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based
services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver
cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All
problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or
written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL
TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI"),
CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI
students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9, Health and Safety Code section
1501.1(b), AB 1858, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and the procedures set forth in the
LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a
condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated
with a residential treatment center (hereinafter referred to as “NPS/RTC”), CONTRACTOR shall
adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20
U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and
reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20
U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., title 5, section 3001 et
seq., Cal. Code Regs., title 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of counseling services,
including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s IEPs.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated
with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including
those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified special education students,
the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enroliment and; 2) the educational
placement and services specified in each student’s IEP at the time of enroliment.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully
executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with
nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP
team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the
student’s parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR
that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide,
respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related
services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400
et seq.).
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44,

STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal
Mandate under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for periodic monitoring of
each student’s instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each
student’s progress. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the
instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student’s records and progress.
Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall
initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to
participate in the review of each student’s progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, LEA shall annually evaluate whether
CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code
section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (“Superintendent”) shall monitor CONTRACTOR’S
facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the
teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being
employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows:
(1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct
an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA and CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be
conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with
California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of
the nonpublic school, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract
compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to
review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without
cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of
health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural
compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and
prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance
with California Education Code Section 33126.

PERSONNEL

45.

CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237,
35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California
Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau
of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers
who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby
agrees that CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students
until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that
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none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will
have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students
have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education
Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee’s conviction of a violent or serious felony, he
or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code
section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification
that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has
enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and
employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption
for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed
by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting two (2) sets of
fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice
and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying
criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the
LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enroliment in subsequent
arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic,
nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as
specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency.
Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by
California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by
CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a
license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are
required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and
are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58,
and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified
staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification
or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or
authority for another related services provider or special education teacher’s scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and
services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through
documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as
curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional
development.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional
aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California
Education Code sections 45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq. Specifically, all paraprofessionals,
including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or
otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized
instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent)
and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an
institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s (or higher) degree; or (¢) met a
rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i)
knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii)
knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and
mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations
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governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to
supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR
that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or
licensed by that state to provide special education and related services and designated instruction
and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20
U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials,
certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education
and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-
contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits
or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools.
CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur
which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to students as specified
in the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint
clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees,
approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any
student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other
documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR.
CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel
changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA
students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses,
certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an
administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this
Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person
whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or
otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master
Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may
result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this
Master Contract by the LEA.

STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, and
CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined
in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides
appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers. It is understood that the parent
of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for
services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation
evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30)
calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR
shall not “bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.
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STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR
SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

Itis understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school
or agency shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing
services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the
professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as
specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR. Reports
regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of this Master Contract.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/fout procedures shall be followed by
nonpublic agency providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures
for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall
be made available to the CONTRACTOR. It is understood that the public school credentialed
classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

For services provided in a pupil’'s home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that
the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All
problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the
LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

50.

51.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations,
ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety.
CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021
et. seq., 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of
CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA
documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by
CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a
student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care
precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety
Code.

FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but
not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire
warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic
school, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations
section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications
to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major
modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification
and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.
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53.

54.

55.

56.

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423
when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter
medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student
with the administration of such medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR:
(a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and
time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the
student’s parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in
the physician’s statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request,
copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to
whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student’s name; the type of
medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s
employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for
assuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with
physician’s written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or
schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the
LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the
procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that
they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting
obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11165.7, AB 1432, and
Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and
alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical
mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and
verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes
the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the
CONTRACTOR’s policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to
make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual
harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees
regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government
Code 12950.1.

REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and
agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education
Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting
and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The
written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.
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FINANCIAL

57.

ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING,
AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to
provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in
such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting,
attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as
specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special
education and/or related services specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA
shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed
by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related
service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus
aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking
documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and
each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall
appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the
effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall
verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for
payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar
month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall
be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner
prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following
information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved
calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided
the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice;
date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is
accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that
attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with
this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly
or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when
the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be
included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an
electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training
provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting
period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based
on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract
within forty-five (45) days of LEA’s receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared
and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA.
CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30)
calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing
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58.

invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is
received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through
June) extend beyond December 31 after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling
for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close
of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues
directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal
year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that
the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month
period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in
whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services
rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in
attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as
determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d)
CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC
56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are
not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to
school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in
CONTRACTOR’s educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s change of
residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to
notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from
Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is
understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months
following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination
of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment
claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until
completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be
completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous
payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of
correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the
preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform;
(b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory
documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services
provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the
proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date
the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by
Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten
(10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is
withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment
and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice,
CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form
the basis for LEA’s withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct
the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR’s written request showing good cause, LEA shall

28



59.

60.

extend CONTRACTOR’s time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days),
otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that
payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the
reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR’s notice
within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made
or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within
thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the
LEA’s response to CONTRACTOR’s notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation

policy.

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA’s
Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the
CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning
the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State
Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code
Section 56366(c) (2).

PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs
associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon
request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing,
and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of
special education and/or related services to students.

PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall
provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in
accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA
documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall
remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or
services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute
teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined
in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services
unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing
the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days
from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in
student’s |EP.

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10™) cumulative day of a student’s
unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA
Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California
Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on
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days that a student’s attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA)
reimbursement under state law. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full
instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of
the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services
for days on which a student’s attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (“ADA”)
reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR'’s service provider is absent,
CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as
determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of
CONTRACTOR’s service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is
provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up”
services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the
services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over’ make up
service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR
and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided
shall be included.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later
than the fifth (5") consecutive service day of the student’s absence, as specified in the LEA
Procedures. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the
books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect
all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student
records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of
teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related
services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by
instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence
verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff
lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications,
social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff
and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school
calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance
policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of
directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state
payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile
thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make
available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by
CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR’s offices
(to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided
to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost
to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA’s rights under this section shall also
include access to CONTRACTOR’s offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s
employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made
available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.
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63.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the
requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by
LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent
agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s
over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract,
LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and
specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree
in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s
over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master
Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency,
and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty
(30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice demanding payment.

RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and
maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that
can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a
full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic
education rate shall be based on the percentage of a 314-minute instructional day.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified
personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or
related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

(a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the
award of contracts by any Federal agency, and

(b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government
contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the
submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property;
and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government
entity with, commission of any of these offenses.
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The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives.

This contract is effective on the 1t day of July, 2016 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2017, unless

sooner terminated as provided herein.

CONTRACTOR

Nonpublic School/Agency

By:

Signature Date

Name and Title of Authorized
Representative

Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:

LEA

By:

Signature Date

Name and Title of Authorized
Representative

Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:

Name and Title

Name and Title

Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider LEA

Address Address

City State Zip City State Zip
Phone Fax Phone Fax

Email Email

Additional LEA Notification
(Required if completed)

Name and Title

Address

City State Zip
Phone Fax
Email
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EXHIBIT A:  2016-2017 RATES

4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR

The CONTRACTOR:

The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER:

PER ED CODE 56366 — TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of
this contract, as negotiated by the SDCOE on behalf of the LEAs, shall be as follows:

a. General Program Tuition Rate

1) Inclusive Education Program
(Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language
services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student’s
IEP.) DAILY RATE:

2) Related Services

SERVICE RATE PERIOD

Intensive Individual Services (340)

Language and Speech (415)

Adapted Physical Education (425)

Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)

Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)

Assistive Technology Services (445)

6ccupational Therapy (450)

Physical Therapy (460)

Individual Counseling (510)

Counseling and Guidance (515)

Parent Counseling (520)

Social Work Services (525)

Psychological Services (530)

Behavior Intervention Services (535)

Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)

Interpreter Services (715)
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Audiological Services (720)

Specialized Vision Services (725)

Orientation and Mobility (730)

Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)

Reader Services (745)

Transcription Services (755)

Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)

College Awareness (820)

Work Experience Education (850)

Job Coaching (855)

Mentoring (860)

Travel Training (870)

Other Transition Services (890)

Other (900)

Other (900)
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INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES
(Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.)

This agreement is effective on or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a nonpublic agency,
if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 201__, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Master Contract and by
applicable law.

Local Education Agency Nonpublic School
LEA Case Manager: Name Phone Number
Pupil Name SexJJM[F Grade:

(Last) (First) (M.1)
Address City State/Zip
DOB Residential Setting: [] Home [] Foster [] LCI # [J OTHER
Parent/Guardian Phone ( ) ( )

(Residence) (Business)
Address City State/Zip
(If different from student)
AGREEMENT TERMS:
Nonpublic School: The average number of minutes in the instructional day will be: during the regular school year
during the extended school year

Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are: during the regular school year

during the extended school year

Educational services as specified in the IEP shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR and paid at the rates specified below.

INCLUSIVE EDUCATION PROGRAM: (Applies to nonpublic schools only): Daily Rate:

Estimated Number of Days x Daily Rate = PROJECTED BASIC EDUCATION COSTS (A)

B. RELATED SERVICES:

Provider
SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER # of Times per Cost per Maximum Estimated
Specify wk/molyr., session Number of Maximum Total

Duration; Sessions Cost for
or per IEP; Contracted Period

or as needed

Intensive Individual Services (340)

Language/Speech Therapy (415)
a. Individual
b. Group

Adapted Physical Ed. (425)

Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical
Health Care (435)

Health and Nursing Services: Other (436)

Assistive Technology Services (445)
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SERVICE

Provider

LEA

NPS

OTHER
Specify

# of Times per
wk/molyr.,
Duration;
or per IEP;

or as needed

Cost per
session

Maximum
Number of
Sessions

Estimated
Maximum Total
Cost for

Contracted Period

Occupational Therapy (450)

Physical Therapy (460)

Individual Counseling (510)

Counseling and guidance (515).

Parent Counseling (520)

Social Work Services (525)

Psychological Services (530)

Behavior Intervention Services (535)

Specialized Services for Low Incidence
Disabilities (610)

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Services (710)

Interpreter Services (715)

Audiological Services (720)

Specialized Vision Services (725)

Orientation and Mobility (730)

Braille Transcription (735)

Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)

Reader Services (745)
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Provider

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER # of Times per Cost per Maximum Estimated
Specify wk/molyr., session Number of Maximum Total
Duration; Sessions Cost for
or per IEP; Contracted Period

or as needed

Note Taking Services (750)

Transcription Services (755)

Recreation Services (760)

College Awareness Preparation (820)

Vocational Assessment, Counseling,
Guidance and Career Assessment (830)

Career Awareness (840)

Work Experience Education (850)

Mentoring (860)

Agency Linkages (865)

Travel Training (870)

Other Transition Services (890)

Other (900)J

Other (900)

Transportation-Emergency
b. Transportation-Parent

Bus Passes

Professional Development

ESTIMATED MAXIMUM RELATED SERVICES COST (C)$

D. SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES $

TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BASIC EDUCATION/RELATED SERVICES COSTS/
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SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES (A, C, & D) or (B, C, & D) $

4, Other Provisions/Attachments:

5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD ON

6. Progress Reporting Requirements: Quarterly Monthly Other (Specify)

MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD ON

The parties hereto have executed this Individual Services Agreement by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives
as set forth below.

-CONTRACTOR- -DISTRICT-
(Name of Nonpublic School/Agency) (Name of School District)
(Signature) (Date)  (Signature) (Date)
(Name and Title) (Name of Superintendent or Authorized Designee)
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Adopted: January 25, 2014
Revised:

UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Scope
The River Montessori Charter School (“Charter School”) policy is to comply with applicable

federal and state laws and regulations. The Charter School is the local agency primarily
responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing educational
programs. Pursuant to this policy, persons responsible for conducting investigations shall be
knowledgeable about the laws and programs which they are assigned to investigate. This
complaint procedure is adopted to provide a uniform system of complaint processing for the
following types of complaints:

(1) Compilaints of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any
protected group, including actual or perceived discrimination, on the basis of the actual or
perceived characteristics of age, ancestry, color, disability, ethnic group identification, gender
expression, gender identity, gender, genetic information, nationality, national origin, race or
ethnicity, religion, sex, or sexual orientation, or on the basis of a person’s association with a
person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics in any Charter
School program or activity; and

(2) Compilaints of violations of state or federal law and regulations governing the following
programs including but not limited to: Adult Education Programs, After School Education and
Safety Programs, Agricultural Vocational Education Programs, American Indian Education
Centers and Early Child Education Program Assessments, Consolidated Categorical Aid
Programs, Career Technical and Technical Education and Career Technical and Technical
Training Programs, Child Care and Development Programs, Child Nutrition Programs, Foster
and Homeless Youth Services, Migrant Education Programs, No Child Left Behind Act (2001)
Programs (Titles I-VII), including improving academic achievement, compensatory education,
limited English proficiency, and migrant education, Regional Occupational Centers and
Programs, Special Education Programs, State Preschool, and Tobacco-Use Prevention
Education.

(3) A complaint may also be filed alleging that a pupil enrolled in a public school was required to
pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity as those terms are defined below.
a. “Educational activity” means an activity offered by a school, school district, charter
school or county office of education that constitutes an integral fundamental part of
elementary and secondary education, including, but not limited to, curricular and
extracurricular activities.

b. “Pupil fee” means a fee, deposit or other charge imposed on pupils, or a pupil’s parents
or guardians, in violation of Section 49011 of the Education Code and Section 5 of



Article IX of the California Constitution, which require educational activities to be
provided free of charge to all pupils without regard to their families’ ability or
willingness to pay fees or request special waivers, as provided for in Hertzell v. Connell
(1984) 35 Cal.3d 899. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:

i. A fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as
ii. A security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a
lock, locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, uniform or other

materials or equipment.

iii. A purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies,
equipment or uniforms associated with an educational activity.

c. A pupil fees complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or
information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with laws
relating to pupil fees.

d. If the Charter School finds merit in a pupil fees complaint the Charter School shall
provide a remedy to all affected pupils, parents, and guardians that, where applicable,
includes reasonable efforts by the Charter School to ensure full reimbursement to all
affected pupils, parents, and guardians, subject to procedures established through
regulations adopted by the state board.

e. Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to prohibit solicitation of voluntary
donations of funds or property, voluntary participation in fundraising activities, or
school districts, school, and other entities from providing pupils prizes or other
recognition for voluntarily participating in fundraising activities.

(4) Complaints of noncompliance with the requirements governing the Local Control Funding
Formula or Sections 47606.5 and 47607.3 of the Education Code, as applicable.

(5) Compilaints of noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code Section 222
regarding the rights of lactating pupils on a school campus. If the Charter School finds merit in a
complaint, or if the Superintendent finds merit in an appeal, the Charter School shall provide a
remedy to the affected pupil. The Charter School acknowledges and respects every individual’s
rights to privacy. Unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints shall
be investigated in a manner that protects (to the greatest extent reasonably possible) the
confidentiality of the parties and the integrity of the process. The Charter School cannot
guarantee anonymity of the complainant. This includes keeping the identity of the complainant
confidential. However, the Charter School will attempt to do so as appropriate. The Charter
School may find it necessary to disclose information regarding the complaint/complainant to the
extent necessary to carry out the investigation or proceedings, as determined by the Executive
Director/Principal or designee on a case-by-case basis.



The Charter School prohibits any form of retaliation against any complainant in the complaint
process, including but not limited to a complainant’s filing of a complaint or the reporting of
instances of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. Such participation
shall not in any way affect the status, grades or work assignments of the complainant.

Compliance Officers
The Governing Board designates the following compliance officer(s) to receive and investigate
complaints and to ensure the Charter School’s compliance with law:

Kelly Mannion, Executive Director/Principal
River Montessori Charter School

3880 Cypress Drive

Petaluma, CA 94954

(707) 778-6414

The Executive Director/Principal or designee shall ensure that employees designated to
investigate complaints are knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are
responsible.Designated employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the
Executive Director/Principal or designee. Should a complaint be filed against the Director, the
compliance officer for that case shall be the Chair of the Board of Directors or a designated
board member with board approval.

Notifications

The Executive Director/Principal or designee shall annually provide written notification of the
Charter School’s uniform complaint procedures to students, employees, parents/guardians,
advisory committees, private school officials and other interested parties (e.g. Adult Education).
The annual notice shall be in English, and when necessary, in the primary language, pursuant
to

section 48985 of the Education Code if fifteen (15) percent or more of the pupils enrolled in the
Charter School speak a single primary language other than English. The Executive
Director/Principal or designee shall make available copies of the Charter School’s uniform
complaint procedures free of charge.

The annual notice shall include the following:

(a) A statement that the Charter School is primarily responsible for compliance with federal
and state laws and regulations.

(b) A statement that a pupil enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a pupil
fee for participation in an educational activity.

(c) A statement identifying the responsible staff member, position, or unit designated to
receive complaints.

(d) A statement that the complainant has a right to appeal the Charter School's decision to
the CDE by filing a written appeal within 15 days of receiving the Charter School’s
decision.



(e) A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available
under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, if
applicable, and of the appeal pursuant to Education Code § 262.3.

(f) A statement that copies of the local educational agency complaint procedures shall be
available free of charge.

Procedures

The following procedures shall be used to address all complaints which allege that the Charter
School has violated federal or state laws or regulations governing educational programs.
Compliance officers shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions.
All parties involved in allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed, when a complaint
meeting or hearing is scheduled, and when a decision or ruling is made.

Step 1: Filing of Complaint

Any individual, public agency, or organization may file a written complaint of alleged
noncompliance by the Charter School. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation or bullying shall be initiated no later than six (6) months from the
date when the alleged discrimination occurred, or six (6) months from the date when the
complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation or bullying. A complaint may be filed by a person who alleges
that he/she personally suffered unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or
bullying or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals
has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying.

Pupil fee complaints shall be filed not later than one (1) year from the date the alleged
violation occurred. The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall
maintain a log of complaints received, providing each with a code number and date stamp.
If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a
disability or illiteracy, Charter School staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.

Step 2: Mediation

Within three (3) days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally
discuss with the complainant the possibility of using mediation. If the complainant agrees
to mediation, the compliance officer shall make arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of an unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or
bullying complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to make the
mediator a party to related confidential information. If the mediation process does not
resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer shall proceed with
his/her investigation of the complaint. The use of mediation shall not extend the Charter
School’s timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint unless the complainant
agrees in writing to such an extension of time.

Step 3: Investigation of Complaint



The compliance officer is encouraged to hold an investigative meeting within five (5) days
of receiving the complaint or an unsuccessful attempt to mediate the complaint. This
meeting shall provide an opportunity for the complainant and/or his/her representative to
repeat the complaint orally. The complainant and/or his/her representative shall have an
opportunity to present the complaint and evidence or information leading to evidence to
support the allegations in the complaint. A complainant’s refusal to provide the Charter
School’s investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the
complaint, or his/her failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation or his/her
engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the
complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation.

The Charter School’s refusal to provide the investigator with access to records and/or
other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or its failure or refusal to
cooperate in the investigation or its engagement in any other obstruction of the
investigation, may result in a finding, based on evidence collected, that a violation has
occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.

Step 4: Response

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall
prepare and send to the complainant a written report of the Charter School’s investigation
and decision, as described in Step #5 below, within-sixty thirty {66) (30) days of the
Charter School’s receipt of the complaint.

Step 5: Final Written Decision

The Charter-Seheels-deeision-compliance officers decision shall be in writing and sent to
the complainant. The Eharter-Sehoets decision shall be written in English and in the
language of the complainant whenever feasible or as required by law. The decision shall
include:

1. The findings of fact based on evidence gathered.

2. The conclusion(s) of law.

3. Disposition of the complaint.

4. Rationale for such disposition.

5. Corrective actions, if any are warranted.

6. Notice of the complainant’s right to appeal the Charter School’s decision within fifteen (15) days to
the CDE and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal.

7. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising
under state law, notice that the complainant must wait until sixty (60) days have elapsed
from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies.

8. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising
under federal law such complaint may be made at any time to the U.S. Department of
Education, Office for Civil Rights.



If an employee is disciplined as a result of the complaint, the decision shall simply state
that effective action was taken and that the employee was informed of the Charter
School’s expectations. The report shall not give any further information as to the nature of
the disciplinary action.

If the complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer’s decision, he/she may, within
five days, file his/lher complaint in writing with the Board of Directors. The Board may
consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting within
60 days. The Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance
officer’s decision shall be final. If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer
shall send the Board’s decision to the complainant within 60 days of the written complaint
to the board or within the time period that has been specified in a written agreement with
the complainant.

Appeals to the California Department of Education

If dissatisfied with the Sharter-Seheels Board of Directors’ decision, the complainant may
appeal in writing to the CDE within fifteen (15) days of receiving the Sharter-Seheels decision.
When appealing to the CDE, the complainant must specify the basis for the appeal of the
decision and whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal
shall be accompanied by a copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the Charter School’s
decision.

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed the Charter School’s decision,
the Executive Director/Principal or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE:

1. A copy of the original complaint.

2. A copy of the decision.

3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the Charter School, if not covered
by the decision.

4. A copy of the investigation file, including but not limited to all notes, interviews, and

documents submitted by all parties and gathered by the investigator.

5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint.

6. A copy of the Charter School’s complaint procedures.

7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE.

The CDE may directly intervene in the complaint without waiting for action by the Charter School
when one of the conditions listed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 4650 exists,
including cases in which the Charter School has not taken action within sixty (60) days of the
date the complaint was filed with the Charter School.

Civil Law Remedies



A complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the Charter School’s
complaint procedures. Complainants may seek assistance from mediation centers or
public/private interest attorneys. Civil law remedies that may be imposed by a court include, but
are not limited to, injunctions and restraining orders. For unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation or bullying complaints arising under state law, however, a complainant must wait
until sixty (60) days have elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil
law remedies. The moratorium does not apply to injunctive relief and is applicable only if the
Charter School has appropriately, and in a timely manner, apprised the complainant of his/her
right to file a complaint in accordance with 5CCR 4622.



Adopted: January 25, 2014
Revised: February 17, 2016

Scope

UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The River Montessori Charter School (“Charter School”) policy is to comply with applicable federal
and state laws and regulations. The Charter School is the local agency primarily responsible for
compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing educational programs. Pursuant to
this policy, persons responsible for conducting investigations shall be knowledgeable about the laws
and programs which they are assigned to investigate. This complaint procedure is adopted to provide a
uniform system of complaint processing for the following types of complaints:

1)

(@)

(3)

Complaints of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any
protected group, including actual or perceived discrimination, on the basis of the actual or
perceived characteristics of age, ancestry, color, disability, ethnic group identification, gender
expression, gender identity, gender, genetic information, nationality, national origin, race or
ethnicity, religion, sex, or sexual orientation, or on the basis of a person’s association with a
person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics in any Charter
School program or activity; and

Complaints of violations of state or federal law and regulations governing the following
programs including but not limited to: Adult Education Programs, After School Education and
Safety Programs, Agricultural Vocational Education Programs, American Indian Education
Centers and Early Child Education Program Assessments, Consolidated Categorical Aid
Programs, Career Technical and Technical Education and Career Technical and Technical
Training Programs, Child Care and Development Programs, Child Nutrition Programs, Foster
and Homeless Youth Services, Migrant Education Programs, No Child Left Behind Act (2001)
Programs (Titles 1-V1I), including improving academic achievement, compensatory education,
limited English proficiency, and migrant education, Regional Occupational Centers and
Programs, Special Education Programs, State Preschool, and Tobacco-Use Prevention
Education.

A complaint may also be filed alleging that a pupil enrolled in a public school was required to
pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity as those terms are defined below.

a. “Educational activity” means an activity offered by a school, school district, charter
school or county office of education that constitutes an integral fundamental part of
elementary and secondary education, including, but not limited to, curricular and
extracurricular activities.

b. “Pupil fee” means a fee, deposit or other charge imposed on pupils, or a pupil’s parents
or guardians, in violation of Section 49011 of the Education Code and Section 5 of
Article IX of the California Constitution, which require educational activities to be
provided free of charge to all pupils without regard to their families’ ability or
willingness to pay fees or request special waivers, as provided for in Hertzell v. Connell
(1984) 35 Cal.3d 899. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:
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i. A fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as
a condition for participation in a class or an extracurricular activity, regardless
of whether the class or activity is elective or compulsory, or is for credit.

ii. A security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a
lock, locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, uniform or other
materials or equipment.

iii. A purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies,
equipment or uniforms associated with an educational activity.

c. A pupil fees complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or
information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with laws
relating to pupil fees.

d. If the Charter School finds merit in a pupil fees complaint the Charter School shall
provide a remedy to all affected pupils, parents, and guardians that, where applicable,
includes reasonable efforts by the Charter School to ensure full reimbursement to all
affected pupils, parents, and guardians, subject to procedures established through
regulations adopted by the state board.

e. Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to prohibit solicitation of voluntary
donations of funds or property, voluntary participation in fundraising activities, or
school districts, school, and other entities from providing pupils prizes or other
recognition for voluntarily participating in fundraising activities.

4) Complaints of noncompliance with the requirements governing the Local Control Funding
Formula or Sections 47606.5 and 47607.3 of the Education Code, as applicable.

(5) Complaints of noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code Section 222 regarding
the rights of lactating pupils on a school campus. If the Charter School finds merit in a
complaint, or if the Superintendent finds merit in an appeal, the Charter School shall provide a
remedy to the affected pupil.

The Charter School acknowledges and respects every individual’s rights to privacy. Unlawful
discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints shall be investigated in a manner that
protects (to the greatest extent reasonably possible) the confidentiality of the parties and the integrity
of the process. The Charter School cannot guarantee anonymity of the complainant. This includes
keeping the identity of the complainant confidential. However, the Charter School will attempt to do
so as appropriate. The Charter School may find it necessary to disclose information regarding the
complaint/complainant to the extent necessary to carry out the investigation or proceedings, as
determined by the Executive Director/Principal or designee on a case-by-case basis.

The Charter School prohibits any form of retaliation against any complainant in the complaint process,
including but not limited to a complainant’s filing of a complaint or the reporting of instances of
unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. Such participation shall not in any way
affect the status, grades or work assignments of the complainant.
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Compliance Officers

The Governing Board designates the following compliance officer(s) to receive and investigate
complaints and to ensure the Charter School’s compliance with law:

Kelly Mannion, Executive Director/Principal
River Montessori Charter School

3880 Cypress Drive

Petaluma, CA 94954

(707) 778-6414

The Executive Director/Principal or designee shall ensure that employees designated to investigate
complaints are knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are responsible.
Designated employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Executive
Director/Principal or designee.

Notifications

The Executive Director/Principal or designee shall annually provide written notification of the Charter
School’s uniform complaint procedures to students, employees, parents/guardians, advisory
committees, private school officials and other interested parties (e.g. Adult Education).

The annual notice shall be in English, and when necessary, in the primary language, pursuant to
section 48985 of the Education Code if fifteen (15) percent or more of the pupils enrolled in the
Charter School speak a single primary language other than English.

The Executive Director/Principal or designee shall make available copies of the Charter School’s
uniform complaint procedures free of charge.

The annual notice shall include the following:

(a) A statement that the Charter School is primarily responsible for compliance with federal and
state laws and regulations.

(b) A statement that a pupil enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for
participation in an educational activity.

(c) A statement identifying the responsible staff member, position, or unit designated to receive
complaints.

(d) A statement that the complainant has a right to appeal the Charter School's decision to the CDE
by filing a written appeal within 15 days of receiving the Charter School’s decision.

(e) A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available under
state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, if applicable, and of
the appeal pursuant to Education Code § 262.3.

(F) A statement that copies of the local educational agency complaint procedures shall be available
free of charge.
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Procedures

The following procedures shall be used to address all complaints which allege that the Charter School
has violated federal or state laws or regulations governing educational programs. Compliance officers
shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions.

All parties involved in allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed, when a complaint
meeting or hearing is scheduled, and when a decision or ruling is made.

J Step 1: Filing of Complaint

Any individual, public agency, or organization may file a written complaint of alleged
noncompliance by the Charter School.

A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying shall be
initiated no later than six (6) months from the date when the alleged discrimination occurred, or
six (6) months from the date when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the
alleged unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. A complaint may be
filed by a person who alleges that he/she personally suffered unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation or bullying or by a person who believes that an individual or any
specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation or bullying.

Pupil fee complaints shall be filed not later than one (1) year from the date the alleged violation
occurred.

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of
complaints received, providing each with a code number and date stamp.

If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or
illiteracy, Charter School staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.

J Step 2: Mediation

Within three (3) days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss
with the complainant the possibility of using mediation. If the complainant agrees to
mediation, the compliance officer shall make arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of an unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or
bullying complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to make the
mediator a party to related confidential information.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the
compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the Charter School’s timelines for investigating and
resolving the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time.
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o Step 3: Investigation of Complaint

The compliance officer is encouraged to hold an investigative meeting within five (5) days of
receiving the complaint or an unsuccessful attempt to mediate the complaint. This meeting
shall provide an opportunity for the complainant and/or his/her representative to repeat the
complaint orally.

The complainant and/or his/her representative shall have an opportunity to present the
complaint and evidence or information leading to evidence to support the allegations in the
complaint.

A complainant’s refusal to provide the Charter School’s investigator with documents or other
evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or his/her failure or refusal to cooperate in
the investigation or his/her engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result
in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation.

The Charter School’s refusal to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other
information related to the allegation in the complaint, or its failure or refusal to cooperate in the
investigation or its engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a
finding, based on evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and may result in the
imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.

o Step 4: Response
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall
prepare and send to the complainant a written report of the Charter School’s investigation and
decision, as described in Step #5 below, within sixty (60) days of the Charter School’s receipt
of the complaint.

o Step 5: Final Written Decision
The Charter School’s decision shall be in writing and sent to the complainant. The Charter
School’s decision shall be written in English and in the language of the complainant whenever

feasible or as required by law.

The decision shall include:

1. The findings of fact based on evidence gathered.
2. The conclusion(s) of law.
3. Disposition of the complaint.
4. Rationale for such disposition.
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5. Corrective actions, if any are warranted.

6. Notice of the complainant’s right to appeal the Charter School’s decision within fifteen
(15) days to the CDE and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal.

7. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising
under state law, notice that the complainant must wait until sixty (60) days have elapsed
from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies.

8. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising
under federal law such complaint may be made at any time to the U.S. Department of
Education, Office for Civil Rights.

If an employee is disciplined as a result of the complaint, the decision shall simply state that
effective action was taken and that the employee was informed of the Charter School’s
expectations. The report shall not give any further information as to the nature of the
disciplinary action.

Appeals to the California Department of Education

If dissatisfied with the Charter School’s decision, the complainant may appeal in writing to the CDE
within fifteen (15) days of receiving the Charter School’s decision. When appealing to the CDE, the
complainant must specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether the facts are incorrect
and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal shall be accompanied by a copy of the locally filed
complaint and a copy of the Charter School’s decision.

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed the Charter School’s decision, the
Executive Director/Principal or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE:

1. A copy of the original complaint.
2. A copy of the decision.

3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the Charter School, if not
covered by the decision.

4. A copy of the investigation file, including but not limited to all notes, interviews, and
documents submitted by all parties and gathered by the investigator.

5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint.
6. A copy of the Charter School’s complaint procedures.
7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE.

The CDE may directly intervene in the complaint without waiting for action by the Charter School
when one of the conditions listed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 4650 exists,
including cases in which the Charter School has not taken action within sixty (60) days of the date the
complaint was filed with the Charter School.
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Civil Law Remedies

A complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the Charter School’s complaint
procedures. Complainants may seek assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest
attorneys. Civil law remedies that may be imposed by a court include, but are not limited to,
injunctions and restraining orders. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying
complaints arising under state law, however, a complainant must wait until sixty (60) days have
elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies. The moratorium
does not apply to injunctive relief and is applicable only if the Charter School has appropriately, and in
a timely manner, apprised the complainant of his/her right to file a complaint in accordance with 5
CCR 4622.

UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES PAGE 7 OF 8
RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL



Board Policy #:
Adopted:
Revised:

POLICY AGAINST UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT

River Montessori Charter School (“Charter School”) is committed to providing a work and educational
atmosphere that is free of unlawful harassment. The Charter School’s policy prohibits sexual
harassment and harassment based upon pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, race,
religion, creed, color, gender, gender identity, gender expression, national origin or ancestry, physical
or mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, sexual orientation, or any other basis
protected by federal, state, local law, ordinance or regulation. The Charter School will not condone or
tolerate harassment of any type by any employee, independent contractor or other person with which
the Charter School does business. This policy applies to all employee actions and relationships,
regardless of position or gender. The Charter School will promptly and thoroughly investigate any
complaint of harassment and take appropriate corrective action, if warranted.

Prohibited Unlawful Harassment

o Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments or slurs;

o Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal
movement or interfering with work because of sex, race or any other protected basis;

o Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment

o Deferential or preferential treatment based on any of the protected classes above.

Prohibited Unlawful Sexual Harassment

In accordance with existing policy, discrimination on the basis of gender in education institutions is
prohibited. All persons, regardless of gender, are afforded equal rights and opportunities and freedom
from unlawful discrimination in education programs or activities conducted by the Charter School.

The Charter School is committed to provide a workplace free of sexual harassment and considers such
harassment to be a major offense, which may result in disciplinary action, up to, and including
dismissal, of the offending employee.

Sexual harassment consists of sexual advances, request for sexual favors and other verbal or physical
conduct of a sexual nature when: (1) submission of the conduct is either made explicitly or implicitly a
term or condition of an individual’s employment; (2) an employment decision is based upon an
individual’s acceptance or rejection of that conduct; (3) that conduct interferes with an individual’s
work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

It is also unlawful to retaliate in any way against an employee who has articulated a good faith concern
about sexual harassment against him/her or against another individual.

All supervisors of staff will receive sexual harassment training within six (6) months of their
assumption of a supervisory position and will receive further training once every two (2) years
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thereafter. All staff will receive sexual harassment training and/or instruction concerning sexual
harassment in the workplace as required by law.

Each employee has the responsibility to maintain a workplace free from any form of sexual
harassment. Consequently, should any individual, in particular those with supervisory responsibilities,
become aware of any conduct that may constitute sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior,
immediate action should be taken to address such conduct. Employees and students are expected to act
in a positive and professional manner and to contribute to a productive school environment that is free
from harassing or disruptive activity. Any employee who believes they have been harassed or has
witnessed harassment is encouraged to immediately report such harassment to their supervisor or the
Executive Director/Principal. See “Harassment Complaint Form.”

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to:

o Physical assaults of a sexual nature, such as:
o Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults and
o) Intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, such as touching, pinching, patting,

grabbing, brushing against another’s body, or poking another’s body.

o Unwanted sexual advances, propositions or other sexual comments, such as:
o Sexually oriented gestures, notices, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person’s
sexuality or sexual experience.
o Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an employee for

submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any employee
to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward or deferential treatment for
rejecting sexual conduct.

o Subjecting or threats of subjecting an employee to unwelcome sexual attention or
conduct or intentionally making performance of the employee’s job more difficult
because of the employee’s sex.

o Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere at the workplace by employees,
such as:
o Displaying pictures, cartoons, posters, calendars, graffiti, objections, promotional

materials, reading materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive, sexually
demeaning or pornographic or bringing to work or possessing any such material to read,
display or view at work.

o Reading publicly or otherwise publicizing in the work environment materials that are in
any way sexually revealing, sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic;
and

o Displaying signs or other materials purporting to segregate an employee by sex in an

area of the workplace (other than restrooms or similar rooms).

The illustrations of harassment and sexual harassment above are not to be construed as an all-inclusive
list of prohibited acts under this policy.

Complainants and witnesses under these policies will be protected from further harassment and will
not be retaliated against in any aspect of their employment due to their participation in or filing of a
complaint or reporting sexual harassment.
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The Charter School will investigate complaints promptly and provide a written report of the
investigation and decision as soon as practicable. The investigation will be handled in as confidential a
manner as possible consistent with a full, fair, and proper investigation.

Employees may also direct their complaints to the California Department of Fair Employment and
Housing (“DFEH”), which has authority to conduct investigation of the facts. The deadline for filing
complaints with the DFEH is one year from the date of the alleged unlawful conduct. If the DFEH
believes a complaint is valid and settlement efforts fail, the DFEH may seek an administrative hearing
before the California Fair Employment and Housing Commission (“FEHC”) or file a lawsuit in court.
Both the FEHC and the courts have authority to award monetary and non-monetary relief in
meritorious cases. Employees can contact the nearest DFEH office or the FEHC by checking the State
Government listings in the local telephone directory.

While in most situations a personal relationship is a private matter, these relationships are not
appropriate in a professional setting, particularly where one of the parties has management or
supervisory responsibilities.
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Board Policy #:
Adopted:
Revised:

COMPLAINTS AGAINST PERSONNEL
INTERNAL COMMUNICATION MODEL

DISPUTES ARISING FROM WITHIN THE SCHOOL/COMMUNICATION/MODEL
CONFLICT RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

The ultimate purpose of a communication model is to encourage the growth and development of River
Montessori Charter School (“Charter School”) as a healthy community. Conflict is a part of any
development or growth process and may arise in any community. An effective complaint and conflict
resolution process is therefore an essential component of the communication model.

The Conflict Resolution Procedure is a model for all members of the Charter School community and is
designed to address issues among the following: between parents and teachers; parents and
administration; and teachers and teachers. The overall purpose of this procedure is to perpetuate a
climate of collegiality, mutual trust and respect by resolving differences in a timely, objective and
equitable manner.

Please note that specific complaints of unlawful harassment are addressed under the Charter School’s
“Policy Against Unlawful Harassment.” The Charter School Uniform Complaint Policy/Procedure
(“UCP”) shall be used to address all complaints which allege that the Charter School has violated
federal or state laws or regulations governing educational programs.

A. FOUR MAJOR AREAS OF COMMUNICATION:

Conflicts may include a wide area of issues, and regard family and staff concerns.
Conflicts may fall into one of four major areas or may be a combination of these areas as listed
below. It is emphasized that the first step in the resolution of any conflicts in our community is
direct communication with the involved parties. Where reasonably possible, the concerned
parties are strongly encouraged to address their questions or concerns with the appropriate
Charter School personnel listed under each communication area as follows:

1. Policies and Legal Issues

Current policies are available in the Charter School office. Reviewing policies and
procedures lends information that may at times solve a conflict. The Board of Directors has
final approval for all school policies and procedures. Issues of policy and procedures
should be addressed to the Executive Director/Principal.

2. Procedures/Daily Operations

The Executive Director/Principal shall establish procedures designed to carry out the
policies adopted by the Board of Directors. Procedures pertain to anything regarding the
daily operations of the Charter School. Procedures can be clarified by an office staff
member or the Executive Director/Principal. The Executive Director/Principal serves as the
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primary administrator of the school. Any daily operations/procedural issues should be
addressed directly by the Executive Director.

3. Pedagogy

Pedagogical issues, which pertain to anything that occurs in the classroom, i.e. teaching,
curriculum, classroom management, or teacher-student relationships should be addressed
directly to the classroom teacher.

4. Interpersonal Communication and Relationships

Concerns between people or communication breakdown should be directly communicated
with the person(s) involved.

B. CONFLICT RESOLUTION PROCEDURE:

1. Internal Complaints (Complaints by Employees Against Employees)

This section of the policy is for use when a Charter School employee raises a complaint

or concern about a co-worker.

If reasonably possible, internal complaints should be resolved at the lowest possible

level, including attempts to discuss/resolve concerns with the immediate supervisor.

However, in the event an informal resolution may not be achieved or is not appropriate,

the following steps will be followed by the Executive Director/Principal or designee:

a. The complainant will bring the matter to the attention of the Executive
Director/Principal as soon as possible after attempts to resolve the complaint
with the immediate supervisor (or purportedly offending employee) have failed
or if not appropriate; and

b. The complainant will reduce his or her complaint to writing, indicating all
known and relevant facts. The Executive Director/Principal or designee will
then investigate the facts and provide a solution or explanation;

C. If the complaint is about the Executive Director/Principal, the complainant may
file his or her complaint in a signed writing to the Chair of the Board of
Directors of the School, who will then confer with the Board and may conduct a
fact-finding or authorize a third party investigator on behalf of the Board. The
Chair or investigator will report his or her findings to the Board for review and
action, if necessary.

This policy cannot guarantee that every problem will be resolved to the employee’s

satisfaction. However, the Charter School values each employee’s ability to express

concerns and the need for resolution without fear of adverse consequence to
employment.
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2. Policy for Complaints Against Employees (Complaints by Third Parties Against
Employees)

This section of the policy is for use when a non-employee raises a complaint or concern
about a Charter School employee.

If complaints cannot be resolved informally, complainants may file a written complaint
with the Executive Director/Principal or Board President (if the complaint concerns the
Executive Director/Principal) as soon as possible after the events that give rise to the
employee’s work-related concerns. The written complaint should set forth in detail the
factual basis for the employee’s complaint.

In processing the complaint, Executive Director/Principal (or designee) shall abide by
the following process:

a. The Executive Director/Principal or designee shall use his or her best efforts to
talk with the parties identified in the complaint and to ascertain the facts relating
to the complaint.

b. In the event that the Executive Director/Principal (or designee) finds that a
complaint against an employee is valid, the Executive Director/Principal (or
designee) may take appropriate disciplinary action against the employee. As
appropriate, the Executive Director/Principal (or designee) may also simply
counsel/reprimand employees as to their conduct without initiating formal
disciplinary measures.

C. The Executive Director/Principal’s (or designee’s) decision relating to the
complaint shall be final unless it is appealed to the Board of Directors of the
Charter School. The decision of the Board of Directors shall be final.

C. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
1. Confidentiality: All complainants will be notified that information obtained from the

complainants and thereafter gathered will be maintained in a manner as confidential as
possible, but in some circumstances absolute confidentiality cannot be assured.

2. Non-Retaliation: All complainants will be advised that they will be protected against
retaliation as a result of the filing of any complaints or participation in any complaint
process.

3. Resolution: The Board (if a complaint is about the Executive Director/Principal) or the

Executive Director/Principal or designee will investigate complaints appropriately
under the circumstances and pursuant to the applicable procedures, and if necessary,
take appropriate remedial measures to ensure effective resolution of any complaint.

The authorizing entity shall not intervene in any such internal disputes without the consent of
the Board of Directors and shall refer any complaints or reports regarding such disputes to the
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Board of Directors or Executive Director/Principal of the Charter School for resolution
pursuant to the Charter School's policies.
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UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURE FORM

Last Name: First Name/Ml:

Student Name (if applicable): Grade: Date of Birth: .
Street Address/Apt. #:

City: State: Zip Code:

Home Phone: Cell Phone: Work Phone:

School/Office of Alleged Violation:

For allegation(s) of noncompliance, please check the program or activity referred to in your complaint, if applicable:

[ ] Adult Education [] After School Education and Safety [ ] Agricultural Vocational Education
[ ] American Indian Education [] Consolidated Categorical Aid [] Career/Technical Education

[] Child Development Programs [] Child Nutrition [] Foster/Homeless Youth

[] Migrant Education [] No Child Left Behind Programs [] Regional Occupational Programs
[] Special Education [] State Preschool [] Tobacco-Use Prevention Education
[] Pupil Fees [] Local Control Funding Formula [ ] Lactating Pupils

For allegation(s) of wunlawful discrimination/harassment, please check the basis of the unlawful
discrimination/harassment described in your complaint, if applicable:

[] Age [ ] Gender/ Gender Expression / [] Sex (Actual or Perceived)
[] Ancestry Gender Identity [] Sexual Orientation (Actual or
i i Perceived

[ Color [ ] Genetic Information ) N _

o _ [] National Origin [ ] Based on association with a person
[] Disability (Mental or Physical) - or group with one or more of these
[] Ethnic Group Identification [] Race or Ethnicity actual or perceived characteristics

[] Religion
1. Please give facts about the complaint. Provide details such as the names of those involved, dates, whether witnesses
were present, etc., that may be helpful to the complaint investigator.
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2. Have you discussed your complaint or brought your complaint to any Charter School personnel? If you have, to whom
did you take the complaint, and what was the result?

3. Please provide copies of any written documents that may be relevant or supportive of your complaint.

| have attached supporting documents. [] Yes [] No

Signature: Date:

Mail complaint and any relevant documents to:

Kelly Mannion, Executive Director/Principal
River Montessori Charter School

3880 Cypress Drive

Petaluma, CA 94954

(707) 778-6414
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HARASSMENT COMPLAINT FORM

It is the policy of River Montessori Charter School (“Charter School ”) that all of its employees be
free from harassment including sexual harassment. This form is provided for you to report what you
believe to be harassment, so that the Charter School may investigate and take appropriate
disciplinary or other action when the facts show that there has been harassment.

If you are an employee of the Charter School, you may file this form with the Executive
Director/Principal or Board President.

Please review the Charter School’s policies concerning harassment for a definition of sexual
harassment and a description of the types of conduct that are considered to be harassment.

The Charter School will undertake every effort to handle the investigation of your complaint in a
confidential manner. In that regard, the Charter School will disclose the contents of your complaint
only to those persons having a need to know. For example, to conduct its investigation, the Charter
School will need to disclose portions of your factual allegations to potential witnesses, including
anyone you have identified as having knowledge of the facts on which you are basing your
complaint, as well as the alleged harasser.

In signing this form below, you authorize the Charter School to disclose to others the information
you have provided herein, and information you may provide in the future. Please note that the more
detailed information you provide, the more likely it is that the Charter School will be able to address
your complaint to your satisfaction.

Charges of harassment are taken very seriously by the Charter School both because of the harm
caused to the person harassed, and because of the potential sanctions that may be taken against the
harasser. It is therefore very important that you report the facts as accurately and completely as
possible and that you cooperate fully with the person or persons designated to investigate your
complaint.

Your Name: Date:
Date of Alleged Incident(s):

Name of Person(s) you believe harassed you or someone else:

List any witnesses that were present:

Where did the incident(s) occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual
detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal
statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):
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I acknowledge that | have read and that | understand the above statements. | hereby authorize
River Montessori Charter School to disclose the information | have provided as it finds
necessary in pursuing its investigation.

I hereby certify that the information | have provided in this complaint is true and correct and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Date:
Signature of Complainant
Print Name
To be completed by River Montessori Charter School:
Received by: Date:
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COMPLAINT FORM

Your Name: Date:
Date of Alleged Incident(s):

Name of Person(s) you have a complaint against:

List any witnesses that were present:

Where did the incident(s) occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual
detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal
statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):

| hereby authorize the River Montessori Charter School to disclose the information | have provided as
it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation. | hereby certify that the information | have provided in
this complaint is true and correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. | further
understand providing false information in this regard could result in disciplinary action up to and
including termination.

Date:
Signature of Complainant
Print Name
To be completed by River Montessori Charter School:
Received by: Date:
COMPLAINT FORM PAGE 10F 1
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A. Hiring Process
All RMCS hiring activities are organized through school administration under the
direction of the Executive Director/Superintendent.  Hiring standards are
consistent within industry standards, relevant to position.

For all positions, interviews are conducted in a team manner, including board of
directors as part of a team for credentialed applicants; when a complete team is
not available, multiple interviews will occur to ensure proper and thorough vetting
of candidate. Reference checks are concluded, prior to a job offering.

The following employment requirements are to be completed on or before the
first date of hire:

Application Packet (resume, application, references)
Tour/Interview

Livescan/fingerprinting clearance

TB Clearance

Mandated Reporter Acknowledgement

19 -Employment Eligibility Verification

Tax Documentation (W4, EDD, STRS)
Emergency Information Form

First Aid/ CPR /Bloodborne Pathenogens Training
Job Description

Workers’ Comp Pamphlet

Sexual Harassment Pamphlet

Employee Handbook

If employee is credentialed or certified, current, valid credentials or state-
approved waiver will be verified by the HR Department, and approved by Executive
Director/Superintendent.

(p.9 Employee Handbook)



RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual whe requires disability-related accommeodations or modifications, including auxiliary afds and services, in order to participate in the
Baard mesting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website

wwwirivermontessoricharter.org
The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Regular Meeting: September 13, 2016
Time: 6:30pm

Location(s):
8 RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
O Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order:

Roll Call: Tammy Cleland, Carolyn Duffy, Betsy Hall, Ginny Hautau, Norman Lorenz, Tim
Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Eresa Puch

Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

B. Student Presentations- None

C. Agenda Review

D. Public Comment;

Visitors are allowed lo address the Board for up fo three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a fotal of 15
minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public
comment. The Board does not respond or fake action on public comments.

E. Approval: Minutes from 08/09/16 RMCS BOD Meeting

F. Communications (*6:45pm)

1. Executive Director's Report
Finance Report - no report, see Discussion & Action
Facilities Report
Policy Compliance/Committee Report
Positive Resolution Committee Report
Foundation/Fundraising Report

A



RMCS BOD Meeting Agenda, for September 13, 2016 - page 2

G. Board Business (*7:30pm)

1. Discussion & Action: Review/Approve Unaudited Actuals

2. Discussion & Action: Review/Approve Prop 39 Bridge Loan from UCP
3. Discussion & Action: Strategic Planning

4. Discussion & Action: Calendar Executive Director Evaluation

5. Discussion & Action: Introduce Board Binder & Board Service Forms
6. Discussion: LCAP Update

7. Discussion: New Board Members Messaging to Community
8. Discussion: UE Self-contained Classrooms

H. Adjourn (*8:30pm)

*All times are provided as a courlesy and are eslimates that may be changed at the discretion of the Board Chair, and/or
according fo the meeting flow.

Future Meeting Date(s):

October 11, 2016 - 6:30pm November 8, 2016 - 6:30pm
December 13, 2016 - 6:30pm January 21, 2017- Retreat 9:00a-4:00p
February 14, 2017 - 6:30pm March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm

April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm

June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Mantessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School's Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board") is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often
and your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/ participating in our
meetings, the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda.

However, due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These
presentations are limited to three (3) minutes and total time allatted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes.
Exceptions to these time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to

respond to your cencemns or you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to ftems that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that

item. Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

3. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the ftem.

{For office use only: Posted On-site: Initiago_/[)ate / :c’/// FZsled Website: Initiag%njoatg%ﬁgf]:
t = i "




RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meeting Minutes
3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An Individual who requires disability-related accommedations or modifications, induding auxdliary aids and services, in order to participate
in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior {0 the meeting. Board agendas are avaitable on the school

website www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular mesting of the Governing Board heid in public will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act,

Location(s):

0 RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

Regular Meeting: August9, 2016

A.

Opening/Call to Order: 6:32 pm

Roll Call:

In attendance: Tammy Cleland, Carolyn Duffy, Betsy Ehlen Hall, Ginny Hautau, Tim Lohrentz,
Ruben Mejia, Eresa Puch

Absent: Norman Lorenz

Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business pManager, Julie Carolan,
School Administration Coordinator

Guests: Lisa Hartman (Guide), Lorna Rochman-Mclntire (Special Ed Teacher), Amy Atchley

(RMF Chair), Jessica Holten-Casper (RMF Vice-Chair), Melissa Franks (RMF Treasurer), Karen
Orlandi (parent), Michelle Loftin (parent), other parents, and guardians

Student Presentations - None

Carolyn requested for Agenda item ‘G. Board Business, No. 8 - Union School Proposal be
moved earlier in the meeting. Carolyn also asked to add in future agenda a section for
‘Comments and Future Agenda’ prior to adjournment of board meeting.

Agenda Review

Action: Approved Agenda for August 9, 2016 BOD Meeting
e Motion: Approved by consensus
o A7
e N:O

Public Comment:
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda
for a total of 15 minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or
decrease fime allowed for public comment. The Board does not respond or take action on public
comments.
1. Introduction of Lorna Rochman-Mcintire as the new Education Specialist
Teacher/Coordinator of Student Support Services




2. Karen Orlandi (parent) expressed own enthusiasm and from many parents for the new
school year.

F. Approval: Minutes from June 28, 2016 RMCS BOD Meeting
Motion: Ginny
Second: Tammy

e A3

e N: O

e Abstain: Betsy and Ruben
G. Union School Proposal

e Cynthia Walsh (Union School Principal and Teacher) presented an overview of the school,
collaborative ideas, and the school's goal to stay open.

H. Communications
RMCS Executive Director’s Report (Kelly)

1.

a.

b.
c.

o

Successful, fun, and well attended community events - BBQ and Community Work
Day
New Special Education Teacher and Student Support Services Coordinator
Received CAASPP (California Assessment of Student Performance and
Progress) Report - currently in the assessment process
Montessori Compass - currently assessing the Report Card option
Enroliment process
Current enroliment:

s TKK-45

m LE-77

m UE-52
Guide credentials - all have State credentials; a few are completing the Montessori
credential
1 Internship
Administration level support and additional professional developmenttrv r,
Jetting. Jim. CvDue diligence in responding to complaints and appropriate actions
taken through levels of Administration, BOD, and Private Investigator
BOD meeting agenda and packet are posted online as well as at physical locations
72 hours in advance; signed by poster
2016 California Charter Schools Leadership Update Conference - Dec 8 & 9

2. Finance (Michelle)

a.
b.

SY 2015-16 Financials are finalized for review by Sonoma County Education
Michelle will present the unaudited Financial Report in September BOD meeting
and will present the audited when available
Revenue over budget by $269K

m  $150K for energy efficiency

m  $60K Education Protection revenue more than expected
Expenses over budget by $169K

m $51K of Depreciation was not included in the budget

m  $19K Building lease was overlooked



s $32K fees

e. Current Ending Cash - $557K ($130K restricted for solar project)

f.

More details after Finance Committee meeting

3. Foundation (Amy and Melissa)

RMF commits to $75K assistance to RMCS

b. Raised $81K last year

m  Spring Gala/Auction - $24K

= Annual Fund - $25K

m  Walkathon - $21K

= Rivertown - $2k (half of proceeds)

c. Provided $65K cash to the school and $6K in kind donations (shed and PE
materials)
d. Plans to allot funds to be saved in the bank to provide early assistance to the
school at the beginning of the next school year
e. Successful BBQ - received $1500 from Riverwear and dessert sales
f.  Future activities:
= Dine & Donate at Panera
m  More community building
= Invited Board members to host Coffee Social
= Creator Faire meeting
L. Board Business:

1. Discussion and Action: Facilities Long-term Vision and Facilities Committee Member
Establishment

Facilities Long-term Vision

= Ruben inquired about current lease, long-term plan, and whether to stay or

look into other facilities
= Michelle & Kelly stated that current lease is good until 2019
s Kelly raised the need for finalized idea and project planning
a Facilities Committee is a standing committee with published agenda

Action: To create a Facilities Committee.

Motion: Tammy
Second: Betsy

A5
N: 0
Action: To establish the Facilities Committee members:

1. Ruben
2. Tim
3. Carolyn

Motion: Eresa

Second: Ginny

A5

N: 0

2. Discussion and Action: Policy / Compliance Committee Member Establishment

Meeting once or a few times in a year



¢ Policy / Compliance Committee is a standing committee with published agenda

Action: To create a Policy / Compliance Committee.
e Motion: Betsy
e Second: Tammy
s« A:S
e N O

Action: To establish Policy / Compliance Committee members:
1. Tammy
2. Eresa
3. Carolyn

e Motion: Approved by consensus
s A7
e N:O

. Discussion and Action: Positive Resolution Committee Member Establishment

Action: To create a Positive Resolution Committee and establish its members:
1. Tim
2. Betsy
3. Tammy
4. Ginny

o Motion: Eresa
e Second:. Ruben
e A5

e N: O

. Discussion and Action: Review / Approve 2016-17 At-Will Employees
e Michelle: Edit last name ‘Strazberg’ to ‘Satzberg’'

Action: To approve 2016-17 At-Will Employees list after last name correction.
e Motion: Betsy
¢ Second: Eresa
e A5
e N:O

. Discussion and Action: Special Education Policies / SELPA Contract

Action: To accept the latest Special Education Policies / SELPA Contract.
e Motion: Tim
e Second: Ginny
e A5
e N: O

. Discussion: Questions for Board Training on September 6, 2016 at 6:30 pm
e Gathered a list of questions and topics for the Board training

. Discussion: UCP

e Tammy reviewed recommendations from March meeting. Due to legality, unable to
modify words in the UCP.



8. Discussion: LCAP Update (Kelly)

Reflection on LCAP and three goals

Kelly will provide monthly updates

CAASPP to speak to the ideals of Montessori

Review and refine hiring process

Guides to receive professional development (partnership with Eagle Peak)

9. Discussion; HR / Hiring Process

Policy vs. Procedure
Employee Handbook will be available in September 2016
HR policies and procedures will be reviewed by Policy/Compliance Committee

10. Discussion: Establish Performance Goals for E.D. / Superintendent

Carolyn: Director to receive an end-of-school year Performance Evaluation

J. Future Agenda Items:

To put on calendar the Director's Performance Evaluation

Review and approve unaudited financial statements

CAASPRP results assessment report

Policy / Compliance Committee to start thinking about an Internet Safety Program
Planning for election of new Board members

Self-contained Upper El strategic planning process in October (Tim will help lead)
How BOD meetings can be most beneficial and efficient

K. Adjourn at 8:47 pm

Future Meeting Date(s):

September 13, 2016 - 6:30 pm October 11, 2016 - 6:30 pm
November 8, 2016 - 6:30 pm December 13, 2016 - 6:30 pm
January 21, 2017 - Retreat 9:00 am - 4:00 pm February 14, 2017 - 6:30 pm
March 14, 2017 - 6:30 pm April 11, 2017 - 6:30 pm

May 9, 2017 - 6:30 pm June 27, 2017 - 6:30 pm



Instructions for Prasentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter Schoel welcomss your participation at the School's Board meetings. The purpose of a pubfic meeting of
the Board of Directors (*Board") Is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hopa that you will visit these meetings often and
your participation assures us of continuing communtty interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings,
the following guldelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available fo all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of "Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. "Public Comment” ks set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However,
due to public meeting taws (Brown Agt), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
miled to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifleen (15) minutes, Exceptions to these time
kmils may be made at the discration of the Board Chair. The board may giva direction to staff fo respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda ftem.

4. With regard to Hems that are on the agenda, you may speak for up 1o (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.
Excaptions to this lime may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an tem is placed on the agenda and pubficly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.




Unaudited Financials
As of June 30, 2016

Revenue:

1. Total revenues far the year were $1,720,844, $218,742 over budget. We received two
sources of revenue not budgeted; an unrestricted one-time mandate grant of $89,114
and a restricted payment of $151,176 for proposition 39. Without these two extra
revenues, are revenue was $21,548 under budget.

2. LCFF revenue increases next year due to increase in ADA from last year’s actual.

3. Next year other state revenue decreases due to not receiving prop 39 funds or one-time
mandate grant money.

Expenses:

1. Total expenses for the year were $1,631,193, $204,348 over budget.

2. Certificated salaries were 537,335 over budget. This is due to hiring multiple special
education employees to accommodate the need.

3. Classified salaries were $37,038 over budget. This is due to hiring another full-time
administration person in January. Next year's budget includes this person for the full
year and additional hours for our clerical staff.

4. Employee benefits came in under budget by $21,588. This is due to over budgeting
health insurance, Unemployment insurance, and Worker's Comp insurance. Next year's
employee benefit go up due to an 8.5% increase in dues, and additional positions now
able to be under our insurance plan.

5. Books and supplies are $19,308 over budget. Mast of this is for new Montessori
material that came in $12k over budget. Plus an overage on supplies and equipment.
Next year we won’t have to buy as many new Montessori materials.

6. Services and other operating expenses came in over budget by $69,649. Most of this is
for $65k of unbudgeted vendor expenses for Proposition 39.

7. Depreciation wasn’t budget last year, so we are $50,851 over budget on this line item.

8. Other outgoing costs are 532,019 over due to payroll tax penalties & interest for late
filings.

The overall result is an excess of $89,651 in funds for the year. Net cash position is $136,394
in restricted funds, and $226,146 in unrestricted funds. Unreceived funds due to us is
$203,382. Miscellaneous payables at the end of the year are $77,294 and $86,730 for
overpayment of government funds.



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudiled Actual 49 70847 0119750

Old Adebe Union Elementary FINANCIAL REPORT Form CA
Sonoma County 2015-16 Unsudited Actuals
Charter Schoo! Cenification
Charter Number; 1086

To the enlity that approved the charter school

2015-16 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: This repari is hereby approved
and filad by tha charter school pursuant lo Education Code Seclion 42100(b).

Signed: Date:
Charter School Official

{Original signatum required)

Printed
Name:  Kelly Griffith Mannion Tile: Superintendent

Ta the County Superintendenl of Schools

2015-16 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: This report has baen reviewed
andis hereby filed with tha County Superintendent of Schools pursuant lo Education Coda Section 4210({a).

Signed: Dale;
Authotized Representative of
Chartar Appraving Enlity
{Original signatura required)
Printed
Nama: Tille:

To the Suparintendant of Public Instruction;

2015-18 CHARTER SCHCOL UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: This report has been verified
for mathematical accuracy by the County Supariniendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code
Section 42100(a).

Signed; Dats; _
County Superintendent/Designee

(Original signature required)

For additionat information on the unaudited aciual financial report, please contact.

For Appraving Entity: For Charter School:
Lynda Williams Michelte Leanard

Name Neme

Director af Business Services Business Manager

Tills Title

707-765-4323 707-778-6414

Telephone Telephone

williamsgQoldadoba.org miecnard@rivennontessoricharier.org
E-mail Address E-mail Addrass

Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - Version 2016.2.0

File: cacs (Rev 06/172011) Pege 1ol Printed: 9/7/2016 927 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma Counly Expenses by Object Form 62
2015-16 2016-17 Parcant
NDmrigUon Resource Codes _ Object Codes! Unaudiled Actuals Budgat Diffarence
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8089 1,154, 167.00 1,282,337.00 11.1%
2) Federa) Ravenye 8100-3299 21,375.00 20,781.00 +2.8%
3) Other Stale Revenue 8300-8589 302,938.93 83,659.00 -72.42&1
4) Other Locs! Ravenue 8600-8799 242.361.77 243,856.00 0.7%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,720 8431.70 1,630,733.00 5.2%
B. EXPENSES
1) Cetificated Salaries 1000-1999 557.617.37 §53,928.00 -£.7%
2) Classifiet) Salaries 2000-2099 255,047.54 331,416.00 20.9%
3) Employes Benefits 3000-3959 135,568.42 191,915.00 41.5‘!4
4) Books and Supplies 4000-499% £8,107.92 66,375.00 -24.7%
5) Services and Other Oparsting Expensas 5000-5599 §11,881.58 442 549.00 -13.6%
6) Depreciation 6000-6989 50,850.756 44,550.00 -12.4%
7) Othar Outgo {exeluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7293,
Costs) T400-7499 32.019.13 0.00 +100.0%
8) Other Oulgo - Tranafers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.05%
9) TOTAL EXPENSES 1,631,192.72 1,630,733.00 0.0%!
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B%) 89 650.68 0.00 +100.0%
0. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1} Inlerfund Transfers
&) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 00%.
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8530-8879 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Usas 7830-7689 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 28580-8999 0.00 0.90 1.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOUIRCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Caffornia Dept of
BACS Flaancial Reporting Software - 20182.0
Foe: fund-b (Rev 0308/2018) Poga 1 Pridod: W7/2018 G:27 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

Unaudited Acluals

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 45 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Object Form 62
2015-18 201617 Perceant
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| Unauditad Actuals Budgaet Difference
E. NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN
NET POSITION (€ + D4) 89,650.98 0.00 -1 00.0}4
F. NET POSITION
1) Beginning Net Posilion
8) As of July 1 - Unaudited 973 574,120.41 557,854.22 -28%7
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 {105.917.17) .00 -100.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + Fib) 468 203.24 557,854 22 19.1%
d) Other Restatements 8795 000 0 a0 00%
e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (Fic + F1d) 468,20324 5§57,854.22 19.1 J
2) Ending Net Position, Juna 30 {E + F1e) 557,854.22 557,854.22 0.0%
Components of Ending Net Position
a) Net investment in Capital Assats 9796 0.00 0.00 00%
b) Rastricted Nel Position 8797 136,394.11 0.00 =100,
¢} Unrestriciad Net Position 8780 421,450.11 557,854.22 32.4%]

Pue 2

Prirded: 2772018 927 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charler

Unaudited Actuals

Qid Adobe Union Elementary Charler Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Objact Form 82
2015-16 2016-17 Parcent
Deacription Rasource Codes  Objact Codes] Unaudhed Actuals Budget Oiffarenca
G. ASSETS
1) Cash
a) in County Treasury 8110 382,540.28
1) Fair Value Adustmant to Cash In County Treasury 9111 000
b in Banks 9120 1,000 00
c) in Revolving Fund 9130 1,000 00
d) with Fiscal Agant 8135 000
&) collections awalting deposit 9140 0.00
2) Investmants 9150 0G0
3) Accounts Raceivable 9200 1564,581.70
4) Dus from Granlor Government 8290 18,790.12
5) Due from Other Funds 8310 000
8) Storas 6320 0400
7) Prapaid Expenditures 9320 10,111.00
8) Other Cumrent Assals 8340 0.00
8) Fixed Assels
8) Land 8410 000
b} Lend improvements 420 0.00
c) Accumulated Depreciation - Land improvemants 8425 000
d) Buildinga 9420 383,258 02

8) Accumaulaied Deprecialion - Buildings

8435 {257,288 Gﬂ!i

Calfornia Gept of
File: Aund- (Rarv D20872018)

) Equipment 9440 124,360 52
g) Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 5445 {106 487 16)
h) Work in Progress 8450 0.00
10) TOTAL  ASSETS 721,877.88
[H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1) Deferred Outfiows of Resources 9450 000
| _2) TOTAL, DEFERRED QUTFLOWS 000
SACS wmsm -201820
Page

Prirtedt; WTI2048 G227 AM



River Montasgori Elementary Charter

Unaudiled Acluals

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enlerprise Fund 48 76847 0119750
Sonoma Cotnty Expenses by Object Form B2
2015-16 201817 Percent
|Description Rescurce Codes __ Object Codaes| Unsudited Actuata Budget Ditferance
1. LIABILITIES
1) Accounts Payabla 9500 771.291.66
2) Due to Grantor Govemnments 9580 86,730.00
3) Dua to Other Funds 9610 0.00
4) Curant Loans 9640 0.00
§) Uneamed Revenue 8650 0 0D
8) Long-Term Lighilites
a} Nat Pension Liability 683 000
b) Net OPEB Qbligation 0564 000
c) Compansalad Absences 56885 0.00
d} COPs Payable 9688 0.00
e) Capital Leases Paysble 8687 0.00
f} Lease Revenua Bonds Payabla 9658 0.00
9) Other General Long-Term Llabllities 6869 0.00
| 7) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 164,023.656
3. DEFERRED INFLLOWS OF RESOURCES
1) Deferred Inficws of Resources 9830 0 00
2} TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00
|K. NET POSITION
Net Position, June 30
{must agree with line F2) [G10 +H2) - {I7 + J2) 557,854 .22
Cadfamia Degt of Education
Fon fr s R Gonera iy S0a20 Paged Priniad: 772016 927 AM



River Montessort Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

Qld Adobe Union Elementary Charier Schoois Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Object Form 62
201516 20168-17 Parcent
Description Resourca Codes  Objact Codes| Unauditad Actuals Budgst Difference
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionmant
Stala Ald - Current Yaar 8011 235,204 00 391,807.00 53.8%]
Educaticn Protaction Account State Ald - Current Year 8012 $8,313.00 32,250.00 -56.2%
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 1,574 0D ¢ 00 =100 0%
LCFF Transfers
Uniesiricled LCFF Transters - Cutrent Year Q000 80 000 000 1] m&*
All Other LCFF Transfers - Currant Year All Other 809 000 0.00 0.0%
Transfars to Chartar Schools in Lisu of Property Taxes BQs6 815,075 00 857,280 00 5.2%
Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0ao 000 0.0%
LCFF/Revenua Limit Transfans - Prior Yeers 8089 0.00 000 o.m&L
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 1,154 167 .00 1,282.337.00 11.1%)
5FEDERAL REVENUE
Meintenance snd Operations 2110 000 000 0.0%
Special Education Entitfament 8181 21,375 00 20.781.00 -2.8%
Special Education Discrelicnary Grants 6182 000 000 0.0%
Child Nulrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Donated Food Commodities a2 0.00 0.00 00%
Inferagency Contracts Baiween LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Titla I, Parl A, Basic Granis Low-
Income and Neglacted 3010 8250 _D.00 0.00 0.0%|
NCLB: Titis |, Part D, Local Delinquent
Programs 3025 8250 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Titla Il, Part A, Teacher Quatity 4035 8290 4.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLS: Titla I, immigrant Educalion
Program 4201 86250 0.60 0.00 0.0%
NCL&: Title Ill, Limited English Proficient j
{LEP) Student Program 4203 8280 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Titta V, Part B, Public Charlar
Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8250 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
3012.3020, 3030-3199,
Othar No Child Laft Bahind 40364128, 5510 8280 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Vocetional and Applied Tectinology Education 3500-3888 82590 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Safa and Drug Free Schools a700-379% 8290 .00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Fedaral Ravenue All Other 8280 0.00 D.co 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 21,375.00 20,791.00 -2.8%
Calfonia Dept of

Fle: fund- {Rev C/08/2010) Paga § Prirted; 8772018 877 AM



River Monlessori Efementary Charer Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elsmentary Charter Schools Enlerprise Fund 48 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Object Form 62
201518 2016-17 Percent
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes! Unaudited Actuals Budget Differance
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other Stats Apporionments
Speciat Education Masler Plan
Current Year 8500 83n 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years 6500 8M89 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
All Other Siale Appartiochments - Cument Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
All Othar Stata Apportionments - Prior Yesm All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 o.mﬁ
Child Nutrilion Programs 2520 .00 0.00 0.0%
Mandated Costs Reimbursaments 8550 91,507.00 41.764.00 -54.4%
Lotiery - Unresltriclad and Instructionel Matsrils 8560 37,756.87 30,001.00 -20.3%
School Based Coordination
Program 71250 8550 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Afer School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8500 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Charter School Facility Grant 2030 8580 0.00 0.00 0.9%
Drug/AlesholTobacco Funds 6590 a5%0 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Califomnia Clean Energy Joba Act 6230 8580 151,176.00 0.00 -1DD.IJ‘}_B‘
Career Technical Education Incentive
Grant Frogram 6387 8580 0.00 000 D.OMT
Specialized Sacondary 7370 8580 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CQuality Education Investment Act T400 8550 .00 0.00 0.0%{
Commen Core Staia Standards
Implamentsaion Funds 7405 8580 0.00 0.00 0 Oﬁw
All Other Stale Revenua All Qther as539 22,499.96 11,804.00 -47.5%
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 302,939.93 83,658.00 -7241_4
Cafomia Dapt of Ecucation
SACS Financlal Repcrting Softwam - 2018 2.0
Fie: fund.b {Rev C/0A/2018) Poge B Primadt: /7/2038 227 AM



River Montessor Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 4970847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Object Form 62
201516 201617 Percant
Description Rescurce Codes Object Codas| Unaudited Actuals Budget Differance
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sala of Equipment/Supplies &N 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sale of Publications £g32 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Food Setvice Sales 8834 0.00 0.00 0.0%
AR Othar Salas 86839 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Leases and Rentals BE50 0.00 0.00 0.0%.
Interest 8660 3,148.17 2,000.00 -36.5%
Nel Incredsa (Decreasa) in tha Fair Valua of lavesiments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Feea and Contracts
Child Davelopment Parent Fees BEN 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Transporiation Feas From J
Individuals 8575 0.60 0.00 0.0%
Iniaragency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Fees snd Contracts 8889 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Local Ravenue B899 182,314.60 158,000.00 2.7%
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In 8781-8782 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfars of Appartionmants
Special Education SELPA Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
From County Offices 8500 8782 75,898.00 83,856.00 92%
From JPAs 8500 8793 0.00 0.00 o.oagl
Other Transfers of Apportionments
From Districis or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Officea Al Cthar 8792 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs All Cther 8763 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Tranafers [n from All Others 8789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 242,361.77 243,956.00 0.7%|
TOTAL REVENUES 1,720,843.70 1,630,733.00 +5.2%

Caiformia Dept of Educstion
SACSE Financia? Roporting Softwere - 2018 2.0
Fila: fund-b (Rav 030872018) Paga 7 Priciod: 9/7/2018 9:27 AM



River Montesson Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

Ofd Adobe Union Elementary Charler Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Object Form 62
2015-16 201647 Parcent
Dascription Resource Codes  Object CodnL Unauditsd Actuals Budget Ditfarance

I:Eimstcmso SALARIES
Cerlificated Teachars’ Salaries 1100 429.474.40 457,324.00 6.5%
Celificaled Pupi Support Saiarias 1200 0.00 0.00 o.;;l
Ceriificated Supervisors' and Administrators’ Salaries 1300 87,82200 96,604.00 10.0%
Other Canificated Selaries 1500 40,320.97 0.00 -100.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES §57,617.37 553,828.00 -0.7%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Instructionsl Salaries 2100 98,865.67 135,736.00 1.3%
Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 8.00 0.0%
Claasified Supervisor' and Administrators’ Saluries 2300 84 526.64 114,500.00 355%
Clerical, Technical and Offica Satadies 2400 7165523 81,180.00 13.3%:'
Other Classifiad Salaries 2800 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 255,047.54 321,416.00 29.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 44,454.13 69,684.00 56.5%
PERS 320%-3202 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OASDIUMedicare/Altemative 3301-3302 32,883.98 33,386.00 1.5%
Haalth and Waifare Banefits 3401-3402 41,224 65 70,607.00 71.3%
Unemploymant Insurance 3501-3502 _350.59 8,853.00
Workers' Compensation 3801-2802 168,615.07 §,385.00
OPEB, Alocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00
QPEB, Aclive Employeas 3751-3752 000 0.00
Othar Employea Benafita 3801-2802 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 135,568 42 191,915.00

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbocks end Cora Curticula Malerials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 157.55 9.00 -100.0%)
Materigls and Supplies 4300 73,865.52 50,375.00 -31.8%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 5,529.35 8,000.00 44.7%
Food 4700 8,255 50 8,000.00 -3.9%
TJOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES B8, 107.92 66,375.00 -24.7%

SACS Firamcial Reporting Softwens - 2018.2.0

Fle: furd-b (Rev (RV0R72016) Pae 8 Printoc: 9/7/2018 927 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0118750
Sonoma County Expanses by Object Form 82
2015-18 2016-17 Parcent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codesi Unauditad Actuals Budget Diffsrance
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Subagreemants for Services 5100 0.00 0.60 0.0%|
Travel and Conferences 5200 19,.403.74 24, 757.00 27.6%
Dues and Memberships 5300 $,369.00 2,000 00 46.1%
Insurance 5400-5450 14,028.10 11,244.00 -19.8%
Operations and Housakeeging Servicas £500 48,284.75 34,514.00 -28.5%“
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvemanis 5600 255274.65 245 203.00 -3.9%
Transiers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs - Inferfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Profeasional/Consulting Services and
Opersting Expenditures 5800 167,823.88 117.431.00 -30.0%
Communications 5300 5797.36 7,400.00 27.86%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 511,981.58 442,549.00 -IS.B_%L
DEPRECIATION
Capracation Expense 6900 50,850.78 44,550.00 =12.4%
TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 50,650.76 44,550.00 =12.4%|
|OTHER OUTGO {excluding Transfars of Indirect Costs)
Tuition
Tuitien for Instruction Undar Inlerdisirict
Allendance Agreements 10 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Tultion, Excass Costs, and/or Defict Paymants
Payments to Districts or Charter Schoola 7144 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Paymants to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 D.OQ&J
Paymenis tc JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers Qut
AR Othar Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other Transfers Oul to All Othara 7289 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 32,019.13 0.00 -100.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (exchuding Transfers of Indirect Cosis) 32.018.13 0.00 -100.0%|

Caldorria Depl of Educatian
SACS Finandal Reporting Softwame - 2018 2.0

Fily. fung-b (Rev CI0DA2018) Page ® Printad: 9772018 Q27T AM



River Montessori Elementary Charier Unaudited Actuals
Old Adobe Union Elementary Charler Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma Counly Expenses by Object Form 62
2015-18 201617 Percant
Dascription Resource Codes  Object Code:& Unsudited Actuals Budget Differance
[OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Indirect Casts - Inferfund 7350 0.00 0.00 00%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0 0%|
TOTAL, EXPENSES 1.631,182.72 1,830,733.00 0.0%]|

Ca¥iomia Depl of Education
SACS Finsncial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
Fla: fund-b (Rerv 0UTA2018)

Paga 10

Prnted: Q772016 §:27 AM



River Moniessori Elemantary Charter

Unaudited Actuals

Cid Adohe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Object Form 62
2015-16 2018-17 Percant
|Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| Unsudited Actuals Budget Difference
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFLIND TRANSFERS IN
Cther Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 000 0.051
|_{a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 060 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 O.D%ﬂ
(b} TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of
Lapsad/Reorganizart LEAS 8965 0.80 0.00 0.0%
All Chher Financing Sources a979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c} TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
USES
Transfers of Funds from
Lapsad/Reorganizad LEAS 7851 0.00 000 0.0%
Af Other Financing Usas 7899 0.00 4 0d 0.0%
{d) TOTAL, USES 0.60 0.00 0.0%
|CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributiona from Unrestricied Ravenues B340 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Conlributions from Restricted Revenues 8950 0.00 0.00 0.0%
{2} TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 D oD 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SQURCES/USES
(a-b+c-d+e) 000 0.00 0.0%
Caifomia Det of Educaiion
SACS Finencia) Reporting Softwere - 2018.2.0
Fiio: hanc-b {Rev OX0R/2018) Page 11 Priied: B7/2018 827 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charler

Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charier Schools Enterprise Fund 48 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Function Form 62
2015416 2018.17 Percant
Description Function Codes __Object Codes] Unauditad Actuals Budget Ditference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8038 1,154,187.00 1.282.337.00 11.1%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8259 21,375.00 20,781.00 -2 8%
3) Other Stals Revenue 8300-859% 302,939 83 83,658 00 T24%)|
4) Other Local Revanue B500-8759 _242364.77 _243,956 00 0 7%
S} TOTAL, REVENUES 1.720,843.70 1,630,733 00 5. 2%
B. EXPENSES (Oblacts 1000-7998)
1) Instruction 1000-18589 717.804.17 827,624 00 15 3%
2) Instruction - Relaled Services 2000-2993 282.198.23 222,178 00 -15 3%
3) Pupil Servicas 3000-3599 48,031.58 56,186 GO - 14.6%
4) Ancillary Servicea 40004593 0.00 0.00 00%
§) Community Servicas 5000-5899 37,948.15 48,512 00 27.8%
&) Enlarprisa 6000-8959 0.00 B0 0.0%
7} General Administration 7000-7899 158,688.70 19230800 | 21.2%
8) Plant Sarvices 8000-8589 73.484.76 283,717.00 -24 0%
9) Othar Oulge 8000-9939 75%:-:;2;9 32,018.13 [ 1] -100.0%
10) TOTAL. EXPENSES 1.631,192.72 1,630,733 00 0.0%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - B10) 698.650.98 000 -100 0%
0, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Inlerfund Transfers
a) Transfers [n 8900-8529 0.00 000 0.0%
b} Transfars Out 7800-7629 0.00 000 0.0%
2) Other Sourcas/Uses
8} Sources 8530-8978 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 76830-7689 0.00 D.00 0.0%
3) Coniributions 8960-8999 0.00 000 0.0%
4] TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Cafomis Dept of Educaion
WMRM1W_MMO Fagn ) Printec /772018 927 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

Unaudited Actuals

Ofd Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Expenses by Function Form 62
| I
2015.46 201617 Percant
Description Function Codes  Ohlact Codes Unaudited Acluals | Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
|__NET POSITION (C + D4} 85,650.98 000 | -100.0%
F. NET POSITION |
1) Baginning Net Position
8} As of July 1 - Unaudited 8701 574,12041 | 55785422 | -28%
b} Audit Adjustments 9753 (105,917.17) om0 ~100 0% |
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 45820324 | 55785422 | 19.1%
d) Other Restatements §7as go0 | 0 00 - 0 0%
&) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (Fic + Fid) L 46820324 557854221 18.1%
2) Ending Net Position, Juna 30 (€ + Fle) | s57.864 22| 55785422 | . 00%]
Components of Ending Net Pasition ]
8) Ne! lnvestmant in Capital Assets g798 | 0.00 ] 0.0%
b) Restricted Net Position 8707 13639411 000 -100 0%
c} Unrestricted Net Positicn 8780 42148011 557,854 22 32 4%
Caittornia Dept of Education
SACS Finencial Reporting Softwars - 201820
Film: hsw-b (Rev DVDA/2018) Page2 Prittod: G7R016 9:27 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals
Cid Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0116750
Sonoma County Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Datall Form 82
2015-16 2016-17
Resocurce  Description Unaudited Actuals Budget
6230 136,394.11 0.00
Total, Restricted Net Position 136,394.11 0.00

Catiformla Dept of Education
SACS Financlal Reporiing Sofiware - 2018.2.0
Fie: fund-b (Rev 11/14/2012)
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River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals
Otd Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County General Fund and Charter Schools Funds Form PCR
Program Cost Report
Direct Costs Central Admin “Total Costs by
Direct Charged Allocated Subitotal Costs Other Costs Program
(Schedule DCC) (Schedule AC) (col. | +2) col. 3 x Sch, CAC line E]  (Schedule OC) (col.3+4+5)
Goal Program/Activity Column | Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column § Column 6
Instructional
Gonls
0001 Pre-Kindergaricn 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1110 Repular Education, K—12 823,231.87 399.512.66 1.222,744.53 135.487.60 1,358,232.13
3100 Allernative Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3200 Continuation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3300 Indcpendent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3400 Opportunity Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00
3550 Community Day Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3700 Specialized Secondary Programs 0.00 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.00
3800 Carcer Technicol Education 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00 0.00
4110 Repulor Education, Adult 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.80
4610 Adult Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4620 Adull Comrectional Education 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4630 Adult Coreer Technical Education 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4760 Bilingunl 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4850 Migrant Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5000-5999 |{Special Education 171,526.71 0.00 171.526.,71 19.006.21 £90,532.92
6000 Regionul Occupationat Cur/Pre (ROC/P) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Goals
7110 Nonagency - Educational 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7150 Nonagency - Other 0.00 (.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8100 Community Scrvices 0.00 (.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8500 Child Care end Development Services 37,948.15 0.00 37,948.15 4,204.82 42,153.04
Other Costs
— Food Services 8.255.50 8.255.50
e Enlerprise 0.00 0.00
— Facilities Acquisition & Construction 0.00 0.00
— Oiher Outpo 32,019.13 32,019.13
Other  JAdull Educalion, Child Development,
Funds [Cafcteria, Foundation ([Column 3 +
= CAC, line C5] times CAC, line E) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Indirect Cost Transfers 1o Other Fuads
(Net of Funds 01, 09, 62, Function 7210,
P Object 7350) 0.00 0.00
Total General Fund snd Charter
o Schools Funds Expenditures 1.032,.706.73 399.512.66 1.432.219.39 158.698.70 _40.274.63 1,631.192.72
Calliomia Dept of Educalion

SACS Financial Reparling Software - 2016.2.0
Flla: per (Rav 05/05/2016)
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River Monlessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Acluals

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-18 48 70847 0119750
Sonoma County General Fund and Charler Schools Funds Form PCR
Program Cost Report
Schedule of Direct Charged Costs (DCC)
Librery, Media,
Ingructionsl | Technology and
Superasion and | Other Instructional Schaol Pupnl Suppan Contwnumity General Plart Manienencs | Facilities Rents and
Instruction Ay R Aderanszration Savces Pl Trenspontation| Ancillary Serviees Services Add #nd Opereti Leases
(Funcuens 7000.
(Funciions 1000- | {Functeons 2000 | (Funciions 2420- (Funcuons 3110- {Fi 4000~ | {F) $000- 7999, cucept (Functions 1100~
Goal Type of Program 1999} 200) 2493} {Function 2700) | 3160 and 1900) | (Function 3600 4999) 3999) 7210)* B100) {Funciion $700) Total
lusiructional
Goshs
000 000 000 000 000 oo 00g ] 000 000 000
632,479 ¢2 4,000 00 000 185,164 21 1,618 58 ooo 600 000 000 821351 87
000 000 000 000 000 400 000 000 000 000
3200 |Continustion Sehools 000 000 uog 000 000 000 000 00y 000 000
3300 _{independemt Study Centers 000 000 oo0 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
3400 [Opportumiy Schools ] 000 00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
3850 |Commenity Dy Schooly 000 0.0 000 000 000 oo 000 000 000 800
Spectalized Secondery
3700 |Progmms 000 000 000 000 [0 D00 000 000 000 000
800 |Career Techmeal Education 000 200 0 Co 000 000 000 000 090 000 000
40 (Reguler Edocanon Adult 000 000 000 200 000 000 000 000 00 000
Adolt Independent Sludy .
4610 _|Centers opa 000 000 o000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000!
4620 _ | Adul Corextional Educairon 000 000 000 000 000 00d 000 000 000 000
Aduli Cesteer Technical
4630 IEducaon 000 000 000 000 000 000 090 000 000 000
4760 [Gilingual 000 000 008 00g 000 000 000 () 000 000
4850 |Migrent Educaiion 000 000 000 000 000 000 00D 000 000 000
5000-5999_|5; Education 83,175 09 41,756 43 000 523761 39,337.30 000 090 | 000 000 171,326 71
6000 |aoca 000 000 000 090 000 000 00 000 000 000
Oiher Goshs
10 |Nonagency - Educational 000 000 000 000 000 o000 00y oon 000 000 a00 000
150 {Nonagency - Ober 000 000 000 000 000 60 000 000 000 000 000 |
W iC ity Sences 000 000 000 000 000 000 [\1) 000 000 000
Child Care and Develogrem
8500 _ |Services 000 000 nog 000 000 000 3709318 000 600 000 17,9113
Total Direct Chnrged Coats 757,804 17 15,736 43 000 190,421 BB 1017608 000 000 17,943 18 0D0 000 000 1,012,706 7)
¥ Functines TI0O-719% fey gk § 1081 and 1300
Caxforn'a Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
Fils: net IRewe NEMRIZNIAY [



River Montessori Elemenlary Charler Unaudited Acluals
Oid Adobe Union Elementary 2015-18 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County General Fund and Charler Schools Funds Form PCR
Program Cosl Report
Schedule of Aliocated Support Costs (AC)
Allocated Support Costs (Based on factors inpul on Form PCRAF)
Goal Type of Program Full-Time Equivalents|  Classroom Units Pupils Transported Total
Instructional Goals
0001 Pre-Kindergarten 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1110 Regular Education, K-12 26,017.90 373,494.76 0.00 399,512,66
3100 Alternative Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3200 Continuation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3300 Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3400 Opportunity Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3550 Community Day Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3700 Specialized Secondary Programs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3800 Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4110 Regular Education, Adult 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4610 Aduit Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4620 Adult Correctional Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4630 Adult Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4760 Bilingual 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4850 Migrant Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5000-5999 Special Education (allocated to 5001) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6000 ROC/P 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Goals
7110 Nonagency - Educational 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7150 Nonagency - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 G.00
8100 Community Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8500 Child Care and Developrmient Svcs, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Funds
-- Adult Education (Fund 11) 0.00 0.00
-- Child Development (Fund 12) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
-- Cafeteria (Funds 13 and 61) 0.00 0.00
.u.c:m_ Allocated Support Costs 26,017.90 373,494.76 0.00 399,512.66

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

Fite: pcr (Rev 06/05/2018)

Page 1

Printed: 9/7/2018 9:28 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 48 70847 (1 1975C
Sonoma County Pragram Cost Report Form PCR
Schedule of Central Administration Costs (CAC)

A. Central Administration Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
Board and Superintendent (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7100-7180, Goals 0000-6999 and
19000, Objects 1000-7999) 5,371.65
Extemal Financial Audits (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7190-7191, Goals 0000-6999 and
29000, Objects 1000-7999) 12,000.00
Other General Administration (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7200-7600 except 7210, Goal
3 0000, Objects 1000-7999) 141,327.05
Centralized Data Processing (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Function 7700, Goal 0000, Objects 1000-
4 7999 0.00
5 Total Central Administration Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds 158,698.70
B. Direct Charged and Allocated Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
I__ Total Direct Charged Costs (from Form PCR, Column 1, Total) 1,032,706.73
2 Total Allocated Costs (from Form PCR, Column 2, Total) 399,512.66
3 _Total Direct Charged and Allocated Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds 1,432,219.39
C. Direct Charged Costs in Other Funds
| __Adult Education (Fund 11, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 0.00
2 __Child Development (Fund 12, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 0.00
3 Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 0.00
4 __Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 0.00
5 Total Direct Charged Costs in Other Funds 0.00
D. Total Direct Charged and Allocated Costs (B3 + C5) 1,432,219.39
E. Ratio of Central Administration Costs to Direct Charged and Allocated Costs AS/D) 11.08%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/24/2011) Page 1

Printed: 9/7/2016 9:28 AM



River Monlessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals
Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 40 70847 0119750
Scnoma County General Fund and Charler Schools Funds Form PCR
Pregram Cost Report
Schedule of Other Costs (OC)
Facilities Acquisition &
Food Services Enterprisc Construction Other Ouigo
Type of Activity {Function 3700) {Funclion 6000) {Function 8500) (Functions 9000-9999) Tolal

Food Services

{Objects 1000-5999, 6400, and 6500) 8,255.50 [ §,255.50

Enterprise

(Objects 1000-5999. 6400, and 6500) . 0.00 0.00

Facilities Acquisition & Construction

{Obijccts 1000-6500) 6.60 0.00

Other Ouigo

(Objects 1000-7999) 32,019.13 32,019.13

Total Other Costs 8.255.50 0.00 0.00 32,019.13 40,274.63

California Dept of Educalion
SACS Financial Reporling Software - 2018,2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/24/2011)
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River Monlessor Elsmentary Charler Unaudiled Acluals

Otd Adobe Unlon Etementary 2015-18 40 70847 0110750
Sonoma County General Fund and Charler Schools Funds Form PCRAF
Program Coat Rapon
Schadule of Allscation Factors {AF) for Support Costs
memsmcritiv e ---Tescher Full-Thme Equivalenty - o cccae oo vvvcennca.. - il o === Classroome Unlg e eaaeeae | Puplils .—...-.ﬂ_.-..&.“#
| Instructional Supervision| qa__._"a...n«ﬁ?a_uu.&n Plan Maintenancoand | Fachlities Rents and
and Administration | Instructional Resources | School Administraion | Pupil Support Services Operations Lezes Pupil Transporiation
{Funcilons 2100-2200) | (Functions 2420-2495) (Function 2700) .msx.r_w. .ﬂaﬂa.....% E_ {Functions 8100-8400) |  (Function 8700) (Function 3600)
A Amousd of Undistribated Expendifures, Funds 81, 89, and 62, T i — 1 o .._, _ o
___Goals 8060 and 9600 {will be allocaied tmsed on faciors laput) 135000 - 0.00 10,667.90 | g0o, 12683127 4666149 0.00 |
B. Enicr AHocation Facior(s) by Gosl: FTE Factor(s} FTE Fectoe(s) FTE Facion{s) FTE Fuctoris) M CU Factor(s) CU Fucton(s) £T Facior(s)
(Note: Allocation fizciors are only needed for a column i
there are undistributed expestditures in linc A.) | _
Jestructional Gaals Descripilon i _
0001 Pre-Kinderganes £2 it kot —] ] - 22 IR
1w Regular Education, K-12 | _sna) 0o 450 - 800 | 16.80 16.00 B 000
1) Altemative Schools 5 . | | . -~ o
3200 Continuation S . i I A 2
| 3300 independemt Stuy Centers _ . , , " o
30 Opponusity Schoals [ | . _
| 3 Communiry Day Schoals . . . P T !
-y . Specialized Secondapy Programs h = — _ R0 (ot g L L |
3800 CarcerTechnical Education — h_ - AT ~
| 410 Regules Education, Adult__ T . L - o
. 4610 Aduli Indspendent Study Centers | ! _ - . * L
| s _ Aduh Correctional Education I i T -
| a6 Adult Career Technical Education o . I L B e N PN
[ 470 piisgu ~ I S : ) -+ e
4850 Migreet Education —— L ) =y
___ 50005999 __Special Education allocated 10 5001) L _ R = P y
6000 ROCP o =P PR aili—— e L
Other Goals Deseripiion .w. _
710 Nemageney - Educarional | - L | ]
7150 Noasgency-Other - _ = il L . _
BI00  Community Services e g —_— B | 1
8500 Child Carc end Develogrment Services L : - | H. i I
Other Funds Description
AduM Education {Fund 1)
_ Child Development (Fupd 12) P o : S = ; L
3 Coleeria fFonds 13&61) : e - . _
L& Tote) Alloeation Factors 800 | 000 a.5m __Rom 1600 | 1600 | (1)
Catifornia Dapl of Education

SACS Finsncial Reporiing Software - 2018.2.0
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River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Aciualg

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 Unaudited Actuals 4970847 0119750
Sonoma County No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form NCMOE
Funds 01, 09, and 62 2015-16
Section | - Expanditures Goals Functions | Objects Expanditures
A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) Al All 1000-7899 1,631,192.72
B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All 1000-7959 62,712.91
C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
{All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services Al 5000-5999 | 1000-7399 37,948.15
Al excepl | All except
2. Capital Oullay 7100-7189 | 5000-5989 | 6000-8959 50,850.76
5400-5450,
5800, 7430-
3. Debt Service Al p100 7438 32,019.13
4. Olher Transfers Out Al 9200 7200-7209 0.00
5. Interfund Transfers Out Al 8300 | 7600-7628 0.00
9100 7880
6. Al Other Financing Uses All 9200 7851 0.00
All except
5000-5999,
7. Nonagency 7100-7199 | S000-8860 | 1000-7t89 0.00
8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expendilures, 1o approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received) All All 8710 0.00
8. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Manually entered. Must not kn
Presidentially declared disaster expandiures in ks B, C1-C8, D or
D2.

10. Total state and lacal expenditures not
allowed for MOE calculation

{Sum lines C1 through C9) 120,818.04
1000-7143,
D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services thinus
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All 8000-8699 0.00

. . Manuaily enlered. Must not include
2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities axpendilures in lines A or D1,

E. Total expenditures subject io0 MOE
{Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 1.447,661.77

California Dept of Education
SACS Financia! Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015) Page 1 Printed: 9/7/2016 9:28 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

0Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 Unaudited Actuals 4970847 0119750
Sonoma County No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form NCMOE
2015-16
Annual ADA/
Section |l - Expenditures Per ADA Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
{Form A, Annual ADA column, Line C9) 157.91

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line |.E divided by Line Il.A) 9,167.64
Section 11l - MOE Calculation {For data collaction only. Final
detzrmination will be done by CDE) Total Par ADA
A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE
MOE Calculation)
(Note: if the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has adjusted the prior year
base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual
prior year expenditure amount.) 1,299,180.80 7.664.78
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for
LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation {From Section IV) 0.00 0.00
2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 1,295,180.80 7,664.78
B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 1,169,262.72 6,898.30
C. Current year expenditures (Line |.E and Line IL.B) 1,447 661.77 9,167.64
D. MOE deficiency amounl, if any (Line B minus Line C)
{If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00
E. MOE determination
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE reguirement MOE Mat
Is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. §f
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)
F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zere
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under NCLB covered programs In FY 2017-18 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: nemoe {(Rev 03/18/2015) Page 2 Printed: 9/7/2016 9.28 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 Unaudited Actuals 49 70847 0119750
Sonomea County No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form NCMOE
SECTION |V - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures {used In Section lll, Line A.{)
Total Expenditures
|Dascription of Adjustments Expenditures Per ADA
Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Educalion
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015) Page 3 Printed: 9/7/2016 9:28 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charler Unaudited Acluals

©Otd Adobe Unlon Elementary 2015-16 Unaudited Acluals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County LOTTERY REPORT Form L
Revenues, Expendituras and
Ending Balances - All Funds
Transferred to Lottery:
Loftery; Other Iastructional
Unrestricted Resources for Materials
Description Object Codes {Resource 1100) | Expenditure | (Resource 6300)* Totals
A AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR
1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9785 41,908.18 12,5680 41 54,498.59
2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 30,871.71 6,865.26 37,756.97
3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 000 0.00 0.00
4, Transfers from Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8865 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Contributions from Unrestricted
Resources {Total must be zero) B9B0 0.00 0.00
6. Total Available
{Sum Lines A1 through AS) 72,778.89 0.00 19,475 67 92 25556
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 72,779.89 7277989
2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3899 0.00 0.00
4, Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 19,475 67 1947567
5. a. Services and Other Opesating
Expenditures (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 0.00 0.00
b. Services and Other Operating 5000-5999, except
Expenditures (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800
c. Duplicating Costs for
Instructiona) Materials
(Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800 g
6. Capital Qutiay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00
7. Tuition 7100-7199 0.00 0.00
8. Interagency Transfers Out
a. To Other Districts, Coun
Offices, and Charler Schtgols 21512}2',-%;21?7??%; 000 0.00
b. To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223,
7283,7238 000 000
9. Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300.7399
10. Debt Service 7400-74499 000 0.00
11. Al Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00
12. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Sum Lines B1 through B11) 72,779.89 0.00 19,475.67 92,255.56
C. ENDING BALANCE
{Must equal Line A6 minus Line B12) 9792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D. COMMENTS:

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legisiature as required by Control Section 24 60 of the Budget Act.

*Pursuant lo Gavemment Cade Section 8880.4(a){2}(B} and Ihe definition in Education Code Section 60010({h), Resource 8300 funds are lo be usaed for the
purchase of instructiona! malerials only. Any amounts in lhe shaded cells of this colurnn should be reviewed for appropriateness,

salifornia Dept of Education
iACS Financial Reporting Software - 201820
‘ile: tot (Rev 02/24/2016) Page1of1

Printed; 9/7/2018 928 AM



River Montesscri Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuals
0Oid Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 Unaudited Actuals 4% 70847 0118750
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Warkshest Fom ICR

Part | - Gensral Administrativa Share of Plant Services Costs

Califomia’s indirect cast plan allows that the ganeral administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services
costs {maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) atiributable to the ganeral administrative offices. The
calculation of the plant servicas costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated

using the parcentage of salaries and benefits relating fo general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage

occupied by general administration.

A, Salaries and Benelits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 excapl 3701-3702)
{Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 8000} 95,432 .52
2. Conbracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll
a, Enler the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a
contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7260-7700, goals 0000 and 8000, Object 5600.
b. W an amountis entared on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general
administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit

B. Salarias and Banefits - All Other Activitles
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll {Funds 01, 08, and 62, objects 1000-3899 except 3701-3702)
{Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals excapt 0000 & 8000) 851,800.81

C. Percentage of Plant Services Coats Atfributable to General Administration
{Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Lina B1; zero if negative) {See Part lIl, Lines A5 and AB) 11.32%

Part Il - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

When en employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition
to the employee’s regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "nomal® or "abnomal
or mass" separation costs,

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routing severance pay authorized by govemning board
policy. Nommal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs lo federal programs, but are allowabls as indirect costs. Siate programs
may have simitar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation
costs to an unrestricted resourca rather than to the restricted program in which the employea worked, the LEA may identify and enter
these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indiract cost pool.

Abnormal or mass separation cosls are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employeas o terminate their
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden
Handshake or severance packages negoliatad to effect termination. Abnormal or mass saparation costs may not ba charged to federal
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA pald abnormal or mass separation costs on behslf of positions in general
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must idenlify and entar these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

A. Normal Separation Costs {optional)
Enter any nommal separation costs pald on behalf of employees of restricted state or fedaral programs that
were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 08, and 62 with functions 1000-689S or 8100-8400
rather than to the rastricted program. These costs will be moved in Part Il from base costs o the indirect cast poo.
Retain supporting documentation.

8. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs {required)
Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid an behatf of general administrative positions charged to
unrestricted resourcas (0000-1988) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. Thess costs will be
movad in Part {ll from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, entar zarn. 000

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Sofiware - 2016.2.0
Fite: icr (Rev 11/22/2013) Page 10of 3 Printed: 8/7R2016 5:28 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter Unaudited Actuais

Qid Adabe Union Elementary 2015-18 Unaudited Actuals 49 70847 0118750
Sonoma Couniy Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet FormICR
Part lif - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation {Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless Indicated otherwise)
A. Indirgct Costs
1. Other General Administration, lass portion charged 1o restricted resources or specific goals
{Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5899, minus Line B8) 141,327.05
2. Cenlralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted reseurces or specific goals
{Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 0.00
3. Extemal Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7150, resources 0000-1898,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 000
4, Staff Relations and Negoliations (Function 7120, resocurces 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5599) 0.00
§. Piant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part |, Line C) 14,357.53
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative officas onty)
{Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part |, Line C) 27,922 08
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Plus; Nomal Separation Costs {(Part ll, Line A} 0.00
b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part Il, Line B) 0.00
8. Tolal Indirect Costs {Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 183,606.66
9. Cany-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Line F) 25,299 58
10, Tolal Adjusted Indiract Costs (Line AB plus Line A8) 208,906 24
B. Base Costs
1. Instruction (Functions 1000-19899, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 666.953.41
2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objecls 1000-5999 except 5100) 262,196.23
3. Pupll Servicas {Functions 3000-3898, objects 1000-5999 excapt 5100) 49.031.58
4. Ancillary Servicas (Functions 40004959, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.060
5. Comsunity Sesrvices (Functions 5000-5899, objects 1000-5959 except 5100) 37,948.15
6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 excapt 5100) 000
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-59989,
minus Part i, Line Ad) 5,371.65
8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
objects 5000-5999, minus Part [H, Lina A3) 12,000 00
8. Other General Administration {portion charged to restricted resources or spacific goals anly)
{Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5889; Functions 7200-7600,
rasources 0000-1998, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5959) 0.00
10. Cantralized Data Processing (portion charged 1o restricled resources or specific goals only)
{Function 7700, resources 2000-9939, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources G000-1999, all goals
except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 000
11. Plant Mainlananca and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part lll, Line AS) 112,475.74
12, Facilities Rents and Leases (alt except portion relaling to general administrativa offices)
(Function 8700, objects 1800-5399 excapt 5100, minus Part Ill, Line AB) 218.739.41
13. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Less: Nomal Separation Costs (Part)l, Line A) 0.00
b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part 1], Line B) 0.00
14. Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6939, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-59989 excapt 5100) 0.00
15. Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6889, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 000
16. Caleteria (Funds 13 and 61, functions 10006999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5989 except 5100} 0.00
17. Foundation (Funds 18 and 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
18. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B17, minus Line B13a) 1,364,716.17
C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment
{For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)
(Line AB divided by Line B18) 13.45%
D. Praliminary Proposed lndirect Cost Rate
{For final approved fixed-with-cany-forward rate for use in 2017-18 see www.cde.ca.govifglaciic)
{Line A10 divided by Line B18) 15 31%

California Dapt of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: icr {(Rev 11/22/2013) Page20of 3
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River Montessori Elementary Charler Unaudited Actuals

Old Adoba Union Elemantary 2015-16 Unsudited Actuals 4970847 0118750
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Workshest Form ICR
Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment

The carry-forward adjustment is an afier-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recaverable using the indirect
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year, The camy-forward adjustment eliminates
the need for LEAs {o file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indiract costs on which the
approved rate was basad,

Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for
use in the current year was based, the camy-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs,
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program timas current year base costs, if the highest rats used was less than
the approved rate. Ratas used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.

A. indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part Ill, Lina A8) 183,606 66

8. Carry-forward adjustment frem prior year{s)

1. Cany-forward adjustment from the second prior year 00D

2. Carry-forward adjustment amount defarred from prior year(s), if any 0.00
€. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or ovar-recovaery in the current year

1. Under-recovary: Part lll, Lina A8, plus canry-forward adjustment from prior yaars, minus (approved indiract
cost rale (11.6%) times Part lll, Line B18); zaro if negative 25 299.58

2. Over-secovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus camry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
{approved indirect cost rata (11.6%) times Par IlI, Line B18) or {lhe highest rats used to
recover costs from any program (0%) times Part |, Line B18); zerc if positive 0.00

D. Praliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2) 25,290 58

E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over mora than one year

Where a negalive cany-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rale to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that

the carry-forward adjustment ba allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over mare
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis lo establish an approved rate,

Option 1. Prefiminary proposed approved rate (Part I, Lina D) if entira negative camy-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation; not applicable

Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part il, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the cument year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years: nat applicable

Option 3. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part I, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remaindar
is deferred to one or mose future years: not applicable

LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3

F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part Ill, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if
Option 2 or Option 3 is selectad) 25,289.58

California Dapt of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ier (Rev 11/22/2013) Page 3of 3 Printed. 9/7/2016 9:28 AM



River Monlessori Elementary Charler Unaudited Actuels

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 Unaudiled Actuals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma Counly Schedule of Capital Assats Form ASSET
Unaudiied Audit Audited
Balance Adjustmoents/ Baijance Ending Balance
July 1 Rostatemants July 1 Increases Docieases June 30
Governmental Activitiea:
Capilal assels nol belng depreciated:
Land 0.00 0.00
Work In Progress 0.00 0.00
Tolal capital assels nol being depreciated 0.060 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{Capital asseta baing deprecialed;
Land Improvements 0.00 0.00
Buitdings 383,258.00 J83,258.00 383,258 00
Equipment 124,361.00 124 361.00 124,361.00
Tolal capital assels being depreciated 507,819.00 000 507.6192.00 0.00 0.00 507,619.00
Accumulated Depreciation for;
Land Improvemenis 0.00 0.00
Bulldings {205,719.00) {205,719.00) {51,567.60) {257,286 .60}
Equipment {45,852.00) (45,852.00) (60,635,16) (106,467.18))
Tolal accumulaled depraciation {251,671.00}) .00 {251,571.00) {112.202.76) 0.00 (363,773.76)
Talal capital aseets being depreciated, nel 256,048.00 0.00 258.04B.00 {112,202.76) 0.00 143,845.24
Govemmenial aclivity capital assets, nel 258,048.00 0.00 258,048.00 {112 202.76) 0.00 143,845.24
Business-Type Activilles:
Capilal assels not belng deprecialed:
Land 0.00 0.00
Worsk in Progress 0.00 0.00
Totat capilal assets not being depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital assels being deprecialed:
Land Improvements 0.00 0.00
Bulldings 0.00 0.00
Equipment 0.00 0.00 |
Tolal capital assets being depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accumuiated Deprecialion for;
Land Improvements 0.00 0.00
Bulldings 0,00 0.00
Equdpmentl 0.00 0.00
Tolal accumulaled deprecialion 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tolal caplial assels bsing depreciated, nel 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
California Dept of Education
SAGS Financial Reporiing Software - 2016.2.0
File: asset (Rev 01/27/2009) Page 1 of § Printed: 9/7/2016 9:27 AM



River Monlessori Elementary Charler Unaudited Actuals
Jid Adobe Union Elementary 2015-16 Unaudited Acluals 40 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Schedula of Long-Term Liabiitias Form DEBT
Unaudited Audit Auditad
Balance Adjustments/ Balance Ending Balance | Amounts Due Within
July 1 Restataments _July 1 Increases Dscreases June 30 One Year_
Governmental Activities:
Ganeral Obligation Bords Payabie 0.00 0.00
Stata School Building Loans Payable €.00 0.00
Carlificatas of Participation Payabla 0.00 0.00
Capilal Leases Payable 0.00 0.00
Lease Revenuse Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00
Cther General Lang-Term Debt 48,220.00 48,220.00 4B,220.00 0.00
Net Pension Liability 0.00 0.00 |
Net OPEB Obligation 0.00 0.00
Compensated Absences Payable 0.00 0.60
Governmental aclivities long-term Habililies 48,220.00 0.00 48,220.00 0.00 48,220.00 0.00 0.00
Business-Type Activities:
General Obligation Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00
Slate School Building Loans Payable 0.00 0.00
Cartificates of Parlicipalion Payabla 000 0.00
Capital Leasas Payable 0.00 0.00
Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 000 0.00
Other General Long-Temm Debt 0.00 0.00
Net Pension Liabitity 0.00 0.00
Net OPEB Obligation 0.00 0.00
Compensated Absences Payabla 0.00 0.00
Business-type activitias long-tenm liabitilias 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 _0.00 0.00

alilomia Dept of Education
3ACS Financiel Reporting Softwam - 2016,2.0
“lle: deblt (Rev 06/22/2015)
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River Monlessori Elementary Chariar 2015-16 Unaudiled Actuals

Old Adobe Unlon Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Fom A
2015-16 Unaudited Actuals 2016-17 Budget
Estimated P-2| Estimated | Estimated
IDescription P-2ADA__ | AnnualADA | Funded ADA ADA Annual ADA | Funded ADA
A. DISTRICT

1. Total District Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Claas, Continuation
Education, Speclal Education NPSA.CI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School {includes Necessary Small School

ADA)
2, Total Basle Ald Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupll Transfer Regular ADA
includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Cless, Continuation
Education, Spedlal Education NFSALCI
and Exiended Yaar, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Lina A1 above)
3. Tatal Basic Ald Cpan Enraliment Regular ADA
Inciudes Opporturity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Spedal Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPSALCH
and Exiended Year, and Communily Day
School (ADA not inctuded in Line A1 above)
4. Total, District Regular ADA
(Sum of Lines A1 through AJ) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. District Fundad County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Education-NPSACI
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other Counly Operaled Programs:
Oppartunity Schoots and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Speclalized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools

f. County School Tuition Fund
{Out of Stala Tuiticn) {EC 2000 and 46380)

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

{Sum of Lines ASa through ABF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 D.00 0.00
8. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA
{Sum of Line A4 and Lins Abq) 000 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7. Adults In Corractionsl Facilitiea
8. Charter School ADA
{Entar Chartar School ADA using
Tab C. Chartsr School ADA)

Califormia Depl of Education
SACS Financie) Reporting Softwaere - 2018.2.0
FBe: ada (Rev 02/0372018) Page 10f 1 Priniad; 9772018 9:27 AM



River Montasseri Elementary Charter 2015-18 Unauditad Actuals

Oid Adobe Union Elsmentary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Form A
2015-16 Unaudited Actuals 2016-17 Budget
Estimated P-2 | Eatimatsd Estimatad
Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA | Funded ADA ADA Annual ADA | Funded ADA

B. COUNTY QFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Aliernative Education ADA
a. Caunty Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
¢. Probation Refarred, On Probation of Parola,
Expelied par EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574{c}{4){A)]
d. Tolal, County Program Altarmative Education
ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through Bic} 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2, District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
¢ Speclal Education-NPS/LCE
d. Spacial Education Extanded Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Oppartunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Spaciaiized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools
f. Counly Schaol Tuition Fund
{Out of Stats Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380)
g- Total, District Funded County Program ADA
(Sum of Lines B2a through B2{) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
{Sum of Lines B1d and 82g) 0.0o 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
. Adults in Correctional Facililles
. County Operations Grant ADA
. Charter School ADA
(Entar Chartsr School ADA using
Tab C. Charler School ADA)

Dt b

+alifornia Dept of Education
iACS Flnancial Reporiing Software - 2016.2.0
le: ada (Rav 02/0372018) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 9/7/2016 9:27 AM



River Montessor Elementary Charter
O#d Adobs Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2015-15 Unaudited Aclusals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

49 70847 0119750

Form A

Dascription

2015-16 Unaudited Actuals

2018-17 Budget

P-2 ADA

Annual ADA

C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

| Funded ADA

Estimatad P-2
ADA

Estimated
Annual ADA

Estimated
Funded ADA

FUND 01: Chartar School ADA correaponding 1o SACS financlal data reportad in Fund 01.

Authorizing LEAs reporiing charter schoot SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 82 use this worksheel to report ADA for those charer schools,

{_ Charter schools reposting SACS financial data separately from thelr authorizing LEAs In Fund 01 or Fund 62 usa this worksheel to report their ADA.

1. Total Charter School Regular ADA
2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Homa and Institution Pupiis
b. Juvenila Hals, Homas, and Camps
c. Probation Refemed, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48815{a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
d. Total, Chastar School County Program
Altsmative Education ADA
{Sum of Lines C2a through C2¢)
3. Chartar School Funded County Program ADA
a. Counly Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Educalion-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schoots and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agriculiusal, and Natural
Resourca Censervation Schools
{. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines CJa through Cla)
4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C1, C2¢, and C3()

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

000

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0ao

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

FUND 08 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding

{o SACS financial data reporiad In Fund 09 or Fund 62,

. Vota] Charter Schocl Regular ADA
. Charter School County Program Altsrnative
Educalion ADA
a. County Group Home and institution Pupils
b Juvenite Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expalied per EC 48815(a) or {c)} [EC 2574(c){4)(A))
d. Total, Chertar School County Program
Altesmative Education ADA
{Sum of Lines C8a through Cé¢)
7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Speclal Day Class
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Exended Year
@, Other County Operatad Programs;
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, end Natural
Reasource Conservation Schools
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines C7a through C7a)
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

{Sum of Lines C5, Céd, and C7()

157.51 l

157.81

157.91 I

165.40

156.40

186.40

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

000

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

157.51

157.91

157.41

166.40

166.40

166.40

8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reportad In Fund 01, 08, or 62

L__{Sum of Lines C4 and C8)

157.51

157.81

157.91

166.40

166.40

1668.40

Califernia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
Fhie: ada (Rev 02/03/2018)
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Propaosition 39 Funds

. The Board approved the Solar Craft project for this building, with a total cost of
$156,340.

. Total unspent balance of funds received to date are $136,394. We have another
$50,000 approved but we will not receive the funds until February 2018.

. Solar Craft needs all of their payments according to Schedule D of contract (see
attached), with final payment 60 days after completion.

. We are around $20,000 short of prop 39 funds until fina! disbursement in Feb. 2018.
The building owner, UCP, is willing to loan us $25,000 until January 31, 2018.

. Attached is a Promissory note from UCP, to us as a bridge loan/line of credit. Does the
board want to take out a loan to complete the Prop 39 project earlier, rather than later?

. Some facts the board should know:

> We have until June 30, 2020 to use the prop 39 funds, and complete all
projects. Otherwise the funds need to be returned to the state.

» The solar cannot be maved, after it is installed it belongs to the building
owner.

> If the solar is put on this building, it will be a donation to United
Cerebral Palsy. The value RMCS receives is the reduced PG & E bills for
as long as we are in this building.

. If River plans on moving into a new building, depending on timing, we could use prop 39

funds on new building. It really depends on the timing, as stated above, we have until

June 30, 2020 to complete the project.



<ar Craft

Schedule D - Payment Schedule

Project Contract Price:  $156,340,
3 % of
Item | Payment Total Amount | Comments When Due
1 | Deposit 10% $15,634 | Initial design, engineering, Upon signing of contract
permitting. Module and
Inverter ordering
2 | Mabilization Onsite 20% $31,268 | Invoice upon start of Oue upon start of
construction Construction
3 | Delivery of Modules 40% $62,536 | Invoice 15 days prior to Due upon delivery of modules
Onsite scheduled delivery modules
4 | Substantial Completion 20% $31,268 | Invoice when construction Due upon substantial
substantially complete. Al completion
components Installed
5 Retention 10% $15,634 | Final Building Inspection Due within 60 days of final
complete; system operational | building permit signoff by AHJ
and ready for utility
interconnection; receipt of
workmanship warranty.
020267.0001\4343826.| X Page | 13

Customer Initial:

SolarCraft Commercial Contract Rev, 6-13-16




Prop 31
Schedule

SCHEDULE MILESTONES

DATE

S5PI to release energy audit and planning funds

November 2013, March 2014,
May 2014 and each subsequent
January

Energy Commission to begin accepting energy expenditure
plan proposals

January 2014

S5SPI began processing award allocations for approved
energy expenditure plans

Quarterly beginning in June
2014

Two fiscal year combined funding award requests

September 1 {annually)
Not offered September 2017-18

Award calculation completed by the California Department
of Education (CDE)

October 30 (annually)

(COB) and Energy Commission

* 55P1tobegin allocaling awards for approved multiple-year | January {annually)
energy expenditure plans

» LEAs final project completion reporting Ongoing

« LEAs expenditure reports to Citizens Oversight Board October 1

(annually beginning 20168)

Energy Commission report to Citizens Oversight Board
(COB)

January 31
{annually beginning 2016 )

» LEAs final encumbrance date June 30, 2018
s Final date all projects must be completed June 30, 2020
¢ LEAs final project reporting date June 30, 2021

10




PROMISSORY NOTE FOR LINE OF CREDIT

Maximum Principal Balance: $25,000.00
Interest Rate: 0%

Effective Date: October 1, 2016
Maturity Date: January 31, 2018
RECITALS:

1. This document constitutes an agreement between River Montessori Charter
School a 501(c) 3 non-profit organization whose business address is 3880
Cypress Drive, Petaluma CA 94954 and United Cerebral Palsy of the North
Bay, Inc. (UCPNB), a 501(c) 3 non-profit organization, whose business address
is 3835 Cypress Drive Suite 103, Petaluma, CA 94954.

2. UCPNB will provide a cash advance to River Montessori Charter School in the
amount of $25,000 beginning October 1, 2016, total not to exceed $25,000.

River Montessori Charter School will pay back the amount borrowed to UCPNB
no later than January 31, 2018.

3. On September 22, 2016, the Board of Directors of UCPNB, at a duly constituted
meeting, authorized funding for a Line of Credit to River Montessori Charter
School which is secured by the Promissory Note herein.

PROMISSORY NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, River Montessori Charter School, a 501(c) 3 non-
profit organization {"Maker”), whose business address is 3880 Cypress Drive, Petaluma
CA 94954 promises to pay as hereinafter provided to United Cerebral Palsy of the
North Bay, Inc. (UCPNB), a 501(c) 3 non-profit organization, (“Holder"), or order at 3835

11530001 0009 ¢ 1



Cypress Drive Suite 103, Petaluma, CA 94954, or such other place as Holder may from
time to time designate, the outstanding balances.

1. Advances: The Maker may draw funds against this Line of Credit at
anytime prior to the date principal is due as stated in Paragraph 2 (a) and (b) provided:

(@) The principal balance of outstanding withdrawals, including the
outstanding balance of all prior loans that are included in this agreement does not
exceed $25,000.00.

(b)  An“event of default” has not occurred as defined in Paragraph 4.
Whether or not either of the above conditions have occurred, Holder may deny any
request for additional withdrawals if Holder becomes aware of any adverse material
changes to Maker's financial condition.

2. Payments. The Maker shall pay this Promissory Note as follows:

(@}  Allunpaid outstanding balance shall be due and payable on January
31, 2018.

{b)  All payments under this Promissory Note shall be in lawful money of
the United Stales of America. All sums paid hereunder shall be applied first against
interest then due and the remainder against principal.

3. Optional Prepayment. Any indebtedness hereunder may be prepaid, in
whole or in part, at any time, without premium or penalty. All payments under this
Promissory Note shall be applied first to the payment of Holder's costs and expenses of
collection, if any, second to the payment of the principal balance hereunder.

4. Default. Any of the following actions or inactions shall be deemed an
“Event of Default’ under this Promissory Note: (i) all unpaid outstanding balance under
this Promissory Note is not received by Holder when due and within five (5) business
days after notice of non-receipt, and (ii) Holder commits a breach of any term of this
Promissory Note or the Guaranty, and such breach remains uncured for a period of ten

11530001 0009 ¢ 2



(10} business days. In the Event of Default, Holder may declare the entire outstanding
principal indebtedness evidenced hereby, to be immediately due and payable and the
same shall thereupon become immediately due and payable, without any further
presentment, demand, protest or notice of any kind, and interest on the overdue
payment shall thereupon accrue at the interest rate of Ten Percent (10%) per annum
compounded annually for so long as the Event of Default continues.

O Modification. This Promissory Note may he amended or modified only by
an instrument in writing which expressly refers to this Promissory Note and which is duly
executed by both Holder and Maker; provided, however, that if the Guaranty has not
been terminated as of the time of such amendment or modification, any such
amendment or modification shall also be duly executed by Guarantor.

6. Governing Law. This Promissory Note shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

7. Limitation on Interest. Notwithstanding any provision herein, the total
liability for payments in the nature of interest shall not exceed the applicable limits
imposed by any applicable state or federal interest rate laws. If any payments in the
nature of interest, additional interest and any other charges made hereunder are held to
be in excess of the applicable limits imposed by any applicable state or federal laws, it is
agreed that any such amount held to be in excess shall be considered payment of
principal and the indebtedness evidenced hereby shall be reduced by such amount in
the inverse order of maturity so that the total liability for payments in the nature of
interest, additional interest and any other charges shall not exceed the applicable limits
imposed by any applicable state or federal interest rate laws in compliance with the

desires of Holder and Maker.

8. Waiver. Maker hereby expressly waives presentment or demand for

payment, dishonor or notice of dishonor, protest or notice of protest or any other

formality.

11530 001.0009 ¢ 3



9. Rights; Remedies. No delay, failure or omission by Holder to exercise any
right or remedy shall constitute a waiver of the right to exercise the right or
remedy upon any Event of Default of Maker.

10.  Successor and Assians. Maker shall not assign its obligations hereunder
without the prior written consent of Holder. This Promissory Note shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respeclive successors and

assigns.

11.  Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to each and
every term and provision of this Promissory Note.

12. Notices. All notices hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be
deemed effectively given upon receipt of personal delivery or twenty-four (24) hours after
deposit with an ovemight courier, addressed to a party at its address set forth above.

13.  Attorneys’ Fees. If legal action shall be necessary to interpret or enforce
any of the terms of this Promissory Note, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
reasonable aftorneys’ fees and costs incurred thereby.

14.  Severability. If any of the provisions of this Promissory Note shall be heid
to be invalid or unenforceable, the determination of invalidity or unenforceability of any
such provision or provisions shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision or provisions hereof.

15. Counterparts. This Promissory Note may be executed in one or more
counterparts, all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

(Signature page follows)

11530 001.0009 ¢ 4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Maker has executed this Promissory Note effective as

of the date first set forth above.

Acknowledged by:
HOLDER

MAKER

River Montessori Charter School
a California non-profit corporation

By:

Name: Kelley Mannion

Title: Executive Director

Date;

United Cerebral Palsy of the North Bay

a California non-profit corporation

By:

Name . Margaret Farman Schliessmann

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date:

11530 00] 0009 ¢
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RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the
Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Regular/Annual Meeting: October 11, 2016
Time: 6:30pm

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
4 Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order:
Roll Call: Tammy Cleland, Carolyn Duffy, Betsy Hall, Ginny Hautau, Norman Lorenz, Tim
Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Eresa Puch
Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

B. Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision: 6:35pm
C. Student Presentations: Montessori Student Presentation

D. Agenda Review

E. Public Comment:
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15
minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public
comment. The Board does not respond or take action on public comments.

F. Approval: Minutes from 08/09/16 RMCS BOD Meeting

G. Communications (*6:45pm)

1. Executive Director’s Report
Facilities Report
Policy Compliance/Committee Report
Positive Resolution Committee Report
Foundation/Fundraising Report

gk wbd
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RMCS BOD Meeting Agenda, for September 13, 2016 - page 2

H. Board Business (*7:30pm)

1. Discussion & Action: Strategic Planning
2. Discussion & Action: New Board Member Installation
3. Discussion & Action Resolution to Increase Balance of Revolving Bank Account
4. Discussion: Annual Board Calendar Update
5. Discussion: LCAP Update
. Adjourn (*8:30pm)

*All times are provided as a courtesy and are estimates that may be changed at the discretion of the Board Chair, and/or according to the
meeting flow.

Future Meeting Date(s):

November 8, 2016 - 6:30pm December 13, 2016 - 6:30pm
January 21, 2017- Retreat 9:00a-4:00p February 14, 2017 - 6:30pm
March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm
May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often
and your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our
meetings, the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda.

However, due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These
presentations are limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes.
Exceptions to these time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to
respond to your concerns or you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that

item. Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.

[For office use only: Posted On-site: Initial /Date Posted Website: Initial /Date ]



RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meeting Minutes
3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to
participate in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on
the school website www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act.

Location(s):

O RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
[d Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

Regular Meeting: September 13, 2016

A.

Opening/Call to Order: 6:33 pm

Roll Call:

In attendance: Tammy Cleland, Carolyn Duffy, Betsy Ehlen Hall, Ginny Hautau, Tim Lohrentz,
Norman Lorenz, Ruben Mejia, Eresa Puch

Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Julie Carolan, Administration & Communications
Manager

Guests: Julie Petersen (RMF Secretary), Joe Campbell, Catherine Campbell, Jennifer Durst

Student Presentations
e None

Agenda Review
e Tim recommended and everyone agreed to switch Board Business Discussion and
Action items 2 and 3 for effective flow.

Public Comment
e Parent, Joe Campbell, had questions about serving as a board member and his own
uncertainty of interest given the boring nature of the work.

Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15 minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President
may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The Board does not respond or take action on public comments.

Approval of Meeting Minutes - 08/09/16 RMCS BOD Meeting
e Recommendation (based on earlier Board training) to report voting by roll call as
required by Brown Act when teleconference is utilized.
Action: Approved Meeting Minutes from 08/09/16 RMCS BOD Meeting.
e Motion: Carolyn. Second: Tammy.
e A: Betsy, Eresa, Ginny, Ruben, Tim
e N: O
e Abstention: Norman (absent on 08/09/16 BOD meeting)

Communications
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1. Executive Director’s Report
a. Workshops attended by Kelly and faculty; Sp. Ed. training w/SELPA; Legal
training re: personnel, parent, and student services. School events - ‘Touch A
Truck’ for Alex’'s Lemonade Stand Foundation (children helping children);
International Peace Day; Partnership meetings (conferences).
b. Current enrollment;: TK/K - 46, LE - 79, UE - 51
c. CAASPP Assessment - Inquiry into options to effectively analyze data results due
to many different and unique attributes of RMCS compared with other school
districts/educational programs.
d. Montessori Compass - Norman requested to follow up with the vendor regarding
training.
2. Finance Report - No report. See Discussion & Action.
3. Facilities Report
a. Julie will be assembling the revised Emergency Plan.
b. Ruben asked how to properly discuss confidential matters regarding facilities
planning.
4. Policy Compliance/Committee Report
a. No report. Planning to meet soon.
5. Positive Resolution Committee Report
a. No report.
6. River Montessori Foundation Report (by Julie Petersen)
a. Annual Fund is currently at 10% participation - slow start but energy is high with
lots of fundraising ideas
b. Start of ‘Burger Wednesdays’'
Previous events - Dine & Donate at Panera
d. Future events - Skate Night, Coffee Social, Teacher Appreciation Potluck, and
many more upcoming community events
e. Creator Faire planning
f. Parent Directory in process

13

G. Board Business
1. Discussion & Action: Review/Approve Unaudited Financials
a. Tim presented the Unaudited Financial report as of June 30, 2016.
b. The Board will need to approve a depreciation table.
c. Norman requested an itemized attachment to clarify and correct as needed in the Misc
Payables at the end of the year as an underpayment.
Action: Approved RMCS Unaudited Financial report as of June 30, 2016
e Motion: Eresa. Second: Norman.
e A: Betsy, Carolyn, Ginny, Ruben, Tammy, Tim
e N: O
2. Discussion & Action: Strategic Planning
a. Tim led an exercise in which three small groups discussed and shared thoughts
about the Board’s vision of RMCS’ future in the next five years. Specific
questions for groups included, What grade levels do we want to serve?, What
would be a stable enroliment?, New site?, and Do you see RMCS as an urban or
rural school community?



Discussion & Action: Review/Approve Prop 39 Bridge Loan from United Cerebral Palsy
of the North Bay, Inc.

a. In May 2016, Board approved the Solar Craft project with a total cost of
$156,340. Due to grant funding release schedule, RMCS will not receive final
disbursement of $50K State funds until February 2018. The building owner,
UCPNB offered a 0% interest loan for $25K with maturity date of January 31,
2018, in order to meet the contracted deadlines until receipt of final
disbursement.

Action: Approved Prop 39 Bridge Loan from UCPNB for $25K.

Motion: Tim. Second: Ginny.

A: Betsy, Eresa, Norman, Ruben, Tammy

N: O

Abstention: Carolyn

Discussion & Action: Calendar Executive Director Evaluation

Action: Moved date to October 2016 from February 2017 and will create a Board
subcommittee to work with Kelly and present to the Board.

e Motion: Norman. Second: Eresa

e A: Betsy, Carolyn, Ginny, Ruben, Tammy, Tim,

e N: O

Discussion: Introduce Board Binder & Board Service Forms

a. Julie and Carolyn created Board binders with important documents and training
materials for Board members who do not have one yet.

b. Carolyn distributed Board service forms for Board members to sign and submit
by next BOD meeting in October.

Discussion: LCAP

a. Kelly reported on LCAP update; Montessori Compass’ planning perspective;
professional development; strengthening community partnership; promoting
events

Discussion: New Board Members Messaging to Community

a. Board discussed procedures for the upcoming election of new Board members

as described in previous school community newsletter.
Discussion: UE self-contained classrooms

a. UE classrooms are self-contained with guides completing Montessori curriculum
befitting of their individual students and classroom communities. Worksheets to
be addressed and decreased.

H. Adjourn at 9:21 pm

Future Meeting Date(s): October 11, 2016 - 6:30 pm November 8, 2016 - 6:30 pm
December 13, 2016 - 6:30 pm January 21, 2017 - Retreat 9am-4pm
February 14, 2017 - 6:30 pm March 14, 2017 - 6:30 pm
April 11, 2017 - 6:30 pm May 9, 2017 - 6:30 pm

June 27, 2017 - 6:30 pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community




River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and
your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings,
the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However,
due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these time
limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.
Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.




RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the Board
meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Regular/Annual Meeting: November 8, 2016
Time: 6:30pm

Location(s):
I RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
[ Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
[ Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order (2 minutes)
Roll Call: Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy Ehlen
Hall, Tammy Cleland, Eva Covarrubias
Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

B. Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision: (5 minutes)
Our mission at River Montessori Charter School is to provide students with a learning culture grounded in
Montessori philosophy. This historically proven educational model supports the whole child, creates lifelong
learners, and educates for peace. The resulting academic excellence is supported by a prepared classroom
environment that inspires self-paced, individualized discovery; a love of learning; and respect for self, others,
and the environment.

Our vision at RMCS is to create a Montessori learning community where children are inspired to realize their
academic, personal, and social potential to become global citizens.

C. Student Presentations: Montessori Student Presentation (20 minutes)
D. Agenda Review (5 minutes)
E. Public Comment:

Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15 minutes
per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The
Board does not respond or take action on public comments.
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F. Approval: Minutes from 10/11/16 RMCS BOD Meeting

G. Communications (*6:45pm)
1. Executive Director’s Report
2. Fiscal Report
3. Facilities Report
4. Policy Compliance/Committee Report
5. Positive Resolution Committee Report
6. Foundation/Fundraising Report

H. Board Business (*7:30pm)
1. Discussion & Action: Strategic Planning
2. Discussion & Action: Review & Approve 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements
3. Discussion & Action Foundation - Board Sponsored Coffee

(December's Coffee Social is scheduled on Dec 16, Friday (8-9 am) but can be
moved to Dec 2 or 9 if the Board prefers)

4. Discussion: Annual RMCS BOD Assessment Survey
5. Discussion: LCAP Update
. Adjourn (*8:30pm)

*All times are provided as a courtesy and are estimates that may be changed at the discretion of the Board Chair, and/or according to the meeting
flow.

Future Meeting Date(s):

December 13, 2016 - 6:30pm January 21, 2017- Retreat 9:00a-4:00p
February 14, 2017 - 6:30pm March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm
April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm

June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the
Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and your
participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings, the
following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given an
opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However, due
to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these
time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or

you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.

Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future agenda.
Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board can respond,
interact, and act upon the item.

[For office use only: Posted On-site: Initial /Date Posted Website: Initial /Date ]



RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meeting Minutes
3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to
participate in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on
the school website www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act.

Location(s):

O RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
[d Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

Regular Meeting: October 11, 2016

A.

Opening/Call to Order: 6:35 pm

Roll Call:

In attendance: Carolyn Duffy, Betsy Ehlen Hall, Ginny Hautau, Norman Lorenz, Tim Lohrentz,
Ruben Mejia, Eresa Puch

Absent: Tammy Cleland

Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

Guests: Julie Petersen (RMF Secretary)

Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision - Carolyn
Student Presentations - None

Agenda Review

Action: Approved Agenda for October 11, 2016 BOD Meeting
e Motion: Approved by consensus
e A: Carolyn, Betsy, Ginny, Norman, Tim, Ruben, Eresa
e N: O

Public Comment: None

Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15 minutes per topic.
With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The Board does not respond
or take action on public comments.

Approval: Minutes from September 13, 2016 RMCS BOD Meeting
e Motion: Carolyn
e Second: Betsy
e A: Ginny, Norman, Tim, Ruben, Eresa
e N: O
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G.

H.

Communications

1.

Executive Director’'s Report (Kelly)
a. Update about recent safety report - no safety issue or concern as verified by
police department
b. Current enrollment: TK/K - 45, LE - 76, UE - 50
International Peace Day was delightful
d. Great feedback from guides and families regarding conferences/partnership
meetings
e. Grapes & Gratitude with Cypress
f. Board members and everyone are invited for ‘Montessori Journey’ Parent
University/Professional Development
g. CAASPP Assessment - Kelly will compile presentation for BOD regarding
benefits and relevant information for our students and community, to include
feedback from entire school community.
h. 1st Progress Report - to be distributed at end of week
i. LCAP update- Professional development, assessments results analysis, new
quarterly surveys distributed next week to be analyzed.
Facilities Report (Julie and Ruben)
a. Facilities Manual is ready. Next steps include review by Facilities Committee and
Safety officer.
b. Solar project is moving along. Panels were ordered by Cypress. Planned to
begin over December break.
Policy/Compliance Committee Report (Carolyn and Eresa)
a. The Policy/Compliance Committee held first meeting on 10/08/2016.
b. Established committee’s purpose and planned work for the next coming months.
c. Current RMCS policies will be reviewed and grouped for effective access.
d. Compliance/practices will be reviewed.
Positive Resolution Committee Report - No complaints/no report
Foundation/Fundraising Report (Julie Petersen)
a. Lots of events coming up; Fundraising still lagging, annual fund very low; Lots of
new families versus founders/founding spirit of participation; In the process of
educating families about benefits of fundraising; Aims to increase lunch sign-ups.

o

Board Business

1.

Dlscussion & Action: Strategic Planning

a. Tim recommended to incorporate planning for facility into Strategic Planning

b. Tim led a second series of exercises for BOD members in relation to Strategic
Planning. Each Board member envisioned an ideal RMCS 10-15 years from
now, with an overwhelming agreed vision of a full primary program (3-6 years
old) program through adolescence/high school, and great interest in infant/toddler
program as well as a teacher training center.

c. Discussion & Action: New Board Member Installation

i.  The Board welcomed Eva Covarrubias as the newly elected Parent
member.

d. A warm farewell and gratitude to outgoing Parent member and Board Vice-Chair

Carolyn Duffy.

Action: To approve the executive members of the Board as presented:



Board Chair - Norman Lorenz
Board Vice-Chair - Ginny Hautau
Board Treasurer - Tim Lohrentz (seeking replacement)
Interim Board Treasurer - Eresa Puch
Board Secretary - Eresa Puch (seeking replacement)
Motion: Carolyn
Second: Ruben
A: Betsy, Ginny, Norman, Tim, Eresa
e N: O
2. Discussion & Action: Resolution to Increase Balance of Revolving Bank Account
(Michelle)
a. Need to increase the balance of revolving bank account from $1,000 to $20,000
in order to meet the recent change in requirement for depositing payroll taxes
(Current requirement: Once a month, three days after processing payroll).
b. Norman suggested to train a backup employee who can deposit payroll taxes
when Michelle is unavailable.

odooo

Action: Increase the balance of revolving bank account from $1,000 to $20,000 in order
to meet new monthly submission deadline requirement and train a backup employee to
deposit payroll taxes when needed.
e Motion: Norman
e Second: Betsy
e A: Ginny, Carolyn, Ruben, Tim, Eresa
e N: O
3. Discussion: Annual Board Calendar Update (Norman)
a. The 2016-17 annual charter school governing board calendar is a living
document and constantly updated.
4. Discussion: LCAP Update (Kelly)
a. Professional development, assessments results analysis, new quarterly surveys
distributed next week to be analyzed.

. Adjourn at 8:29 pm

Future Meeting Date(s):

November 8, 2016 - 6:30 pm December 13, 2016 - 6:30 pm
January 21, 2017 - Retreat 9 am - 4 pm February 14, 2017 - 6:30 pm
March 14, 2017 - 6:30 pm April 11, 2017 - 6:30 pm

May 9, 2017 - 6:30 pm June 27, 2017 - 6:30 pm



Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and
your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings,
the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However,
due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these time
limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.
Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.




RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the
Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Regular/Annual Meeting: December 13, 2016

Time: 6:30pm

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
[d Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

Opening/Call to Order

Roll Call: Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy Ehlen
Hall, Tammy Cleland, Eva Covarrubias

Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision:

Our mission at River Montessori Charter School is to provide students with a learning culture grounded in
Montessori philosophy. This historically proven educational model supports the whole child, creates lifelong
learners, and educates for peace. The resulting academic excellence is supported by a prepared classroom
environment that inspires self-paced, individualized discovery; a love of learning; and respect for self, others,
and the environment.

Our vision at RMCS is to create a Montessori learning community where children are inspired to realize their
academic, personal, and social potential to become global citizens.

Student Presentations: Montessori Student Presentation (20 minutes)

LCAP Public Feedback Session
e Promote Academic Excellence Through Montessori Methodology
e Develop Attributes of Successful Learners in an Authentic Montessori School
e Strengthen Montessori School-Family Communication and Partnership

Agenda Review
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RMCS BOD Meeting Agenda, for December 13, 2016 - page 2
F. Public Comment:

Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15 minutes
per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The
Board does not respond or take action on public comments.

G. Approval: Minutes from 11/08/16 RMCS BOD Meeting

H. Communications
1. Foundation/Fundraising Report

2. Executive Director’s Report
3. Fiscal Report
4. Facilities Report
5. Policy Compliance/Committee Report
l. Board Business
1. Discussion: CSDC Leadership Update Conference
2. Discussion & Action: Strategic Planning
3. Discussion & Action: Review & Approve 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements
4. Discussion & Action First Interim Report
5. Discussion & Action: BOD Survey
6. Discussion: AMS Conference (March 2017)

J. Adjourn

Future Meeting Date(s):

January 21, 2017- Retreat 9:00a-4:00p February 14, 2017 - 6:30pm
March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm
May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the
Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and your
participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings, the
following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given an
opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However, due
to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these
time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or

you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.

Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future agenda.
Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board can respond,
interact, and act upon the item.

[For office use only: Posted On-site: Initial_JC__ /Date_12/9 Posted Website: Initial JC _ /Date_12/9 ]




REGULAR MEETING OF THE
RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL (RMCS) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414
November 8, 2016
6:30 - 8:03 PM

MINUTES

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to
participate in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on
the school website www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act.

Location(s):
@ RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
[ Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
[ Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

1. CALL TO ORDER
1.1.  Director Lorenz called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.
1.2.  Directors Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Ruben Mejia, Betsy Ehlen Hall,
Tammy Cleland, and Eva Covarrubias were present.

2. MISSION STATEMENT
2.1. Director Hall read the mission statement.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT - None
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15
minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public
comment. The Board does not respond or take action on public comments.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
4.1. Postponed Fiscal Report to December Board meeting.
4.2. Moved Foundation/Fundraising Report to Communication item #1.
4.3. Agenda was approved and passed with unanimous consent (7-0-0).

5. CONSENT AGENDA
5.1. Minutes of the October 11, 2016 Board meeting were approved with a motion from Dir.
Lorenz. Dir. Cleland abstained (6-0-1).

6. COMMUNICATIONS
6.1.  Foundation/Fundraising Report
Julie Petersen, RMF Secretary reported on contribution check given to the school,
holiday catalog, cookies sale, Copperfields donate, December Toy B Ville, holiday
season bake sale, and planning for gala and walkathon next year.
6.2.  Executive Director’'s Report


http://www.rivermontessoricharter.org/

Kelly Mannion reported on the success of ‘Silent Journey’, prospective meeting with
parents, SCOE-hosted event to address shortage of teachers, History’s Mysteries,
Professional Development Day, International Day, SELPA’s visit, staff changes, and total
current enrollment.

6.3. Business Manager, Michelle Leonard, reported on Solar Project, employee handbook,
retirement plans for classified employees, and revenues and expenses’ actuals versus
budget.

6.4. Facilities Committee Report - nothing to report.

6.5. Policy Compliance Committee Report - nothing to report.

6.6. Positive Resolution Committee Report - nothing to report.

7. BOARD BUSINESS

7.1.  There was no discussion and action on Strategic Planning.

7.2.  There was no discussion and action on 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements.

7.3.  The Board discussed sponsoring and hosting the December Coffee Social on December
9, 2016 from 8:00 to 9:00 AM. Dir. Lorenz moved to approve Board’s sponsoring of this
event. The motion passed with unanimous consent (7-0-0).

7.4. The Board discussed the Annual RMCS BOD Assessment Survey. Dir. Lorenz talked
about the survey for Board members.

7.5.  The Board discussed current updates regarding RMCS LCAP goals.

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
8.1.  LCAP update and feedback session in December
8.2. Board member survey/assessment
8.3.  March 2017 AMS conference

9. ADJOURNMENT

9.1.  Dir. Lorenz moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:03 PM. The motion passed with a
unanimous consent (7-0-0).

Future Meeting Dates:

December 13, 2016 - 6:30 PM January 21, 2017 - Retreat 9 AM - 4 PM
February 14, 2017 - 6:30 PM March 14, 2017 - 6:30 PM
April 11, 2017 - 6:30 PM May 9, 2017 - 6:30 PM

June 27, 2017 - 6:30 PM

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and
your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings,
the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However,
due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these time
limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.




Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.
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Vicenti, Lloyd & Stutzman, CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
River Montessori Charter School
Petaluma, CA

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of River Montessori Charter School (the
School), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

2210 E. Route 66, Glendora, CA91740 Phone 626.857.7300 Fax 626.857.7302
555 W. 5th Street, Floor 35, Los Angeles, CA 90013 Phone 213.550.5422 www.vicenticpas.com



Board of Directors
River Montessori Charter School

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on page one present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the School’s financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 11,
2016 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

ot ot + S 2P
VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP

Glendora, CA
October 11, 2016



RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2016

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 364,540
Accounts receivable 203,382
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,111
Total current assets 578,033
LONG-TERM ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment, net 143,845
Total long-term assets 143,845
Total assets $ 721,878

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 164,024
Total current liabilities 164,024

NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted 421,460
Temporarily restricted 136,394
Total net assets 557,854
Total liabilities and net assets $ 721,878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
State revenue:
State apportionments
Other state revenue
Federal revenue:
Grants and entitlements
Local revenue:
In-lieu property tax revenue
Investment income
Other revenue

Total revenues
Net assets released from restriction

Total revenues and amounts released

EXPENSES:
Program services - Education
Management and general
Total expenses

Change in net assets

Beginning net assets - unadjusted
Adjustment for restatement (Note 6)

Beginning net assets - restated

Ending net assets

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

$ 339,091 $ - $ 339,091
228,662 151,176 379,838
21,375 21,375
815,076 815,076
3,149 3,149
143,004 143,004
1,550,357 151,176 1,701,533
59,197 (59,197) -
1,609,554 91,979 1,701,533
1,333,696 1,333,696
297,495 297,495
1,631,191 - 1,631,191
(21,637) 91,979 70,342
443,097 44 415 487,512
(19,309) - (19,309)
423,788 44,415 468,203

$ 421460 $ 136,394 $ 557,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS from OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ 70,342

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows from
operating activities:

Depreciation 50,851
Change in operating assets:

Accounts receivable 49,534

Change in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,719
Net cash flows from operating activities 174,446
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 174,446
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 190,094
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 364,540

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Salaries and wages

Pension expense

Other employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Legal expenses

Accounting expenses

Instructional materials

Other fees for services
Advertising and promotion expenses
Office expenses

Printing and postage expenses
Information technology expenses
Occupancy expenses

Travel expenses

Conference and meeting expenses
Depreciation expense

Insurance expense

Other expenses

Program Management Total

Services and General Expenses
$ 656,483 $ 156,182 $ 812,665
44,454 - 44,454
47,746 10,093 57,839
14,605 18,669 33,274
- 5,371 5,371
- 12,000 12,000
64,021 - 64,021
110,781 23,339 134,120
- 3,759 3,759
- 9,438 9,438
- 4,853 4,853
7,466 - 7,466
308,261 - 308,261
5,417 - 5,417
15,355 - 15,355
50,851 - 50,851
- 14,028 14,028
8,256 39,763 48,019
$ 1,333,696 $ 297,495 $ 1,631,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities — River Montessori Charter School (the School) is a nonprofit public benefit
corporation, incorporated by the State of California November 2007, and became an independent charter
school in 2009 for first through sixth grade through the California Department of Education, with the
addition of Kindergarten added in the current fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Approximately 70% of the School's revenue is derived from basic aid apportionment of State funds
made available to school districts based on average daily attendance. Federal and State grants represent
approximately 20% of total revenue. 10% of revenues received from local revenues, including
donations.

The School's mission is to provide students with a learning culture which is grounded in Montessori
Philosophy. This educational model supports the whole child, creates lifelong learners, and educates for
peace. The resulting academic excellence is supported by a prepared classroom environment that
inspires self-paced, individualized discovery and a love of learning, as well as respect for self, others,
and the environment.

The vision of the School, located in Petaluma, CA, is a Montessori learning community where children
are inspired to realize their academic, personal, and social potential to become global citizens.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The School defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on
hand, demand deposits, and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Accounting — The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of accounting
and accordingly reflect all significant receivables and liabilities.

Functional Allocation of Expenses — Costs of providing the School’s programs and other activities
have been presented in the statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are
accumulated into separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated
among program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of benefit.

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as prescribed by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board.



RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Net Asset Classes — The School is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently
restricted. Net assets of the School are defined as:

o Unrestricted: All resources over which the governing board has discretionary control to use in
carrying on the general operations of the School.

o Temporarily restricted: These net assets are restricted by donors to be used for specific purposes.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets and are reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. There
were temporarily restricted net assets of $136,394 as of June 30, 2016.

o Permanently restricted: These net assets are permanently restricted by donors and cannot be used
by the School. The School does not currently have any permanently restricted net assets.

Receivables — Accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from federal and state governments
as of June 30, 2016. Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible, therefore no
provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost if purchased or at
estimated fair market value if donated. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the asset.

Contributed Assets and Services — Contributions of donated non-cash assets are recorded at fair value in
the period received. Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at fair values in the period received.

Property Taxes — Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.
Taxes are levied on September 1 and are payable in two installments on or before November 1 and
February 1. Unsecured property taxes are not a lien against real property and are payable in one
installment on or before August 31. The County bills and collects property taxes for all taxing agencies
within the County and distributes these collections to the various agencies. The sponsor agency of the
School is required by law to provide in-lieu property tax payments on a monthly basis, from August
through July. The amount paid per month is based upon an allocation per student, with a specific
percentage to be paid each month.

Compensated Absences — Employees of the School are entitled to “paid time-off” depending upon job
classification, length of service, and other factors. Due to the nature of the employees' position, accrued
“paid time-off “ is not carried over from year to year, and the School does not pay employees in lieu of
unused “paid time-off”; accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial
statements. The School's policy is to recognize the cost when actually paid.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognition — Amounts received from the California Department of Education are recognized
as revenue by the School based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of students. Revenue that is
restricted is recorded as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting
period in which the revenue is recognized. All other restricted revenues are reported as increases in
temporarily restricted net assets.

Contributions — All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted to specific use or future periods are reported
as temporarily restricted. Restricted contributions that are received and released in the same period are
reported as unrestricted revenue. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in one year or
less are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in more
than one year are recorded at fair market value at the date of the promise. Conditional promises to give
are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they depend
are substantially met.

Income Taxes — The School is a non-profit entity exempt from the payment of income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701d.
Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes. Management has determined that all income
tax positions are more likely than not of being sustained upon potential audit or examination; therefore,
no disclosures of uncertain income tax positions are required. The School files informational returns in
the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and the state of California. The statute of limitations for federal and
California state purposes is generally three and four years, respectively.

Evaluation of Subsequent Events — The School has evaluated subsequent events through October 11,
2016, the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The School maintains cash balances held in banks and revolving funds which are insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, cash in these accounts exceeds the
insured amounts. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.

NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment in the accompanying financial statements is presented net of accumulated
depreciation. The School capitalizes all expenditures for land, buildings and equipment in excess of
$5,000. Depreciation expense was $50,851 as of June 30, 2016.



RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The components of property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Leasehold improvements $ 383,258
Furniture, fixtures, equipment 124,361

507,619
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (363,774)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 143,845

NOTE 4: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers’
Retirement System (STRS).

The risks of participating in this multiemployer defined benefit pension plan are different from single-
employer plans because: (a) assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used
to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers, (b) the required member, employer,
and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement
Law, and (c) if the School chooses to stop participating in the multiemployer plan, it may be required to
pay a withdrawal liability to the plan. The School has no plans to withdraw from this multiemployer
plan.

State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS)

Plan Description

The School contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing multi-employer
public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. Plan
information for STRS is not publicly available. The plan provides retirement, disability and survivor
benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended,
within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law. According to the most recently available Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuation Report for the year ended June 30, 2015, total plan net
assets are $181 billion, the total actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits is $242 billion,
contributions from all employers totaled $2.55 billion, and the plan is 68.5% funded. The School did
not contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the plan.

Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard,
Sacramento, CA 95826 and www.calstrs.com.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 4: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

Funding Policy

Active plan members hired before December 31, 2012 are required to contribute 9.20% of their salary
and those hired after are required to contribute 8.56% of their salary. The School is required to
contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining
the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers’ Retirement Board. Under the 2014 funding plan,
employer contributions on compensation creditable to the program will increase every year for the next
seven years, up to 19.10% in 2020-21. The required employer contribution rate for year ended June 30,
2016 was 10.73% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established
and may be amended by State statute.

The School’s contributions to STRS for the past three fiscal years are as follows:

Year Ended  Required Percent
June 30, Contribution Contributed
2014 $ 36,317 100%
2015 $ 43,012 100%
2016 $ 44,454 100%

NOTE 5: OPERATING LEASES

River Montessori Charter School leases its facility under a non-cancelable operating lease agreement
dated July 15, 2009. The lease requires that the School pay its pro-rata share of maintenance and
insurance. The lease commenced September 2009 and expires in June 2018. Future minimum rental
payments under the terms of the lease as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30,
2017 $ 194,724
2018 200,556
2019 206,573
Total $ 601,853

Rent expense, including maintenance and insurance, for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $237,053.

NOTE 6: ADJUSTMENT FOR RESTATMENT

The School identified an over-accrual of prior year funding and restated beginning net assets by
$19,3009.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 7: CONTINGENCIES

The School has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it
is believed that any required reimbursement would not be material.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

River Montessori Charter School was established to provide elementary education to pupils in
kindergarten through sixth grade. The School was granted authority as a charter school in May 2009
through the State Board of Education. Beginning July 2014, the School's authorizing agent became Old
Adobe Union School District.

The charter school number is: 1086

The Board of Directors and the Administrator as of the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Member

Office

Term Expires (term)

Norman Lorenz
Carolyn Duffy
Tim Lorentz
Eresa Puch
Ginny Hautau
Tammy Cleland
Ruben Mejia
Betsy Hall

Kelly Griffith Mannion

Chairperson
Vice Chairperson
Treasurer
Secretary
Community Member
Parent Member
Parent Member
Community Member

ADMINISTRATOR

Executive Director and
Superintendent
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October 2017 (3 yrs)
October 2016 (3 yrs)
October 2017 (3 yrs)
October 2018 (3 yrs)
October 2017 (2 yrs)
October 2017 (2 yrs)
October 2018 (2 yrs)
October 2017 (2 yrs)



RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Instructional Minutes Instructional
Requirement Actual Days Status
Kindergarten 36,000 60,800 175 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 60,800 175 In compliance
Grade 2 50,400 60,800 175 In compliance
Grade 3 50,400 60,800 175 In compliance
Grade 4 54,000 60,800 175 In compliance
Grade 5 54,000 60,800 175 In compliance
Grade 6 54,000 60,800 175 In compliance

See independent auditor’s report and the notes to the supplementary information.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Second Period Report Annual Report

Classroom Classroom
Based Total Based Total
Grades TK / K-3 111.09 112.89 112.22 114.08
Grades 4-6 44.00 44.62 43.18 43.83
ADA Totals 155.09 157.51 155.40 157.91

See independent auditor’s report and the notes to the supplementary information.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

There were no differences between the Annual Financial Report and the Audited Financial Statements.

See independent auditor’s report and the notes to the supplementary information.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the School and
whether the School complied with the provisions of the Education Code.

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the School. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to charter schools. This schedule provides information
regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets of the charter schools as
reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the audited financial statements.
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Vicenti, Lloyd & Stutzman, CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
River Montessori Charter School
Petaluma, CA

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of River Montessori
Charter School (the School), a nonprofit California public benefit corporation, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, cash flows
and functional expenses for the year then ended, the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

2210 E. Route 66, Glendora, CA 91740 Phone 626.857.7300 Fax 626.857.7302
555 W. 5th Street, Floor 35, Los Angeles, CA 90013 Phone 213.550.5422 www.vicenticpas.com



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ot o + Sl LLP

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP
Glendora, CA
October 11, 2016
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Vicenti, Lloyd & Stutzman, CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Directors
River Montessori Charter School
Petaluma, CA

We have audited River Montessori Charter School’s (the School) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2015-2016 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel for the year
ended June 30, 2016. The School’s State compliance requirements are identified in the table below.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for the compliance with the State laws and regulations as identified below.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to below. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, and the 2015-2016 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
specific areas listed below has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion on state compliance. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s
compliance.

Compliance Requirements Tested

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to
determine the School’s compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures

Description Performed
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:
Educator Effectiveness Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After School Education and Safety Program Not applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes

2210 E. Route 66, Glendora, CA 91740 Phone 626.857.7300 Fax 626.857.7302

555 W. 5th Street, Floor 35, Los Angeles, CA 90013 Phone 213.550.5422 www.vicenticpas.com



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Procedures

Description Performed
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not applicable
Immunizations Yes
Charter Schools:

Attendance Yes

Mode of Instruction Yes

Nonclassroom-based instructional/independent study No'

Determination of funding for nonclassroom-based instruction Not applicable

Annual instructional minutes — classroom based Yes

Charter School Facility Grant Program Not applicable

1We did not perform testing for independent study because the independent study ADA was under the level which requires testing.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, the School complied with the laws and regulations of the state programs referred to
above in all material respects for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of testing based on the
requirements of the 2015-2016 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

ot o+ Shgrwn 2P
VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP

Glendora, CA
October 11, 2016
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

All audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following twelve categories:

Five Digit Code

10000
20000
30000
40000
42000
50000
60000
61000
62000
70000
71000
72000

Finding Types

Attendance

Inventory of Equipment

Internal Control

State Compliance

Charter School Facilities Program
Federal Compliance
Miscellaneous

Classroom Teacher Salaries

Local Control Accountability Plan
Instructional Materials

Teacher Misassignments

School Accountability Report Card

There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements or state awards for

June 30, 2016.
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RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements or state awards for
the prior year.
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River Montessori Elementary Charter First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary Fiscal Year 2016-17

Sonoma County Charter School Certification
Charter Number:

49 70847 0119750
Form CI

To the chartering authority and the county superintendent of schools (or only to tha county superintendent of
schools if the county board of education is the chartering authority):

2016-17 CHARTER SCHOOL INTERIM REPORT: This report is hereby filed by the charter school pursuant to
Education Code Section 47604.33(a).

Signed:

Date: “! Zg! [ b

Printed
Name: Kelly Griffith Mannion Title: Executive Director

For additional information on the interim report, please contact:

Charter School Contact:

Michelle Leonard
Name

Business Manager
Title

707-778-6414
Telephone

mleonard@rivermontessoricharter.org
E-mail Address

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - Version 2016.2.0

File: cbi-cs {Rev 03/26/2009) Page 1 Printed: 11/26/2016 12:42 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2018-17 First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 48 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pesition Form 621
% DuY
Board Approved Projectsd Year Differunce Column
Originsl Budget | Operating Budget |  Actuals To Dats Totats {ColB & D} BAD
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes! LY 8} c} i0) {E} (L}
A REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8098 1,282 337 00 1,282,337.00 366,447.00 1,262 337.00 0.00 0.0%
2} Fedaral Revenue £100-825% 2078100 20,781.00 51.00 20,781.06 0.00 0.0%
3) Cther State Revenue 8300-8559 8385900 83,650.00 2,13368 63,659.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 9600-6799 24385600 243,856.00 16,816.13 243,956.00 0.00 0.0%
TAL_REVEN 1,830,732.00 1,630,733.00 38544779 1,830,733 00
B. EXPENSES
1} Cartificated Salaries 1000-1899 55392800 553,828.00 184,956.03 §53,828.00 0.00 0.0%)
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2099 331,416.00 331,416.00 £9,952.60 331.418.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employea Benefits 3000-2669 181,915.00 191,815.00 £3116.58 161,915.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Suppiles 40004659 £8,375.00 88,375.00 22.007.77 88.375.00 0.00 0.0%|
5) and Othar Oparating E 5000-5069 442,548.00 442 549.00 119,400 41 442,549 00 0.00 0.0%)
€) Depreciation 8000-6999 44,550.00 44,550.00 000 44.550.00 000 0.0%/|
7) Other Outgo (exciuding Transters of Indirect 7100-7208,
Costs) 7400-7409 0.00 0.00 548.79 000 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7309 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TQTAL EXPENSES 1,630,733 00 1,830,733 00 47038318 1,830,723 00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
{ _FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS . BS) 000 0.00 {84,835 40)] 200
D. OTHER FiNANCING SOURCES/USES
1) ntesfund Transfers
a) Translers in 8800-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
b Transters Out 7600-7828 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sourcar/Usas
) Sources 8930-8879 0.00 00g 6.00 000 0.00 o.0%
b Uses 7830-7808 0.00 oog 0.00 000 000 o.0%
3) Contributions B980-B209 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTA R Fl I 0.00 0.00 0.00 o0
Californin Dapt of
BACS Flnancial Ri Baoftveats - 2016.2.0
Fila: fundl-b (Rev 05/12/2018) Paga 1 Printed: 1172002018 12.42 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2016-17 First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Ravenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pasition Form 621
% Dift
Board Approved Projected Year Diffarence Column
Original Budget | Oparsting Budget | Actuals To Dats Totals (ColB & D) BaD
[Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes) {A) (=] {C} (D} (E} {F}
|E. NET INCREASE [DECREASE) IN
|_NET POSITION |C + 04) 2.00 9.00 184,936 40)| 000
F. NET POSITION
1} Baginning Net Position
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 £49,379.00 557,856.00 557,654.22 {(1.78)) 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments o793 .00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
¢} As of July 1- Audited (F1a + F1b) 649,379.00 £57,056.00 557 654.22
d) Other Restataments 9795 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
@) Adjusted Baginning Net Fosition (F1c + F1d) 549,379.00 557, H56.00 557 854 22
2) Ending Net Poaition, Juna 30 {E + F1e) 649,379.00 557 ,850.00 557,854 22
Components of Ending Net Position
2) Net Investmant in Capital Assets §798 0.00 0.00 0.00
b} Restricted Nat Position 8757 88,552 00 o600 155,014.11
g} Unrestrictod Nt Position S790 560,827.00 557,850 00 402,840.11
Cabfornia Dagt of Education
BACS Finsncial i Boftware - 2010 2.0

aporting
Fila: fund-b {Rev B1272018)

Pan

Prinded. 112072018 1242 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter 2016-17 First Interim
Old Adabe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enferprise Fund 49 70847 0118750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 821
% Dift
Board Approved Projected Year Diffarence Column
Original Budget | Operating Budget |  Actuats To Dats Totals {ColB & D) BaD
Description Rasource Codes __Oblect Codes! {A} {B) i) {0} (3] (2]
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionment
State Ald - Curent Yaar 8011 351,807.00 391,807.00 153.014.00 381,607.00 0.00 0.0%|
Education Protection Account State Ald - Current Yaar BO12 33.250,00 33,250.00 7.876.00 33,250.00 0.00 00%
State Al - Prior Yaars 8019 0.00 0.00 26,042.00 a.00 0.00 00|
LCFF Transfers
Unrestricied LCFF Transfers - Cumrent Yaar 0000 8091 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other LCFF Transters - Current Year Al Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 00g 0.0%
Transfers to Cherter Schools In Lieu of Property Taxas 8088 857,280.00 857,280.00 179,515.00 857,250.00 0.00 0.0%
Proparty Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
LCFF/Revenua Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 1,282 337 00 1,262.337.00 388,447.00 1,262.337.00 0.00 0.0%
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenance and Operations 8110 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Spacial Education Entitlement 8181 20,781.00 20,781.00 51.00 20,781.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Di y Grants 8182 000 0.06 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Donatsd Food Commodities 8 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 oos‘s|
) y Contracts B ) LEAS 8285 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLE: Titia |, Past A, Basic Grants Low-income
and Neglected 3010 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 ©.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLE: Titie t, Pant B, Local Detinquent Program s €290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLE: Title It, Part A, Teacher Quality 4035 6290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Titta (1, Immigrant Education Program 420 8290 0.00 0.00 009 0.00 000 0.0%
NCLE; Titke Ill, Limited Engiish Proficient (LEP)
Student Program 4203 8290 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLE: Title V, Part B, Public Charter Schools
Grant Program (PCSGF) 4310 6280 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3012-3020, 3030-3169,
Gther No Child Lef Behind 40354126, 5510 8290 0.00 6.00 0.00 a.00 0.00 0.0%
Vocational and Apphed Technoiogy Education 3500-3858 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sate and Drug Free Schools 3700-3758 8290 000 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Faderal Revenus ANl Other 8290 0.00 0.00 00 00g 0.00 0.0%
TUTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 20,761.00 20,781.00 51,00 20,781.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Uthar State Apportionments
Special Educstion Master Plan
Curant Year 8500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 [132.3] 0.0%}
Prior Years 6500 8315 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Qther Stat Apportianments - Currerii Year Al Othar 8311 0,00 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
AN Other State Apportionments - Prio Yaars All Other 8218 6.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.60 0.0%)
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mandated Casts Reimb 8550 41,784.00 41,784.00 0.00 41,784.00 0.00 0.0%
Lottary - Unrestricted and | ional Muterial 8580 30,001.00 30,081.00 1,665.80 30,081.00 0.00 0.0%
Altar School Education and Safaty (ASES) £010 8580 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
Caiflorua Depl of Education
?ufmm%““'“"“ Pagm 3 Printed. 1172872010 1242 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2016-17 First Interim

Otd Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0118750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Dif
Hoard Approved Projected Year Differencs Celumn
Original Budget Oparating Budget Actusls To Date Totals CotBAD) 8&D
Description Resource Codes _Obiect Codes! 3] 8) i€} o)) (2]
Charter School Facility Grant 8030 2580 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%:|
DrugrAkcoholTobacen Funds 2690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Calitomis Claan Enargy Jobrs Act 8230 8590 0.00 000 0.00 .00 0.00 0.
Caresr Technical Education incent
Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 000 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Specialized Secondary T3I7N0 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 £.0%|
Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
Common Core State Standards Implementation 7405 8580 0.00 .00 060 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other Siate Reverus All Other 8580 11.804.00 11,604.00 287.78 11,804.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 83.859.00 53,658.00 213368 83 859.00 0.00 0,05_&1
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sals of EquipmenySupplies 8831 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sale of Publications 8832 000 0.00 0.00 £.00 0.00 0.0%|
Food Sarvice Sales 2634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 D.00 0.0%)
Al Other Selas 8839 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 0%
Lsases and Rentals 8450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8860 2,000.00 2,000.00 978.26 2,000.00 000 0.0%
Net Increasa (Decraass) in the Fair Valus of Invesiments 8662 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Fees and Contracts
Child Davelopmant Parent Fees 8a73 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transportation Fees From Individuals 8875 o000 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Interagency Sefvicas B&77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
All Qther Fees and Coniracty 8639 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Qther Local Revenue
Afl Other Local Revenus 8699 158 000.00 158 000 00 1,483.07 158.000.00 0.00 0.0%
Tuition ano 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%]
ANl Other Tranafers In B8701.8783 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Transters of Apportionments
Specis! Education SELPA Translers
From Districts or Charter Schools 8500 8751 0.00 0.00 0.00 £.00 000 0.0%
From County Offices 8500 a7e2 83,8568 00 83 658.00 14,358.00 83,858.00 0.00 4] Dﬂ
From JPAs 8500 8783 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 000 0.0%]
Othar Transfers of Apportionents
From Districts or Chartar Schools All Dther 8701 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 a0 0.0%
From County Offices All Other 72 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs All Other a7 0.00 200 0.00 0.00 4.00 D,OJ
Al Other Transzfers In from Al Others ares 0.00 0.00 6.00 000 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 243,656.00 243 ,958.00 16.618.13 24395800 0.00 4] 0%
TAL, REVEN 1,630,733.00 1,630.733.00 305,447, 1830733
Cahforsia Dept of Educktion
?l?smlfmf:f"”'m e Pagad Printed: 1172852018 1242 PM



River Montessori Elementiary Charier 2016-17 First Interim
Okl Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schoots Enterprise Fund 48 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 821
% Ditt
Board Approved Projectad Year Difference Column
Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals Te Date Totals {Col B & O} B&ED
[Description Rasource Codes _ Object Codes| {A) {B] (] 1) {E} {F}
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Certificated Teachers’ Salaries 1100 457,324.00 457,324.00 140,315.91 457,324.00
Cartificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cartificatad Supervisors’ and Adminisirators' Salaries 1300 96,604.00 96,804 00 32701.32 96,604 00
Other Cortificated Sataries 1600 0.00 0.00 2,938.80 000
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 553,828.00 553,820.00 184,956.03 553,928.00
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified instructional Salaries 2100 135,736.00 135,736.00 3067960 135,738.00 0.00 0.0%
Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Classified Suparvisors’ and Adminisirators’ Salaries 2300 114,500.00 114,500.00 38,188.50 114,500.00 0.00 0.0%)
Clerical, Tachnical and Offica Selaries 2400 £1,380 00 81,180.00 20,803.50 81,180.00 000 0.0%
Other Classified Saiaries 2900 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
FOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 331,418.00 331,418.00 89,952 80 331,418.00 0.00 0.0%
[EMPLOYEE BENEFTIS
STRS 3101-3102 89,884 00 £9,684.00 2220184 69,884 00 0.00 0.0%
PERS 3201-3202 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 urﬁ
OASDUMedicarn/Aliamative 3301-3302 33,386.00 13,368 00 9,630.23 3338800 000 0.0%
Heatth and Wsifarn Banefits 3401-3402 70,807.00 70,807 00 18,237.81 70,607.00 0.00 0.0%
Unemployment insuranca 3501-3502 8,853.00 8,853 00 131.23 B,853.00 0.00 0.0%
Workers' Compensation 013802 9,385.00 8,385 00 2916.38 9,385.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Allocated 37013702 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Active Employsas 3751.3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
Othar Empioyes Banefits 3901-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 161,915.00 191,815.00 £3,119.59 191,515.00 0.00 0.0%
|BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved T ks snd Corn C [ 4100 0.00 000 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Books and Other Raference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 D.0%
Matsrials and Supplies 4300 50,375.00 50,375.00 1944123 50,375.00 0.00 0.0%
Noncapitatized Equipment 4400 £,000.00 8,000.00 2,831.680 8,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Food 4700 6,000.00 8,000.00 (285.08) 8,000.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 88,375.00 £8,375.00 2200777 88,375.00 0.00 0.0%
|SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Subagreements for Services 5100 ooo 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 24,757.00 24757.00 1,085.45 24,757.00 0.00 0.0%
Dues and Memberships 5300 2,000.00 2,000.00 §70.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Insurance 5400-5450 11,244.00 11,244 00 5,382.00 1124400 0.00 0.0%
Operations and Housskaeping Services 5500 34,514.00 34.514.00 13,183.65 34,514.00 0.00 0.0%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitaiized Imp 5800 245,203.00 245.203.00 B0,681.26 245,203.00 0.00 0.0%
Transters of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transiers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pratessional/Consulting Services and
Oparsiing Expanditures 5800 117,431.00 117,431.00 15,248.63 117,431.00 000 0.0%
Communications 5600 7,400.00 7,400.00 2,891.42 7,400.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OFERATING EXPENSES 442 549.00 442,540.00 118,400 41 442,549.00 0.00 0.0%
SACA Financia Reporing Boftwers - 201620
Flia: fundi-b {Rev 03/12/2018) Page Printed. V12072018 12.42 PM



River Montesseri Elementary Charter

2016-17 First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schoots Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Diff
Board Approved Projectad Year Difterence Column
Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals {ColB&D) BAD
Dascription Resource Codes _ Dbjsct Codes {8} {B] ) {D) {E) {F)
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation Expense 8900 44,550.00 4455000 0.00 44,550.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 44,550.00 44 550.00 0.00 44,550.00 0.00 0.0%}
GTHER OUTGO (exciuding Transfers of | Costs}
Tuition
Tuition for Under istrict Atisndance Ag s 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.0%]|
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Chartar Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Paymenta to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Cther Transfers Out
AD Other Transfers 7281-7263 0.00 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other Transfars Out to AN Others 7289 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%,
Debt Servica
Dabt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 848.79 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGQ (axtiuding Transters of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 848.70 000 0.00 0.0%
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Tranafers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transiers of | Costs - Intecfund 7350 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 uo;l
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
{TOTAL, EXPENSES 1630,733.00 1,830,733 00 AT03819 | e 1830733 00,
SACS Financal Reporing Satware - 201820
File: fundl-b {Rarv 05/1272018) Fage 8 Frimtad. 11/202018 1242 PM




River Montesscr Elementary Charter 201617 First Interim
Old Adobe Union Elementary Charler Schools Enterprise Fund 40 70847 0110750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Dur
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget |  Actuals To Date Totals [Col 8 8D} Bab
[Description Resource Codes  Object Codas {A} (=31 {C} {D] {E] @]
|INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
Other Authorized Intarfund Transfars In age 0.00 0.00 ¢00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
{a} TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 u.osj
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7818 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 n.o;l
OTHER SCURCES/USES
SOURCES
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of Lapsad/Reorganizad LEAS 8565 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other Financing Sources baT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| {c) TOTAL, SOURCES o000 0.00 000 0.00 .00 0.0%
USES
Transters of Funds from Lapsed/Recrganized LEAS 7851 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Lses 7889 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Reveres 8580 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Contributions from Rastrictad Revenues 2690 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (s} TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 £.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING BOURCES/MUSES
{a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 a.00
Cahtornis Depl of Educetion
BALS Financial Reporting Softwars - 20182.0
File: tundi-b (Rev 0511272018) Puga T Printed. 11202018 1242 FM



River Montessori Elementary Charter
Old Adobe Union Elementary
Sonoma County

First Interim
Charter Schools Enterprise Fund
Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail

Resource Description

49 70847 0119750
Form 621

2016/17

6230
6300
6512

Total, Restricted Net Position

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1

Projected Year Totals

136,384.11
6,816.00
11,804.00

1556,014.11
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River Montessori Elementary Charter
Qld Adobe Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2016-17 First Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

49 70847 0119750
Form Al

|Dascription

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Original
Budget
{A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
{8}

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT
ADA
Projected Year|
Totals
{C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D}

DIFFERENCE
{Col. D - B)
(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col. EB)
{F)

A. DISTRICT

1. Total District Regular ADA
Includes Opporiunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School {includes Necessary Small School
ADA)
2. Total Basic Ald Choicel/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)
3

¥

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
Schoal (ADA not included in Lina A1 above)
Total, District Regular ADA

(Sum of Lines A1 through AJ)

5. District Funded County Program ADA
County Community Schools

Special Education-Special Day Class
Special Education-NPS/LCI

Special Education Exiended Year
Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day

4

papow

Resource Conservation Schools
f. County School Tuition Fund
{Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380}

{Sum of Lines ASa through AS5f)
6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA
{Sum of Line A4 and Line ASg)
7. Adults in Correctionat Facilitles
8. Charter School ADA
{Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

Total Basic Ald Open Enroliment Ragular ADA

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.09

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: adai {Rev 02/03/2018)

Page 1of 1

Printed: 11/28/2016 12:42 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2016-17 First Interim

Oid Adobe Union Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Form Al
ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected | DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Bucigst Totals Year Totals {Col. D - B} {Col. E/B)
Description (A) (8) (€} (D} (E) {F)
B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Alternative Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupiis 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halis, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c){4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0%
d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
ADA (Sum of Lines Bfa through B1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
2. District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
a. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
QOpportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural |
Resource Caonservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. County School Tuition Fund
{Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
@. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
{Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
{Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
5. County Operations Grant ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
8. Charter School ADA
{Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 11/28/2016 12:42 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter 2016-17 First Interfim

Old Adabe Union Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Form Al
ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected | DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals {Cot.D-B) {Col. E/B)
|Description {A) {8) {C) {D) (E) {F}
[C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financlal data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
| Charler schools reporting SACS financial data separatety from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.
FUND 01: Charter School ADA correspanding to SACS financlal data reported in Fund 01.
1. Total Charter School Regular ADA 166.25 | 166.25 166.25 166.25 0.00 0%
2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c){4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
a. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
{Sum of Lines C1%, C2d, and C3f) 166.25 166.25 166.25 166.25 0.00 0%
FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported In Fund 01 or Fund 62.
5. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 I 0.00 0.00 I 0.00 0.00 0%
6. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Prabation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574{c){(4}{A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, Charter Schoof County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines Céa through Céc}) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Cpportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines C7a through CT7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
{Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
9, TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOIL. ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
(Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 166.25 186.25 166.25 166.25 0.00 0%
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1of 1 Printed: 11/26/2016 12:42 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter First Interim
Old Adobe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR

Part | - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs

California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services
costs {maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs} attributable to the general administrative offices. The
calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated

using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage

occupied by general administration.

A. Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
{Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000} 128,133.00
2, Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payrolt
a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a

contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 8000, Object 5800.
b. If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general
administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
{Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 949 126.00

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration
{Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative} (See Part lll, Lines A5 and AS) 13.50%

Part ll - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency {LEA)} may incur costs associated with the separation in addition
to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal” or "abnormal
or mass" separation costs.

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accurmulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by goveming board
policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs
may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation
costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter
these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool.

Abnomal or mass separation costs ane those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden
Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnomal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

A. Normal Separation Costs (optional)}
Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that
were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400
rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part lll from base costs to the indirect cost pool.
Retain supporting documentation.

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)
Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to
unrestricted resources (0000-1989) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be
maoved in Part 11l from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: icr (Rev 11/22/2013) Page 10of 3 Printed: 11/28/2016 12:43 PM



River Montessor Elementary Charter First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR
Part Ill - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise)
A. Indirect Costs
1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
{Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9) 188,308.00
2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Function 7700, abjects 1000-5999, minus Line B10} 0.00
3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 0.00
4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1998,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999} 0.00
5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only}
{Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part |, Line C) 5,874.39
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Function 8700, resources 0000-19399, objects 1000-5999 excapt 5100, times Part |, Line C) 32,427 .41
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Plus: Nommal Separation Costs (Part Il, Line A) 0.00
b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part I, Line B) 0.00
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 226,609.80
9. Camy-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Ling F} 88,749.08
10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs {Line A8 plus Line A9) 315,358.88
B. Base Costs
1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 783,274.00
2. Instruction-Related Services {Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 222.176.00
3. Pupil Services {Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100} 56,196.00
4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
5. Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5992 except 5100) 48,512.00
6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,
minus Part lll, Line A4) 4,000.00
8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
objects 5000-5999, minus Part lll, Line A3) 0.00
9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)
(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
rasources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 8000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
10. Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)
{Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1989, all goals
except 0000 and 80040, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
11. Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
{Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part lil, Line AS) 37,639.61
12. Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
{Function 8700, cbjects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part 1, Line AE) 207,775.59
13. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Less: Normal Separation Costs {Part I, Line A} 0.00
b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part ||, Line B) 0.00
14. Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, abjects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
15. Child Davelopment (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
16. Cafeteria (Funds 13 and 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
17. Foundation (Funds 19 and 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
18. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B17, minus Line B13a) 1,359,573.20
C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment
(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)
(Line A8 divided by Line B18) 16.67%
D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate
(For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2017-18 see www.cde.ca.govifglacfic)
(Line A10 divided by Line B18) 23.20%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: icr (Rev 11/22/2013)
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River Montessori Elementary Charter First Interim
Old Adobe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR

Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment

The cany-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjusiment eliminates
the need for LEAs o file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the
approved rate was based.

Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times curment year base costs,
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.

A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part lll, Line A8) 226,609.80

B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s})

1. Cany-forward adjustmant from the second prior year 0.00

2. Camy-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 0.00

C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year

1. Under-recovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
cost rate (10.14%) times Part Ill, Line B18); zero if negative 88,749.08

2. Ovar-recovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the iesser of
(approved indirect cost rate (10.14%) times Part HI, Line B18) or (the highest rate used to
recover costs from any program (0%) times Part lli, Line B18); zero if positive 0.00

D. Prefiminary canry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2) 88,749.08

E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year

Where a negalive carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which

the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that

the camry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative camy-forward adjustment over more
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.

Option 1.  Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: not applicable

Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rats (Part ill, Line D) if ane-half of negative camy-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is defarred to one or more future years: not applicable

Option 3. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part lll, Line D} if one-third of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years: not applicable

LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3

F. Carry-forward adjustment used In Part lli, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if
Option 2 or Option 3 is selected) 88,749.08

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: icr (Rev 11/22/2013) Page3of 3 Printed: 11/26/2016 12:43 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter First Interim
Old Adobe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs Form ICR

Approved indirect costrate: ~ 10.14%
Highest rate used in any program: __ 0.00%

Eligible Expenditures
(Objects 1000-5999 Indirect Costs Charged Rate
Fund Resource except Object 5100) (Objects 7310 and 7350) Used

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: icr (Rev 03/16/2012) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 11/28/2016 12:43 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter First Interim

Old Adcbe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form NCMOE
Funds 01, 09, and 62 2016-17
Section | - Expenditures Goals | Functions | Objects Expenditures
A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7909 1,630,733.00
B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
{Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7998 39,401.00
C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
{All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 | 1000-7599 48,612.00
. All except { All except
2. Capital Qutlay 7100-7199 | 5000-5999 | 6000-5089 44 550.00
5400-5450,
5800, 7430-
3. Debt Service All 9100 7439 0.00
4, Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 0.00
5. |nterfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00
0100 7600
6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00
All except
§000-5009,
7. Nonagency 7100-7199 | 9000-9999 | 1000-7999 0.00
8. Tuition {Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received) Al All 8710 0.00
9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Manually entered. Must not include
Presidentially declared disaster expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or
D2,
10. Total state and local expenditures not
allowed for MOE calcutation
(Sum iines C1 through C9) 93,062.00
1000-7143,
D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services minus
{Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) Al All 8000-8699 0.00
. . - Manually entered. Must not include
2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities expendilures in lines A or DI,
E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
{Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 1,498,270.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015)

Page 1
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River Montessori Elementary Charter

First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form NCMOE
201617
Annual ADA/

Section Il - Expenditures Per ADA Exps. Per ADA
A. Average Daily Attendance

{Form Al, Column C, Line C9)* 166.25
B. Expenditures per ADA (Line |.E divided by Line |I.A) 9,012.15
Section Il - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE} Total Per ADA
A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year

Unaudited Actuals MOE Calculation)

{Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, in its final determination, CDE will

adjust the prior year base to 90 percent.of the preceding prior year amount

rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.) 1.447,661.77 9,167.64

1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 1,447 661.77 9,167.64
B. Required effort {Line A.2 times 30%) 1,302,895.59 8,250.88
C. Current year expenditures {Line |.E and Line il.B) 1,498,270.00 9,012.15
D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)

{/f negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00
E. MOE determination

{If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met

is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If

either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is

incomplete.)
F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero

(Line D divided by Line B)

(Funding under NCLB covered programs in FY 2018-19 may

be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form Al. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals

Estimated P-2 Report ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015)
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River Montessori Elementary Charter First Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Farm NCMOE
SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures {used in Section Ill, Line A.1}
Total Expenditures
Description of Adjustments Expenditures Per ADA
Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015) Page 3 Prirted: 11/28/2016 12:43 PM



RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Retreat Meeting Agenda
3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modificattons, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the
Board meeting should notify the board in writing at {east 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Gaverning Board hetd in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Board Retreat Meeting: February 4, 2017

Time: 9:00am-4pm

Location(s):

A.

O WORK, PETALUMA 245 Kentucky Street, Petaluma CA 94952
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

Opening/Call to Order

Roll Call: Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy Ehlen Hall, Tammy Cleland,
Eva Covarrubias

Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan, Administration &
Communications Manager

Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision:

Our mission at River Montessari Charter School is to provide students with a learning culture grounded in Montessori philosophy. This
historically proven educational model supports the whole child, creates lifelong learners, and educates for peace. The resulling academic
excellence is supported by a prepared classroom environment that inspires self-paced, individualized discovery; a Jove of learning; and
respect for self, others, and the environment.

Our vision at RMCS is to creale a Montessori learning community where children are inspired {o realize their academic, personal, and
social potential to become global citizens.

Presentations - Article for Discussion
A Montessori Journey from the Start

Journal Article for discussion
Mindfulness Practices in Education: Montessori’s Approach
(Please read prior to Saturday.)

Resources
- http://www.montessori-science.orgimontessori science articles.htm




RMCS Board Retreat Meeting Agenda - Page 2
D. Agenda Review

E. Public Comment
Visitors are allowed lo address the Board for up o three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a tofal of 15 minutes per topic. With Board consent,
the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The Board does not respond or take action o public comments.

F. Approval: Minutes from 12/13/16 RMCS BOD Meeting

G. Communications
1. Executive Director's Report & Update on Assessment Scores for 15-16
2. Fiscal Report
3. Facilifies Report
4. Policy Compliance/Commitiee Report

10:15-10:30Break

H. The Role of the Board in Strategic Planning, Ginny Hautau
Bob Hampton, CharterSearch, LLC

1. Communication & Outreach: A Time for Objective Professionals
“Every school has a story to tell." What s ours? CharterSmar, Mike & Tanja MeCey
Branding & Marketing Communications, Social Media
Advacacy, Outreach, Media Relations
Crisis Communications

2. Curriculum & Instruction: Eam Your Montessori Chops
“The greatest sign of success for a teacher is fo be able fo say,
‘The children are now working as if | did not exist.”” Maria Montessori
The Montessori Journey
Case Study: Ace Charter Schools {Home, Growth, Jobs)
The Elevator Pitch Winner: Video

3. Facilities & Operation: A Commitiee Call to Action

“Charter schools are publicly funded, privately managed and semi-autonomous
schools of choice.” NCSL and “Charter public schools are facing a crisis... struggling to
obtain affordable, adequale facilities for their students - facilities that are critical fo
ensuring student success.” CSFl

Charter Schools Facilities Initiative: Participate

Credit Enhancement; Slides & Video

Charter School Facilities Program: Application

42:30-1:30 p.m. Lunch Break



RMCS Board Retreat Meeling Agenda - Page 3
H. Board Business

1. Discussion & Action: LCAP Reporting

2. Discussion: BOD Survey

3. Discussion: Update on Montessori Training with St. Mary's College
4. Discussion: AMS Conference

5. Discussion & Action: Board Calendar Annual Review

I Next Steps
Action ltems:
- Finalize Strategic Plan
- Commit to school development with board agendized items across Annual Calendar
- Demonsirate and record monthly progress in board calendar

J. Closing remarks- Board Members
Development of Montessori Adolescents

K. Adjournment

Future Meeting Date(s):
February 14,2017 - 6:30pm March 14,2017 - 6:30pm
April 11,2017 - 6:30pm May9,2017 - 6:30pm
June 27,2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the
Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and your
participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/ participating in our meetings, the
following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given an
opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However, due
to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond ar take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to nan-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes, Exceptions to these
time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard Lo ftems that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to {3} minutes when the Board discusses that item.

Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future agenda.
Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board can respond,
interact, and act upon the item.

- & B ey — ] -
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RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meeting Minutes
3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order o participate in the Board
meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Gaverning Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Petaluma Music Festival Guest: Judy - was happy to present a check to RMCS 51470 for the
Music Program (August 5th Petaluma Music Festival - the more RMCS volunteers, the more
monies are earned for RMCS)

Regular/Annual Meeting: December 13, 2016

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Room, 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma, CA 94954
Q Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
3 Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order: 6:32pm
Roll Call: Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Tammy Cleland, Eva Covarrubias; Belsy Ehlen
Hall & Eresa Puch absent (notified)
Staff: Kelly Grifiith Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan, Administration &
Communications Manager
Guest(s): Amy Atchley, River Montessori Foundation Chair; Judy, Petaluma Music Festival

B. Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision:

Requested Amendment to Agenda: Move Foundation Report to beginning of meeting. Approved by all. Reporting out
Foundation Chair, Amy Achley:
e Thanks to the Board for hosting coffee - lots of parent attendance.
Foundation voted to give teachers a gift for $100 for each classroom.
Creator Faire Update (10 outside organizations involved, to date.
Kiwanis gift received.
Walk-a-thon theme: “Walk Like an Egypfian” is the theme.



C.

F-

RMCS BOD Meeting Minutes, for December 13, 2016 - page 2

Last Dine-n-Donate Restaurant had an “Ugly Sweater” Contest, RMCS parent won!.
Spring Gala Update: Riverboat- Galactic Theme.

Earned $1200 for Winter Catalogue.

Annual Fund - turning a comer and gefting some mare commitments for Annual Fund.
Wrote a check to school for $10K.

Another expected $5-7K check projected for January 2017.

Student Presentations: Montessori Student Presentation (20 minutes)
- Kaweah Student Presentation

LCAP Public Feedback Session

No public present - KGM to mention public session in next newsletter. 2017-18 Goals:
¢ Promote Academic Excellence Through Montessor Methodology
e Develop Attributes of Successful Learners in an Authentic Montessori School
e Strengthen Montessori School-Family Communication and Partnership

Agenda Review
See above exception - Foundation Report prior o Student Presentations, approved by consensus

Public Comment: No PUBLIC present

Visitors are allowed o address the Board for up to thres (3} minutes on items not on the agenda for a tofal of 15 minutes per topic. With Board consent,
the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The Board does not respond or [ake action on public comments

Approval: Minutes from 11/08/16 RMCS BOD Meeting
Motion - Ginny / 2nd Ruben

A: Norman, Ginny, Tim, Tammy, Eva, Ruben, Belsy

N: 0

Abstention: 0

Communications

1. Foundation/Fundraising Report - see above

2. Executive Director's Report
- CSDC Conference
- New UE Montessori materials and training; classroom calm, stable, work-oriented
- CALPADS extended deadline and focus
- Enroliment:165
- Audit
- OAUSD visit January 19, 2017

- Pleased with how calm classrooms are in spite of teacher absences and changes (in part due to
high-quality subs). NORMAN: pleased with interworking of school December 8, 2016.

- Surveys - gathering data, how to best present. Annual Parent Survey in January
- CAASPP development- guides, students, technology



RMCS BOD Meeting Minutes, for December 13, 2016 - page 3

3. Fiscal Report - see discussion below
4. Facilities Report- All good - Firelearthquake drills happening; (Solar project postponed a week - City of
Petaluma had a couple of changes/roof repair - will take about 4 weeks; will work around school day)
5. Policy Compliance/Committee Report-
TAMMY: No report - Eresa & Tammy working to review and categorizing into 9 categories

I Board Business (*7:30pm)
1. Discussion: CSDC Leadership Update Conference (GINNY)
Packedfinformative - satin on 6 sessions, including:
+ Board Governance Training
Roles and Responsibiliies:
Uphold Schoof's Mission
Monitor School's Performance (Educational, Fiscal, Operational, Legal)
Develop, Approve Short- and Long-Term Goals
Establish Poficies & Delegate Power
Hire & Evaluate Top Admininstrative Staff {only}
Altend to Board Business and Corporate Evenls
Monitor Own Board Performance
Fundamental Duties:
Duty of Care, Duty of Loyally, Duty of Obedience
+ Montessori Afiinity Group
» School Finance for Board Members
«Leadership Transition Planning (#1 reason for Charter demise — Ginny's focus)
» Facilities Finance Opportunities
« Preparing for Renewal (60 other charter schools/board members in aftendance)
LCAP - Measurable. Achievable. Repartin conjunction with interim reporting only.
Board Binders, Training, Recruiting, Compasition — For future discussion.
Board Calendar - For further discussion at BOD refreat.
Agenda Development — To be added to end of BOD Business on future agendas.

2. Discussion & Action: Strategic Planning
Open back up to discussion -

. Reached a broad consensus through prior discussions: PreK - 6; 7-12.

- Notsure how large, or how quickly - not consensus.

- Nextsleps - reality check - feasibility 1) enrollment - possibility (school would have to be substantially
larger (400 for pk-12feven 500); 2} Financial feasibility

- Ifwe pass those two tests - create more of a imeline, detailed vision of what school would look like
curriculumffinancial/program

- Financial plan for that school

- “Notbeen easy, butis more stable - good base; worried about enroliment” - we've lost enrollment

- Notbeen able to address (board or school) - ine issue of enrollment, growth

- Inourconversations have been about - We've been looking at a “vision” where we are hoping the
school will get...

3. Discussion & Action: Review & Approve 2015-16 Audited Financia! Statements
- Gotour financial statements back - no numbers changed from the unaudited actuals presented - no
findings/no audit adjustments. ($3K cheaper).



RMCS BOD Meaeting Minutes, for December 13, 2016 - page 4

Motion to Approve Audited Financial Statements: Tim L/2nd Tammy
A: Norman, Ginny, Tim, Tammy, Eva, Ruben, Betsy

N: 0

Absention: 0

4. Discussion & Action First interim Repori-ML

- Update on financial status of charter (7/1 - Oct 31); able to meet financial obligation
- Projections the same - based on 166 ADA ; budget hasn't changed - right about where it should be
- Expenses coming in a bit above -
- Revenues Review

Motion to approve First Interim Report: Ginny/2nd Tim

A: Norman, Ginny, Tim, Tammy, Eva, Ruben, Betsy

N: 0

Absention: 0

5. Discussion & Action: BOD Survey - Should be discussion item on Board Retreat.
6. Discussion: AMS Conference March 2017 Update (
NL - Send Kelly an das many teachers as we can
TiM - Staff decision, not board; (I 10-20% over budget, would need to come to board); would like to work within

exisfing training budget.

J. Adjourn 9:01pm

Future Meeting Date(s):
Feb 4, 2017 Board Retreat (9:00am - 4:00pm) February 14, 2017 - 6:30pm
March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm April 11,2017 - 6:30pm
May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm June 27,2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School's Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the
Board of Directors (*Board”) is ta conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and your
participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School, To assist you in speaking/ participating in our meetings, the
following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given an
opportunity to do so.

3, “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community te raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However, due
to public meeting laws (Brown Act}, the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these
time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4, With regard to {tems that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3} minutes when the Board discusses that item.

Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future agenda.
Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board can respond,
interact, and act upon the item.




RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the
Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Regular Meeting: February 15, 2017
Time: 6:00p

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Meeting Room: 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954
[d Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
O Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order
Roll Call: Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy Ehlen
Hall, Tammy Cleland, Eva Covarrubias
Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

B. Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision:
Our mission at River Montessori Charter School is to provide students with a learning culture grounded in
Montessori philosophy. This historically proven educational model supports the whole child, creates lifelong
learners, and educates for peace. The resulting academic excellence is supported by a prepared classroom
environment that inspires self-paced, individualized discovery; a love of learning; and respect for self, others,
and the environment.

Our vision at RMCS is to create a Montessori learning community where children are inspired to realize their
academic, personal, and social potential to become global citizens.

C. Student Presentations: Montessori Student Presentation (20 minutes)
D. Agenda Review

E. Public Comment
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15 minutes
per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The
Board does not respond or take action on public comments.


http://www.rivermontessoricharter.org/
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F. Approval: Minutes from 02/04/17 RMCS BOD Retreat

G. Communications
1. Executive Director’s Report
- Update on Assessment Scores for 15-16
2. Fiscal Report
Facilities Report
4. Policy Compliance/Committee Report

w

H. Board Business
1. Discussion: LCAP Reporting
2. Discussion & Action Board Calendar Annual Review
3. Discussion: BOD Survey

. Adjournment

Future Meeting Date(s):
March 14, 2017 - 6:30pm April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm
May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the
Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and your
participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings, the
following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given an
opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However, due
to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these
time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or

you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.

Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future agenda.
Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board can respond,
interact, and act upon the item.

[For office use only: Posted On-site: Initial___/Date Posted Website: Initial___/Date___]



BOARD RETREAT MEETING OF THE
RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL (RMCS) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414
February 4, 2017, 9:00 AM - 4:00 PM

MINUTES

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to
participate in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on
the school website www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act.

Location(s):
O WORK PETALUMA: 245 Kentucky Street, Petaluma CA 94952
d Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

1. CALL TO ORDER
1.1.  Director Lorenz called the meeting to order at 9:23 AM.
1.2. Directors Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy
Ehlen Hall, Tammy Cleland, and Eva Covarrubias were present.
1.3.  Kelly Mannion (Executive Director), Michelle Leonard (Business Manager), and Julie
Carolan (Administration & Communications Manager) were present.

2. MISSION STATEMENT
2.1. Director Covarrubias read the mission statement.

3. PRESENTATIONS
3.1.  Watched a video - ‘A Montessori Journey From the Start’
3.2.  Journal Article for Discussion - ‘MIndfulness Practices in Education: Montessori’s
Approach’

4. AGENDA REVIEW
4.1. Moved section ‘G. Communications’ to RMCS BOD Meeting on February 15, 2017
4.2.  Agenda was approved with unanimous consent with a motion from Dir. Hautau (8-0-0).

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - None
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15
minutes per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public
comment. The Board does not respond or take action on public comments.

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM December 13, 2016 RMCS BOD Meeting
6.1.  Minutes of the December 13, 2016 Board meeting was approved with a motion from Dir.
Lorenz. Dir. Puch abstained (7-0-1).

7. THE ROLE OF THE BOARD IN STRATEGIC PLANNING (Dir. Hautau)
7. Communication & Outreach


http://www.rivermontessoricharter.org/

i.  DIr. Hautau recommended to hire Bob Hampton as a facilitator for Strategic
Planning
ii.  Dir. Hautua recommended to hire Mike & Tanja MeCey of CharterSmart as
consultants for Charter School Marketing and Public Relations
iii.  Business Manager Leonard will reach out to potential consultants regarding fees
7.2.  Curriculum & Instruction
7.3.  Facilities & Operation

8. BOARD BUSINESS
8.1.  Discussion: LCAP Reporting
i.  Toreceive LCAP updates whether current year goals are being met and to
discuss measurables for next year.
8.2.  Discussion: BOD Survey
i. BOD Survey will be moved to BOD Meeting on February 15, 2017
8.3.  Discussion: Update on Montessori Training with St. Mary’s College
i. DIr. Lorenz provided an overview on opportunities for satellite training and
credentialing for Montessori guides at RMCS
8.4.  Discussion: AMS Conference
i. Dir. Lorenz will attend to leverage relationships and provide opportunities for
discussion
8.5.  Dlscussion: Board Calendar Annual Review

9. NEXT STEPS
9.1.  Action Items:
i.  Finalize Strategic Plans
i.  Commit to school development with board agendized items across Annual
Calendar
iii. Demonstrate and record monthly progress in Board calendar

10. CLOSING REMARKS
10.1.  Watched a video - ‘Development of Montessori Adolescents’
10.2.  Everyone shared insights

11. ADJOURNMENT
11.1.  Dir. Lorenz moved to adjourn the meeting at 3:53 PM. The motion passed with a
unanimous consent (8-0-0).

Future Meeting Dates: February 15, 2017 - 6:30 PM March 14, 2017 - 6:30 PM
April 11, 2017 - 6:30 PM May 9, 2017 - 6:30
PM June 27, 2017 - 6:30 PM

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at the School’s Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and
your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings,
the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given




an opportunity to do so.

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However,
due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these time
limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that item.
Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticed, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.




RMCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Agenda

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the
Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school website
www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board held in public, will be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown Act.

Regular Meeting: March 14, 2017
Time: 5:30pm - 6:20pm RMCS Board of Director’s Meeting

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Meeting Room: 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954
[ Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

A. Opening/Call to Order
Roll Call: Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy Ehlen
Hall, Tammy Cleland, Eva Covarrubias
Staff: Kelly Mannion, Executive Director, Michelle Leonard, Business Manager, Julie Carolan,
Administration & Communications Manager

B. Reading of RMCS Mission & Vision
Our mission at River Montessori Charter School is to provide students with a learning culture grounded in
Montessori philosophy. This historically proven educational model supports the whole child, creates lifelong
learners, and educates for peace. The resulting academic excellence is supported by a prepared classroom
environment that inspires self-paced, individualized discovery; a love of learning; and respect for self, others,
and the environment.

Our vision at RMCS is to create a Montessori learning community where children are inspired to realize their
academic, personal, and social potential to become global citizens.

C. Agenda Review

D. Public Comment
Visitors are allowed to address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a total of 15 minutes
per topic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public comment. The

Board does not respond or take action on public comments.



RMCS Board Mesting Agenda - Page 2

E. Approval: Minutes from 02/15/17 RMCS BOD Retreat

F. Communications
No Reports

G. Board Business

1. Discussion & Action:; RMCS 2017-18 SY Calendar Approval
2. Discussion & Action: Second Interim Presentation

3. Discussion & Action: 2017-18 Auditor Selection

4. Discussion & Action: 2015-16 Tax Return approval

5. Discussion & Action: Form 700-Conflict of Interest

H. Adjournment of Board Meeting

Future Meeting Date(s):
April 11, 2017 - 6:30pm May 9, 2017 - 6:30pm
June 27, 2017 - 6:30pm

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessor] Charter School welcomes your participation at the School's Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the
Board of Directors (“Board") is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit these meetings often and your
participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/ participating in our meetings, the
following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community members who wish te speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment"” will be given an
opportunity to do so,

3. “Public Comment” is set aside for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However, due
to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
limited to three {3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these
time limits may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concemns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a citizen requested agenda item.

4. With regard to items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to (3) minutes when the Board discusses that ftem.

Exceptions to this time may be made at the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may request in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placement on a future agenda.
Requests should be addressed to the Board Chatr. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly naticed, the Board can respond,
interact, and act upon the item.

- ri
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REGULAR MEETING OF THE
RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL (RMCS) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RIVER MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL

3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954 (707)778-6414
February 15, 2017
5:30 PM

MINUTES

An individual who requires disability-related accommeodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate
in the Board meeting should notify the board in writing at least 48 hours priar 1o the meeting. Board agendas are available on the school

wabsile www.rivermontessoricharter.org

The regular meeting of the Governing Board hekd in public wil be advertised and recorded in accordance with the Brown
Act.

Location(s):
O RMCS Community Meeting Room: 3880 Cypress Drive, Suite B, Petaluma CA 94954
O Norman Lorenz: 2011 U Street, Sacramento, CA 95818
QO Ginny Hautau: 102 Paisano Road, Corrales NM 87048

1. CALL TO ORDER
1.1.  Norman called the meeting to order at 6:32 PM.
1.2.  Directors Norman Lorenz, Ginny Hautau, Eresa Puch, Tim Lohrentz, Ruben Mejia, Betsy
Ehlen Hall, and Tammy Cleland were present. (Absent: Eva Covarrubias)
1.3.  Kelly Mannion, Executive Director was present.
1.4.  Julie Petersen, RMF Secretary was present.

2. MISSION STATEMENT
2.1. Tim read the mission statement.

3. STUDENT PRESENTATION: None

4. AGENDA REVIEW
4.1. Add the RMF Report under '‘Communications’
4.2.  Agenda was approved with unanimous consent (7-0-0)

5. PUBLIC COMMENT
- See River Montessori Foundation Report (Item 7.5)
Visitors are allowed lo address the Board for up lo three (3) minutes on items not on the agenda for a folal of 15
minutes per lopic. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease time allowed for public
comment. The Board does not respond or take aclion on public comments.

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM February 4, 2017 RMCS BOD Retreat Meeting
6.1.  Fix error on Ginny's last name.
6.2.  Minutes of the February 4, 2017 Board Retreat meeting was approved with a motion from
Tammy, second by Betsy, and unanimous vote (7-0-0).



7.

RMCS BOD Meeting Minutes - 02/

COMMUNICATIONS
7.1. Executlve Report - Kelly presented on the following:

Enrolliment: TKK-54, UE-75, LE-44 (Total 173)
Old Adobe visit
Offered the upper Elementary teacher position, pending completion in April 2017

iv.  Sending Business Manager Michelle to 2nd phase of CBO training
v.  Montessori Education Week
vi.  Graduate Night on 2/28/17
vii. ~ Open House on 2/22/17
vii.  Spanish perspective meeting/tours
ix. Watch Me Work
X. Wil host Bay Area Association Workshop - Writer's workshop on 2/25/2017
xi. Sending 2 teachers to AMS
xii.  Assessment scores - Lorna will provide perspective as a coordinator (March mtg.)

7.2. Fiscal Report

.
L

Tim shared a good lesson on enrollment impact on cash flow (of P1 and P2
attendance submission) and potential scenarios.

7.3.  Facilities Report - No report. Ruben asked for an update on the solar project.
7.4, Pollcy Compliance/Committee Report

Tammy shared with the Board an update from the committee’s last meeting on
1/25/17.

‘To Do List' - each Board member was assigned a policy area. The goal is to
identify whether RMCS has a policy in place. Tammy will connect with Kelly in late
February regarding prioritizing the policy topics.

Students - Tammy

Facilities - Ruben

Board - Ginny

Personnel & Safety - Betsy

Budget - Tim & Eresa

e Curriculum - Norman

7.5.  River Montessori Foundation Report

Julie Petersen presented on the current financial standing of RMF. The Foundation is
unable to write a check at this time. Annual fund is at $17k. Holiday Catalog generated
$2k. Creator Faire was successful with over 300 people, 12 organizations that supported,
and 60 volunteers. Food sales at $2,750. RMF is hoping to bring $10k from
Walk-a-Thon. Currently planning for Spring Gala on April 29, 2017 and looking for
volunteers.

BOARD BUSINESS
8.1.  Discussion: LCAP Reporting
i.  Kelly provided a review of where we stand. ELL students are receiving
differentiated curriculum and instructional support. Family communication and
partnership’s challenge stem from low participation.
8.2. Discussion & Action: Board Calendar Annual Review
i.  Spring Community Forum - 3/14/17 from 6:30 to 7:30 PM (after BOD meeting
5:30-6:30)



i.  Operations - development and review of chain of command and hierarchy of
communication

iif.  Begin Executive Director's evaluation process.

iv.  To add for agenda next month - Business Manager's report {(Michelle)

v.  Update on Guide evaluation

vi.  Norman moved to have policy review become a routine schedule each month and
to incorporate in Board Calendar. Tammy will recommend when to review in June
BOD meeting.

8.3. Discussion: BOD Survey
i.  Norman will redo in Survey Monkey.

9. ADJOURNMENT
9.1.  Norman moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:14 PM. The motion passed with a unanimous
consent (7-0-0).

Future Meeting Dates:
April 11, 2017 - 6:30 PM
May 9, 2017 - 6:30 PM
June 27, 2017 - 6:30 PM

Instructions for Presentations to the Board by Members of the Community

River Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation al the School's Board meetings, The purpose of a public meeting of
the Board of Direciors ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of the School in public. We hope that you will visit thesa meetings often and
your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our School. To assist you in speaking/participating in our maelings,
the following guidelines are provided.

1. Agendas are available to all community members

2. Community mambers whao wish lo speak on any agenda items or under the general category of “Public Comment” will be given
an opporiunity to do so.

3. "Public Comment” is set askia for members of the community to raise issues that are not specifically on the agenda. However,
due to public meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board can only fisten to your Issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are
kmiled to thres (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not axceed fifteen (15) minutes. Exceptions to these time
imits may be made al the discretion of tha Board Chair. The board may give direction to staff to respond to your concerns or you
may be offered the option of returning with a ditizen requested agenda tem.

4. With regard lo items that are on the agenda, you may speak for up to {3) minutes when the Board discusses that #em.
Exceplions to this time may be made al the discretion of the Board Chair.

5. Community members may raquest in writing that a topic related to school business be considered for placament an a future
agenda. Requests should be addressed to the Board Chair. If such an item is placed on the agenda and publicly noticad, the Board
can respond, interact, and act upon the item.




River Montessori Charter School 2017-2018 Calendar
Draft for Board Approval
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DRAFT FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Board Approved:

School Day Information

Regular School Day Session
Monday - Thursday: 8:15 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.
Friday: 8:15 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (No Lunch)

First Day of School - July 26, 2017
Last Day of School - June 1, 2018

Bridge to Success Program

July 24 & 25, 8:15 AM-12:00 PM

TK/K, First & Fourth Grade, New Students
River Crew Adventure Program

Held during conferences, Fall, Winter and
Spring breaks & teacher work days.

Teacher Workdays/Prof. Dev.
Holidays

Holidays

7/4/17 Independence Day
9/4/17 Labor Day

11/10/17 Veterans Day, Observed
11/23/17 Thanksgiving

12/25/17 Christmas Day

1/1/18
1/15/18
2/12/18
2/19/18
5/28/18

New Years Day

Martin Luther King Day
Lincoln's Birthday
Washington's Birthday
Memorial Day




River Montessori Charter School (RMCS)
FY17 (2016-17) Second Interim Narrative
Michelle Leonard, Business Manager
March 10, 2017

The Second Interim report is an update of the financial status of River Montessori Charter
School for the current fiscal year, and reflects current activity of July 1, 2016 through January
31, 2017 and budget projections as of February 28, 2017. The interim report addresses the
question of whether the school will be able to meet its financial obligations for'2016-17.

Enroliment:

The projected enroliment has remained the same as the Adopted Budget of 175, but the
projected ADA (Average Daily Attendance) has been reduced. This becomes an issue because
the school is funded on ADA, not total enroliment. The projected ADA was 166, and has been
reduced to 156. There are a few reasons for the average attendance to decline this interim; 1}
a higher student absent rate, from 5% to 8%, 2) there are more unfunded TK children than
anticipated, and 3) some mid-year un-enrollments which opened spots for new students to
enroll. As of March 13™ we are at 175 total enrollment.

Revenues:

Revenues are funded from multiple sources, which are based on ADA: Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF), Educational Protection Account (EPA), In-Lieu of Property Taxes, Lottery, and
State & Federal Special Education Entitlements. Additional revenue comes from local
contributions such as The River Montessori Foundation {a separate non-profit entity similar to a
Parent Student Teacher Organization of which the school is the benefactor), revenue from River
Crew (the before and after school care program for enrolled students), and donations from
parents for field trips. At Adoption, total revenues for 2016-17 were projected to be
51,630,733 and has been adjusted down to $1,567,101. River Crew income has been increased
by $20,000 due to consistent billing and a new lead supervisor. Year to date revenue is
$784,797 or 50.0% of budget.

Expenditures:
Expenses are coming in slightly lower than the adopted budget at $1,586,397. Year to date we

have spent $859,056 or 54.2% of the budget. With the resignation of one of our upper
elementary teachers, expenses for substitute teachers and Montessori trainings went up and
are over budget by around $12,500. Also, Teacher’s Assistants sataries went up around $16,000
due to an |IEP need. Student materials are $4,000 over budget, along with office supplies being
over budget of around $5,000. Both of these line items were under-budgeted, as necessary
instructional materials and office supplies had to be replaced. Legal expense is over budget by
around $6,000. This is due to an unexpected need for legal advice, and a thorough vetting of
our new employee handbook. Due to the increase in the above expenditure line items and
decrease in revenue, the Executive Director and Business Manager made some expenditure
reductions in other areas. In clerical salaries, the decision to rehire ancther front office person
was postponed until next fiscal year, which saved around $15,000. Equipment expense was
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reduced $5,000 with the postponement of purchasing new chrome books until next fiscal year.
Conferences/Staff development cost went down $12,000 as the decision was made to send 3
teachers instead of 8 to the American Montessori Society conference in San Diego. Advertising
costs were reduced from $4,000 to $2,000. The largest reduction was for $25,000 in
consultants. Special Education consultant costs went down with hiring of a full-time Special
Education Teacher & Coordinator. The other expense line items seem to be in line with the
adopted budget.

Cash Balance:

Current cash balance is $287,836; of this amount $119,416 is restricted to a solar project
funded by proposition 39. The remaining cash balance of $168,420 is approximately a 10.7%
reserve, $90,065 above the required amount of at least a 5% reserve in the county fund, 3% per
0AUSD MOU and 2% per board resolution. The school also has a revolving cash account for
River Crew and general Operations in the amount of $21,000.

The RMCS Board and Committees should continue its long term exploration and evaluation of
additional funding and building/site options.

Based on this report, it is recommended that the Board accepts and approves the Second
Interim Report for 2016-17 fiscal year.
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River Montessoari Elementary Charter Second Interim 49 70847 0119750

Old Adobe Union Elementary Fiscal Year 2016-17 Form ClI
Sonoma County Charter School Certification
Charter Number: 1086

To the chartering authority and the county superintendent of schools (or only to the county superintendent of
schools if the county board of education is the chartering authority):

2016-17 CHARTER SCHOOL INTERIM REPORT: This report is hereby filed by the charier school pursuant to
Education Code Section 47604.33(a).

Date: "%/g!r‘}'

Printed
Name: Kelly Griffith Mannion__ . Title: Superintendent & Executive Dit

For additional information on the interim report, please contact:

Charter School Contact;

Michelle Laonard
Name

Business Manager
Title

707-778-6414
Telephone

mleonard@rivermontessoricharter.org
E-mail Address

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - Version 2016.2.0
File: cbi-cs (Rev 03/26/2009) Page 1 Printed: 3/8/2017 11:18 AM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2018-17 Second Interim

Oid Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Dut
Board Approved Projacted Year Difference Column
Original Budget DOperating Budget Actuals To Date Totals ({Col B & D) B&D
Descrigtion Rasource Codes _Object Codes [A) 8 {c} [0) L] (3]
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sourcas B8010-8059 1,282 337.00 1,207, 114.00 853,084.00 1,207,114.00
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8289 20,781.00 20,781 00 51.00 20,781.00
3) Other Stats Revenue 8300-8589 83 859.00 B0, 340.00 38,488.20 80,340.00
4) Othar Local Revenua BE00-8799 243 858 00 250,868.00 $3,183.38 258,6868.00
5} TQTAL, REVENUES 1,830.733.00 1,587,101 0O 784,796 58 1,567,101.00
ﬁﬂ. EXPENSES
1) Cartificated Salaries 1000-1699 553,928.00 551,328.00 330,786.44 551,328.00 000 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2099 331,418.00 332 880.00 8831354 332 830.00 0.00 0.0%)
3) Employss Benefits 3000-3998 161,915.00 191,915.00 100,542.27 191,815.00 0.00 £.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4959 £6,375.00 £8,375.00 3702633 5£8,375.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Sarvicas and Other Operating Expanses 5000-5999 442 54500 403, 54%.00 221587 13 403,548.00 0.00 0.0%;
€) Deprecistion 8000-6999 44 550.00 A4 550 00 000 A4 55000 0.00 0.0%;
7) Other Outgo (axciuding Transfers of Indiract 7100-7289,
Costs) T400-7499 0.00 0.00 784.82 000 0.00 D,Oﬂ
#) Other Qutga - Tranglers of Indirect Costs 7300-7309 0.00 a0 0.00 .00 0.00 0.0%
8 TOTAL EXPENSES 183073300 1,563,397, 859,056 64 1,563,397,00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING AND USES {AS . B9 9.00 {16,298 00) 74,2 {18,296 00}
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCESNISES
1} Intestund Transten
a) Transfars In 8900-8626 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out T600-7829 000 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
2) Other Sources/Usas
a) Sources 8830-8579 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.0c 0%
bj Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
3) Contributions B980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 0%
4} TOTAL, OTHER FINANC R 0.00 0.00 0,00 000
Califormia Degt of
BALS Financial Reporting Software - 2010.20
Flia: fundi-p {Rev D51 272018) Page t Pridad: 392017 110 P



River Montessori Elementary Charter 2018-17 Second Interim

Qld Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0118750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 821
% Difr
Board Appraved Projocted Year Differencs Column
Oripinal Budget | Oparating Budget | Actuals To Dats Totals {ColB & D) eap
[Degcription Resource Codes _ Gbject Codes A} iB) i€ [0} {E} (2]
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) iN
NET POSITION [C + D4) 000 {16,298 00} {74,259.09) 116,298 00}/
F. NET POSITION
1) Baginnng Nat Position
8) As of July 1 - Unsudited 6701 849,379.00 §57,856.00 557,854.22 {1.78)] 0,0,
b) Audit Adjustments 6793 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c} As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + Fib) £49.379.00 557,858.00 557,854.22
dj Other Restataments ares 0.00 000 0.00 000 0.0%]
8) Adjustad Baginning Nt Position {Fic + F1d) 649,379.00 557,856.00 557,654.22
2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (€ + Fla} 649,379.00 541,560.00 541,558.22
Componants of Ending Net Position
a) Nat Investmant in Capital Azsats 8708 0.00 0.00 000
b) Rastricisd Net Position 9787 0.00 8555500 155,014.11
____cl Ynrestricted Net Position 9780 549,379 00 455,605 90 366,544.11
Caitfornés Dept of Education
Reporng Softwere - 201820
File: fund-b (Rev D51272018) Pagm 7 Prmed. V2017 190 PN



River Montessart Elernentary Charter

2016-17 Second interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Scheols Entemprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pesition Form 621
% Dift
Board Approved Projeciad Yaar Differance Column
Original Budget | Operating Budget |  Actuats To Date Totals {ColBAD) 84D
Description Resousce Codes _ Object Codes A} {B) iC} (0} {E} (F}
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionment
State Aid - Gumrent Year 8011 391,807.00 338,159.00 242,042.00 334,159.00 6,00 0.0%
Education 7 Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 33,250.00 31,233.00 15,751.00 31,233.00
State Ald - Prior Years 8019 0.00 000 26,042.00 a.00
LCFF Transfera
Unrestrictad £ CFF Transfers - Curant Yaar 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
AN Othor LCFF Transters - Current Year Al Other 8091 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
Transters to Chaner Schools in Lisu of Property Taxes 8098 857,260 00 839,722.00 380,250.00 839.722.00
Property Taxes Transters 8087 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.0b
LCFF/Revenua Limit Transtars - Prior Years 809G oo 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 1,282,337.00 1,207,114.00 853,004.00 1,207,114 00
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenancs and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Special Education Entitement 8181 20781.00 20,781.00 5100 20,781.00
Special Education Discrotionary Granis a1a2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Donated Food Commodities v 3] 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
Intaragency C Betwesn LEAS 8285 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
NCLB: Titia |, Pan A, Basic Grants Low-Incoma
and Neglected 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title |, Part D, Local Delnquent Program 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title if, Part A, Teacher Quality 4035 2290 0.00 0.00 0.00 g.0g 0.00 0.0%
NCLE: Titia Iil, Immigrant Education Program 420% 6250 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
HNCLB: Tite i, Limiad English Proficient {LEF}
Student Program 4203 8200 8,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLE: Titl V, Part 8, Public Chartar Schools
Grant Program (PCSGP) 4810 82850 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3012-3020, 3030319189,
Othar No Chid Left Behind 40384128, 5510 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
Vocational and Applisd Tethnology Education A500-369% 8280 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Safe and Drug Free Schools 3700-3799 8290 0.00 000 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other Fadera! Revenue All Othet 8250 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 00%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 2078100 20,781.00 51,00 20,781.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Cthar Sials Apportionments
Special Educabon Master Plan
Curent Year 8500 8N 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Priar Years 8500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 D‘MJ
All Other State Apportionments - Cuent Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Stata Apportionments - Prior Yoars All Other 8318 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Chikd Nutrition Programs 8520 0,00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mandated Costs 8550 41,764 00 39,858.00 30,289.00 35,856.00 0.00 0.0%
Lotiery - Linrestrictad and Instructone! & 8560 30,081.00 2888000 7,882.07 28,660.00 a.00 0.0%
Aftar School Education and Satety (ASES) 8010 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Caxfomia Degi of Educwbion
ﬁmﬁmfﬁm'm” Pagel Printact AW2ON7 110 PW



River Monlessori Elementary Charter 2018-17 Second Interim
Old Adobe Union Etementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 40 70847 0118750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% DY
Board Approved Projected Year Difterence Column
Original Budget | OperatingBudget | Actuals To Date Totals {ColB & D} BabD
Description Resurce Codes| A (B8} cl__ ) IE) {Fl
Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%)
Drug/AlcoholTabacea Funds 6850 8580 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
California Clean Energy Jobis Act 8230 8580 0.00 000 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.0%
Career Technical Education incentive
Grant Program 8387 8580 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Specialized Sacondary 7370 8580 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Quality Education lvastment Act 7400 8590 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0,00 o.0%|
Common Core Stats Standerds Implementation 7405 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Stale Revenus All Other 8590 11,804 00 11,804.00 307.13 11,604.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 83,858.00 80,340.00 38,480.20 80,340.00 0.00 uoﬂ
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Ssie of Equipment/Supphes 8831 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 00%
Sale of Publications 8832 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
Food Servica Ssles B34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Other Sales 8839 000 000 0.00 0.00
Leases and Rentals 8850 000 0.00 0.00 000
Intarest 8850 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,680 47 2,000.00
Net increass (Decrsasa) in the Fair Value of Investmants 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
Fees snd Contracts
Child Development Perent Fees 8873 0.00 .00 000 0.00
Transportation Foas From Indivicualx 8875 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interagency Services 8877 0.00 000 0.00 000
Afl Othar Fees and Contracts 8889 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Othar Locel Ravenue
All Other Local Revenus 0890 158,000 00 178,000.00 58,737.89 178,000.00
Fuition 8710 0.00 000 0.00 0.00
Al Cther Transters In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 0,90 0.0%
Transtors of Apportionmants
Special Education SELPA Translars
From Districts or Charter Schools 8500 are1 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From Counity Offices 8500 o782 83,956.00 78,868 .00 34,758.00 78,868.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Othar Teansters of Apportionments
From Districts or Charter Schoots Al Other o 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices Al Other 8782 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs Al Other 8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 aog .00 0.0%
Al Other Transfers In lrom AN Cthers 8799 000 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 243,956.00 258,868.00 93,183.38 258 588.00 0.00 0.0%
[TOTAL REVENUES 1,830,733 00 1,587,101.00 784,708.56 1,567,101.00
Catifomis Dept of Education
Foe o e BN ? Pagat Pretad. V017 1 10PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2016-17 Second Interim

48 70847 0119750

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuala To Date Totals {CiBED) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes) (A} {8) (c) {0} (5] {F)
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Cartificaled Taachery’ Salarias 1100 457,324.00 454,724 00 270.623.38 454.724.00 0.00 0.0%
Cartificated Pupil Support Salark 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Cartificated Supervisors’ and Administrators’ Salaries 1300 96,604.00 96,604.00 57,227.30 56,804 00 0.00 0.0%
Other Certificated Salsries 1800 0.00 0.00 2.838.80 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 553,928.00 551,328.00 330,789.48 551,328 00 0.00 o.m_sl
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Glassified Instructional Selaties 2100 135,736.00 152,000.00 64,821.94 152,000.00 0.00 0.0%)}
Clasaified Support Sataries 7200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Clasaified Supervisors' and Admi Satani 2300 114,500.00 114,500.00 £8.830.50 114,500.00
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 81,180.00 B6,160.00 368.681.50 66,180.00
Other Classified Salaties 2000 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 331,416.00 332,880.00 185,313.84 332 680.00
|EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 31013102 £9,6884.00 49,6884 00 40,071.90 60,884.00
PERS 32013202 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00
OASDiMedicare/Altsmative 3301-3302 33,388 00 33,386.00 17,704.55 13,386.00
Health and Watfare Banefits 3401-3402 70,607 00 70.807,00 37,231.02 70,807.00
Unamployment Insurance 3501-3502 8,853.00 8,853.00 238.33 B,853.00
Workers' Compensation 36013602 8,385.00 B,385.00 520747 5,385.00
OPEB, Afiocated 3701-3702 0.00 0,00 0.00 000
OPEB, Activa Employess 3751.3752 2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Employse Banefits 3801-3002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 191,815.00 191,615.00 100,543 27 191,815.00
|DOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Corn Curricula Mates 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Books and Other Relarancs Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Materials and Supplies 4300 50,375.00 £0,375.00 31,418.23 50,375.00
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 8,000.00 3,000.00 2,831.60 3,000.00
Food 4700 8,000.00 8,000.00 2,778.50 8,000.00
TOTAL BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 66,375 00 £9,375 00 37,028.33 59,375.00
|services anp oTHeR oPERATING EXPENSES
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Travel and Conferences 5200 24,757.00 12,757.00 4,541.90 12,757 00
Dues and Memberships 5300 2,000.00 2,000.00 670.00 2,000.00
Insurance 5400-5450 11,244.00 11,244.00 8,073.00 11,244.00
O and Housakeaping Services 5500 34,514.00 34,514.00 2378943 34,514.00
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, end Noncapitalized Improvements 5800 24520300 245,203.00 132.216.78 245.203.00
Transters of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers of Direct Coats - Interfund 5750 000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prot VGonsutting Sarvices and
Opetating Expenditures 5800 117,431.00 90,431 00 46,832 28 90,431.00
Communicaticns 5300 7,400.00 7,400.00 497432 7,400.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 442,548.00 403,549.00 221,507.72 403 548.00 0.00 0.0%
mmm - 201820
Flla: fundi-b {Rev 051272018} Paga & Ponted: MW20MT 1:10PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2018-17 Second Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Fom 821
% Difr
Board Approvad Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals [ColBAD) Ba0
|Description Resourcs Codes _ Object Codes (A) {8} €] {D) (E) {F)
DEPRECIATION
Depraciation Expanse 6300 24,550.00 44,550.00 000 44,550.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 44,550.00 44,550 00 0.00 44,550.00 0.00 0.0%
[OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfars of Indirect Costs}
Tuition
Tuition for Instruction Urdet Interdistrict Attandance Agreemants 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tultion, Excess Costs, andior Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 000 .00 0.00 0.00
Paymants to County Officas 7142 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 000
Payments to JPAS 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Transfers Out
AR Other Transiers T201.7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.0%)
AN Other Transfers Oul to AN Cthers 7289 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
Debt Service
Debt Servics - ntarest 7438 0.00 0.00 784 82 000 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER QUTGO (exciuding Transters of ndirsct Costs) 0.00 0,00 784.92 0.00 0.00 0.0%
GTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transters of Indirect Casts - Intarfund 7350 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 a.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER CUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
{TOTAL, EXPENSES 183073300 1,503,397.00 £359.055.64 1,503,367.00
SAC Fnancal hepetog Bohwer - 201820
Flla bundho {frev 05/12/2016) Pagi Printed: VWXHT 1 tOPM



River Montessori Elementary Charter 2016-17 Second Interim
Old Adobe Union Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 48 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 62|
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget | Oparating Budget | Actuals To Dats Totals (Col B & D) BA&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codesi (A} {8} ) 0} (3] (E}
|INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
Other Authorized Intardfund Translers In B9tH 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%;
| {s) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorizad interfund Transfers Out TR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
|_(0) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCESIUSES
BOURCES
Other Scurces
Transfers from Funds of Lapsad/Reorganized LEAS Boas 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Sourcas .8979 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
{c} TOTAL, SOURGES [ 1¢] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7851 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses Tags 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
| (d} TOTAL USES 2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.D;I
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenuas 8880 0,00 £.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Contributions irom Restricted Ravenuas 8990 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
| (a) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 .00 2.00 0.00 0.0%
ITOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCEGUSES
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 c.0o
Callfornia Dept of Education
BACS Financial Reporting Softwars - 2018.2.0
Fila. fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2018) Page? Priged. V2017 1 10PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

Second Interim
Old Adobe Union Elementary

Charter Schools Enterprise Fund

49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail Form 62l
201617
Resource  Description __Projected Year Totals
6230 136,394.11
6300 6,816.00
6512 11,804.00
Total, Restricted Net Position 155,014.11

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

Fila: fundi-b {Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed: 3/9/2017 1:10 PM



River Montessari Elementary Charter
Old Adobe Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2016-17 Second Interim
AVERAGE BAILY ATTENDANCE

49 70847 0119750
Form Al

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
{8

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT
ADA
Projectad Year
Totals
(C)

FUNDED ADA

ESTIMATED

Projacted
Year Totals
{0}

DIFFERENCE
{Col.D-B)
{E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col. E1B)

{F}

A, DISTRICT

1. Total District Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPSA.CI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (includes Necessary Small Schoon!
ADA)

2. Totat Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntasy Pupil Transfer Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &

Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPSA.CI

and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 abova)

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPSALCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)
Total, District Regular ADA

(Sum of Lines A1 through A3)

5. District Funded County Program ADA
County Community Schools

Special Education-Special Day Class
Special Education-NPSA.CI

Special Education Extended Year
Other County Operated Programs:;
Opporiunity Schools and Full Day

-
¥

PapEw

Resource Conservation Schools
f. County School Tuition Fund
{Qut of State Tuition) [EC 2600 and 46380)

(Sum of Lines ASa through ASf)
6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA
{Sum of Line A4 and Line ASg)
7. Adults in Correctional Facilitles
8. Charter School ADA
{Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Chartar School ADA)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

3. Total Basic Aid Open Enroltment Regular ADA

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.c0

0.00

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

6.00

0%

0.00

0.00

000

0.00

0.00

0%

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

D.00

0.00

0.00

0%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: adal (Rev 02/03/2016)

Page 1 of 1

Printed:

392017 1:11PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter 2016-17 Second Interim

Old Adobe Union Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Form Al
ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Qriginal Operating |Projected Year| Projected | DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals {Col. D - B) {Col. E/ B}
Description (A) (B) (c) (D) (E) (F)
B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Alternative Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenite Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or {c) [EC 2574(c}{4)(A)) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
ADA {Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
2. District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
€. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
{Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
(Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
5. County Operations Grant ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
6. Charter School ADA
(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Chartar School ADA)
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 3/9/2017 1:11 PM



River Montessori Elementary Charter

2016-17 Second Interim

Otd Adobe Unicn Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 40 70847 0119750
Sonoma County Form Al
ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA{ ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected | DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals {Col.D - B} {Col. E/ B}
Description {A) {B) {C) {O} {E) {F)
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charier schools.
{__Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheel to report their ADA.
FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.
1. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 0.00 ] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or {c} [EC 2574(c)}{4)(A)} 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 09@1
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
{Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. Chartar School Funded County Pragram ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Educalion-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Special Education-NPS/ALCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agriculiural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. TOTAL CHRARTER SCHQOL ADA
{Sum: of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.
5. Total Gharter School Regular ADA 166.25 I 166.25 I 156.17 | 156.17 {10.08) 5%
6. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c} {[EC 2574(c}{4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Educatlon ADA
{Sum of Linas C6a through Céc) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
7. Chartar School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e, Other County Operated Programs:
Cpportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines C¥a through C7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
{Sum of Lines 5, C6d, and C7f) 166.25 166.25 156.17 156.17 (10.08) 6%
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
{Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 166.25 166.25 156.17 156.17 {10.08} 8%
California Dept of Education
SACS Financlal Raporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: adai {Rev 02/03/2016) Page1of 1 Printed: 3/8/2017 1:11PM
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SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
3/9/2017 B8:15:58 AM 49-70847-0119750
Second Interim
2016-17 Actuals to Date
Technical Review Checks
River Montessori Elementary Charter
0ld Adobe Union Elementary Sonoma County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
o - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.
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SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
3/9/2017 8:14:35 AM 49-70847-0118750
Sacond Interim
2016-17 Board Approved Operating Budget
Technical Reviaw Checks
River Montessori Elementary Charter
0ld Adobe Union Elementary Sonoma County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected:; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
0 - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTA - (W) - The following combinations for RESOURCE and
OBJECT {(cbjects 8000 through 9999, except for 9791, 9793, and 9795) are
invalid. Data should be corrected or narrative must be provided explaining why

the exception(s) should be considered appropriate. EXCEPTION
ACCOUNT

FD - RS - PY - GO - FN - OB RESOURCE OBJECT VALUE

62-3310~-0-0000-0000-9797 3310 9797 -18,620.00

Explanation:A donation from resource 0000 will be done to resource 3310 to make
a zero balance.

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

EFB-POSITIVE ~ (W) - Ending balance (Object 979Z) is negative for the
following resources. Please explain the cause of the negative balances and

your plan to resolve themnm. EXCEPTION
FUND RESOURCE NEG. EFB
62 3310 -18,620.00

Explanation:A donation from resouce 0000 to resource 3310 will be done to make
the balance zero.

62 6500 -50,440.00
Explanation:A donation will be done from resource 0000 to resource 6500 to make
the balance zero.

Total of negative resource balances for Fund &2 -69,060.00

CEFB-POSITIVE - (W) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position (objects

9700-9789, 9796, and 9797) are not positive individually by resource, by fund.
EXCEPTION

FUND RESOURCE OBJECT VALUE
62 3310 9797 -18,620.00




Page 2
SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
49-70847-0119750-River Montessori Elementary Charter-Second Interim 2016-17 Board Approved Operating Budget
3/9/2017 8:14:35 AM

Explanation:A donation will be made from resource 0000 to resource 3310 to make
the balance zero.

62 6500 9757 -50,440.00
Explanation:A donation will be made from resource 0000 to resource 6500 to make
the balance zero.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.
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SACS2016ALIL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
3/9/2017 8:15:00 AM 49-70847-0118750
Sacond Interim
2016-17 Projeacted Totals
Tachnical Review Checks
River Montessori Elementary Charter
0l1d Adoba Union Elementary Sonoma County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
o - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged}

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

EFB-POSITIVE - (W) - Ending balance (Object 9792) is negative for the
following resocurces. Please explain the cause of the negative balances and

your plan to resolve them. EXCEPTION
FUND RESOURCE NEG. EFE
62 3310 -18,620.00

Explanation:A donation will be made from resource 0000 to resource 3310 to
make the balance zero.

62 6500 -50,440.00
Explanation:A donation from resource 0000 to resource 6500 will be made to
make the balance zero.

Total of negative resource balances for Fund 62 -69,060.00

OBJ-POSITIVE - (W) - The following cbjects have a negative balance by

resource, by fund: EXCEPTION
FUND RESOURCE QOBJECT VALUE
62 3310 9780 -18,620.00

Explanation:A donation will be made from resocurce 0000 to resource 3310 to
make the balance zero.

62 6500 9790 -50,440.00
Explanaticon:A donation will be made from resource 0000 to resource 6500 to
make the balance zero.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS
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49-70847-0119750-River Montessori Elementary Charler-Second Interim 2016-17 Projected Totals
3/9/2017 8:15:00 AM

CHK-UNBALMANCED-A - (W) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data exist in the
following form(s) that should be corrected before an official export is
conpleted. Please view the form(s) on screen and clear any "Unbalanced" or
similar messages displayed in red. Note that forms GANN, SEMA, SEMB, and SEMAI
request contact information. EXCEPTION

Form CASH

Explanation:Using outside cash flow statement.

Checks Completed.
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River Montessori Element;

310/201711:20 AM

LOCAL CONTROL FUNDIN 2016-17
CALCULATE LCFF TARGET

coLA 0.000%
Unduplicated as % of Enroll 3 yr average 27.15% 27.15% 2016-17

ADA Base Gr Span Supp Concen TARGET
Grades TK-3 111.65 7,083 737 425 - 920,512
Grades 4-6 44.52 7,189 390 337,403
Grades 7-8 - 7,403 402 -
Grades 9-12 - 8,578 223 478 -
Subtract N5S - - . -
NSS Allowance -
i
TOTAL BASE 156.17 1,110,843 82,286 64,786 _ k= 1,257,915
Targeted Instructional Impr S
Home-to-School Transportat -
Small Schoo! District Bus Rep =
LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING F} 1,252,915
ECONOMIC RECOVERY TAR! 1/2 -
CALCULATE LEFF FLOOR
12-13 16-17
Rate ADA
Current year Funded ADA ti 5,145.83 156.17 803,604
Current year Funded ADA ti . 156.17 .
Necessary Small School Al
2012-13 Categoricals -
2012-13 Categorical Progra 597.58 156.17 93,322
Less Fair Share Reduction o
Non-CDE certified New Cha - - -
Beginning in 2014-15, prior $ 1,5B4.16 156.17 247,392
LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING 1,184,318 |
| 1
LCFF Calculator v17.2b
Calculator released July 8, 2016



River Montessori Element

LOCAL CONTROI. FUNDIN

CALCULATE LCFF PHASE-IN E|

2016-17

Grass State Ald
CALCULATE MINIMUM STAT

2016-17

LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING H 1,257,915
LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING H 1,144,318
Applied Funding Formula: Fl FLOOR
LCFF Need (LCFF Torget iess LCFF 113,597
Current Year Gap Funding 55.28% 62,797
ECONOMIC RECOVERY PAY =
LCFF Entitlement before M 1,207,114
CALCULATE STATE AID

Transition Entitlement 1,207,114
Local Revenue (including RDA) !839,722!

367,392

12-13 Rate  16-17 ADA N/A
2012-13 RL/Charter Gen BG 5,145.83 156.17 803,604
2012-13 NSS Allowance {defi -
Less Current Year Property T (839,722)
Subtotal State Aid for Histor -
Categorical funding from 20 -
Charter Categorical Block Gr. 93,322
Minimum State Aid Guarant 93,322
CHARTER SCHOOL MINIMU
Local Control Funding Form 1,207,114
Minimum State Aid plus Pr 933,044
Offset -
Minimum State Aid Prior to 93,322
Total Minimim State Aid wit 93,322
TOTAL STATE AID T 367,392
AddHional State Aid (AddItII -
LCFF Phase-In Entitlement ( 1,207,114
CHANGE OVER PRIOR YEAR l 4.59% 52,949
LCFF Entitlement PER ADA 7,730
PER ADA CHANGE QVER PRIJ 5.49% 402
LCFF SOURCES INCLUDING E3

Increase 2016-17

State Aid 1.05% 3,833 367,392
Property Taxes net of in-lieu 0.00% - -
Charter in-Lieu Taxes 6.21% 49,116 839,722
mholce. Supp 4.5ﬁ,949 1,207,T

3M0/201711:20 AM

LCFF Calculator v17.2b

Calculator

released July 8, 2016
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Vicenti, Lloyd & Stutzman, CPAs

February 27, 2017

River Montessori Charter School

c/o Michelle Leonard, Business Manager
3880 Cypress Drive

Petaluma, CA 94928

Dear Board of Directors;

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for River Montessori
Charter School (the Organization) for the year ended June 30, 2017.

We will audit the financial statements of the Organization, which comprise the statement of financial
position as of the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. Also, the following
supplementary information accompanying the financial statements will be subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an opinion
on it in relation to the financia statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditor’s report on
the financia statements:

1) Local Education Agency Organization Structure

2) Schedule of Instructional Time

3) Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

4) Reconciliation of Annual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements
5) Notesto Supplementary Information

We will also prepare the Organization' s federal and state information returns for the year ended June 30,
2017.

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial statements are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles and to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second
paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
Genera of the United States, procedures applicable to charter schools contained in Sandards and
Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2016-2017 and will include tests of
your accounting records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an
opinion. We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Organization’s financial
statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of the Organization. We cannot

2210 E. Route 66, Glendora, CA 91740 Phone 626.857.7300 Fax 626.857.7302
555 W. 5th Street, Floor 35, Los Angeles, CA 90013 Phone 213.550.5422 www.vicenticpas.com
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provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is
necessary for us to modify our opinion or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph. If our
opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with
management in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or
have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue reports, or we may withdraw
from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the
financia statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as
required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other
matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the
scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance and (2) that the report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable
for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the Organization is subject to an audit
requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards established by the Auditing Standards Board (United States) and the standards for
financia audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal,
regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the financia statements and all accompanying information as well as all
representations contained therein. As part of the audit, we will provide tax services and assist with
preparation of your financial statements and related notes. These nonaudit services do not constitute an
audit under Government Auditing Sandards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the
financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. Y ou will be required
to acknowledge in the management representation letter the tax services provided and our assistance
with the preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have evaluated the
adequacy of our services and have reviewed and approved the results of the services, the financial
statements, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further,
you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those
services; and accept responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective interna controls, including
monitoring ongoing activities, for helping to ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met;
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is
reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to
achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also
responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statementsin conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
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and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us
with (1) access to al information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose
of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the Organization from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Y our responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as awhole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Organization involving (1)
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in interna control, and (3) others where the
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Y our responsibilities include informing us
of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Organization complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud,
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we
report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the supplementary
information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the
supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include
acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of
the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if
they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary
information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed
in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective
actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits,
attestation engagements, performance audits, or other engagements or studies. The Organization is also
responsible for providing management’'s views on our current findings, conclusions, and
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recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and
format for providing that information.

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation
of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the Organization
or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the Organization. Because the determination
of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable
assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Sandards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws
or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent
financia reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the
appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our
attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and
certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and
financial ingtitutions. We will also request written representations from the Organization’s attorneys as
part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our
audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the
financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other
responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the Organization and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to
test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and
fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements
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resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an
opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal
control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under
AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Organization’s compliance with the provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to
provide an opinion on overal compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on
compliance issued pursuant to Gover nment Auditing Standards.

Informational Tax Returns